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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

2007 was a milestone year for Harleysville National Corporation. We expanded our
branch banking platform through acquisition, added new fee-generating businesses,
completed the headquarters expansion, consolidated back office operations,
improved utilization of real estate assets, raised additional capital, and inl.roduced
new products—all initiatives we believe will drive revenue and earnings growth in

the coming years and solidify our franchise during this volatile banking market.
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It was also a challenging vyear, with
macroeconomic factors impacting growth and
profitability. While our financial performance
was not consistent with our recent history, we're

optimistic about the future financial outlook.

2007

annual report, Expansion, Empowerment,

Accordingly, the theme of our
Effectiveness captures our strategic objectives
for 2007 and beyond. To grow shareholder
value, we need to hind creative new ways
to expand our business; empower our
employees to drive change; and increase our
organizational effectiveness. I'd like to spend
some time discussing our 2007 initiatives to

accomplish this goal.

For example, East Penn Financial Corporation

expanded our footprintinto the Lehigh Valley.

With nine branches and $448 million of

assets, East Penn provides a sound basis from
which we can cross-sell other products and
services. The Lehigh Valley boasts a diverse

economy in close proximity to Philadelphia

and New York City, and the revitalization of

some of the region’s older mill towns, such as
Bethlehem, presents numerous opportunities

for a community-focused bank such as ours.

We worked hard to retain the goodwill that
East Penn established in the Lehigh Valley: we
maintained East Penn’s brand and identity;
named Brent Peters, the company’s former
chairman, president, and CEO, as Executive
President of National

Vice Harleysville

Corporation and President of the East Penn
Bank division; and we minimized disruption
bank's

throughout the

with  the front line employees

transition to  maintain
continuity with customers. We believe this
acquisition will be a springboard for great

things to come in the Lehigh Valley market.

Cher Fast Pean Bank division team. neluding those af the State Jvenie
Emnrs location pictined here, plavs a feading role i groichgg relativislin
in the greater Lelighe Valler communiir.

Through our Cornerstone unit we also
expanded our fee-generating businesses by
acquiring McPherson Enterprises, a wealth
management firm that specializes in estate
and succession planning and life insurance
for high-net-worth construction business
owners and families throughout America.
This acquisition augments the success we
have had in growing our wealth management
business, led by Cornerstone Companies,
which was directly responsible for 25 percent

of our non-interest income in 2007.
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Cornerstone is a trusted advisor for clients
including individuals, corporations, and
foundations, and today manages over $2.5
billion of assets—up from $1.5 billion when
we acquired them just over two years ago.
McPherson and its differentiated service
offering serves as a great complement to
Cornerstone Companies as we look 1o
replicate our enviable track record in growing

our wealth management presence.

Fhe mianagonent and steff of onr Cornendone fean confinie to grone

soealth wenagement ineosne thoosle their avigue appovech to meeting
il wied oo cwsdomens” seeds ad gl

We are also keenly focused on initiatives
that will unlock organic growth, Our wealth
management operations have partnered
with branch management and commercial
lending professionals 10 provide education
on products and services, and assistance with

prospect identification.

As a result, our retail brokerage group,

Millennium Wealth Management Advisors,

EmPOWERMENT |
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posted strong organic growth during the year.
We believe continued organic growth in the
wealth management business is achievable by
mining our existing customer base and the
expansive list of prospects that reside in the

communities we serve.

Our East Norriton and Warminster branch
openings and Blue Bell branch relocation
improved our retail banking plaiform.
Warminster continues our expansion into
Bucks County, where we now have seven
branches. And the new Blue Bell branch
gives us improved visibility and accessibility
in an affluent and growing market. Just
before year-end, we completed construction
of our new Flourtown office. Located at 1851
Bethlehem Pike, in close proximity to our new
Blue Bell, East Norriton, and soon-to-open
Conshohocken office, the branch helps to
create an attractive local footprint that opens

new opportunities for building relationships.

We are launching important strategic
programs to empower our employees
to become agents of change. Exccutive
management is always ready to hear new ideas
for driving sales growth, improving operating
efficiency, reducing costs, strengthening our

brand, and providing better customer scrvice.

We also found creative ways to more efficiently
utilize our real estate assets by completing
a sale/leaseback transaction that gencrated

proceeds of $38.2 million and a gain on




HNBC 2007 ANNuaL REPORT

sale of $2.3 million in 2007 In addition,

our investment in the expansion and
modernization of Harleysville’s headquarters
2007,

drives significant benefits. We centralized

facility, which was completed in
approximately 200 employees in one modern,
efficient facility, and began to liquidate

surplus real estate asscts.

The first of these surplus assets, our Red Hill,
Pa. facility, was sold during the fourth quarter,
resulting in a $473,000 gain. Four commercial
buildings on Main Street in Harleysville
have been listed for sale, and we're actively
entertaining offers. But the biggest benefit
is a dramatic shift in our corporate culture,
which now benefits from having many
employees in one central facility, working day-
by-day to improve Harleysville, its franchise,
and its customer relationships. We're seeing
significant boosts in efficiency, organization,

and energy among employees.

We also restructured our retirement plans
to provide enhanced investment options for
employees. Our traditional ‘defined bencfit
(pension) plan will be terminated, and a
new, enhanced 401(k) plan was implemented
in its place. This action enabled Harleysville
National to update its retirement plans to
the more modern, flexible style favored by
employees today, and at the same time reduce

administrative costs—a true win/win.

In closing, I'd like to thank all of you
for your support. While 2007 presented
unique challenges o profitability growth,
we seized the opportunity to set the stage
for 2008 and beyond. We recognize that
our daily focus in 2008 is 10 improve
shareholder value. Our franchise is strong, our
financial condition is sound, and we believe
we have the will and ability to execute on our

significant opportunities.

FENIES Waerminsden fivanch i Buels Cosnty, werele opencd fir May 2007,
{'\.{HHH[\ um'_/r_mf,'u.fm s altiactive srrhel.

Sincerely,

Lo o G

Paul D. Geraghty

President and Chief Executive Officer




FINANCIAL RATIOS AND SUMMARY

(Dollars in thousands, except per share <ata)

Per Share Information* 2007
Basic @Arnings ...t $0.91
Diluted €arnings .......ooovvvvvnvernnei, 0.90
Cash dividends paid .....ccccccooniinnniiiiiiiie 0.80
Book value (at vear-end)........ocooeeiiiiiiii, 10.83
Market Value*
High closing price of common stock ... $20.25
Low closing price of common stock .........cccocccrnnnnn. $13.15
Basic average common shares outstanding ................ 29,218,671
Diluted average common shares outstanding ............ 29,459,898
Average Balance Sheet
LLOBIIS oottt ettt eesa e st reeeneesseaes $2,123,170
Earning assets ... 3,139,721
TOtAl ASSELS .ot 3,371,304
DEPOSITS oo 2,557 546
Interest-bearing liabilities and demand deposits ....... 3,028,842
Shareholders” equity ... 298,393
Selected Ratios
Return on average assets .......ovmmineniniiaencnnrennns 0.79%
Return on average shareholders’ equity ..................... 8.91%
Leverage (assets divided by shareholders’ equity) ..... 11.50
Average shareholders’ equity as a percentage of:

Average loans ... 14.05%

AVErage AePOSHS .ot 11.67

CAVETAZE ASSCLS oo 8.85

Average €arning assets .......ovvvvvevrnienninnrnnn e 9.50
Dividend payout ratio .........c.ceeeiiniecninicen 88.82
Average total loans as a percentage

of average deposits and borrowed funds.................. 70.10
Yield on earning assets™ ... 6.39
Cost of interest bearing funds ... 413
Net interest margin®™. ... 2.82

*Adjusted for i five percent stock dividend effective 8/15/06 and 9/15/05.
**Tax Equivalent Basis (tax rate of 35%).

OF KEY INFORMATION

2006
$1.36
1.34
0.75
10.18

$24.90
$18.06
28,946,847
29,353,128

$2,014,420
3,019,725
3,229,224
2,469,514
2,904,452
281,847

1.22%
13.98%
11.03

13.99%

11.41
8.7%
9.3%

55.26

69.36
6.13

3.72
2.95

Year ended December 31,

2005
$1.34
1.32
0.72
948

$23.77
$17.83%
28,801,412
29,490,216

$1,900,023
2,854,826
3,039,186
2,259,831
2,716,430
972,974

1.28%
14.22%
11.41

14.837%

12.08
3.98
9.56

53.41

69.95
h.b4
2.7
3.27
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20349

Form 10-K

(Mark One)

Xl Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. '

OR
(m Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
for the transition period from to . ' '

Commission file number 0-15237

Harleysville National Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) SEC
Pennsylvania o T 232210237 Mall Proressing
(State ar other jurisdiction of v ‘ (LR.S. Employer Seciion
incorporation or organization) ' Identification No.) : ‘
483 Main Street, ' : Mair et g
Harleysville, Pennsylvania ' 19438 '
(Address of principal executive offices) . (Zip Cede) '
Waghilngton, DC
N
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (215) 256-8851 162
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $1.00 par value The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None '

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes ONo X o

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file
such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regutation $-K is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference
in Part L[ of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. (See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smallet reperting company™ in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s Common Stock held by non-affiliates is $412,935,659 based on the June 30,
2007 closing price of the Registrant’s Common Stock of $16.12 per share.

As of March 5, 2008, there were 31,353,724 outstanding shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

1. Portions of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Sharcholders to be held April 22,
2008 are incorporated by reference inte Part 111, Items 10-14 of this report.
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Item 6.
Item 7.
Ttem TA,
{tem 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A,
{tem 9B.

Part 111
Item 10.
Itemil.
Item 12.
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Forward-Looking Statements ‘

In addition to historical information, this report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, We have made forward-looking statements in this report,
and in documents that we incorporate by.reference, that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking
statements include the information concerning possible or assumed future results of operations.of Harleysville
National Corporation and its subsidiaries. When we use words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“may,” “estimates,” or “intends” or similar expressions, we are making forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are representative only as of the date they are made and the Corporation undertakes no
obligation to update any forward-looking statement.

Shareholders should note that many factors, some of whlch are discussed elsewhere in this report and in the
documents that we incorporate by reference, could affect the future financial results of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our
forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference in this document. These factors include but

are not llmlted to those described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

.




PART I
L
ltem 1.  Business

Harleysville National Corporation (the Corporation), a Pennsylvania corporation, was incorporated June 1,
1982, On January 1, 1983, the Corporation became the parent bank holding company of Harleysville National
Bank and Trust Company (the Bank or Harleysville National Bank), established in 1909, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Corporation. The Corporation is registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holdmg
- Company Act of 1956.

Since commencing operations, the Corporation’s business has consisted primarily of providing financial
services through its subsidiaries and has acquired eight financial institutions since 1991 including the recent
acquisitiori of East Penn Financial Corporation (East Penn Financial) and its banking subsidiary, East Penn Bank
in November 2007. Additionally, the Corporation completed the acquisition of the Cornerstone Companies
(registered investment advisors) in January 2006. The Corporation is also the parent holding company of HNC.
Financial Company and HNC Reinsurance.Company. HNC Financial Company was incorporated on March -17,
1997 as a Delaware Cotporation and its principal business function is to expand the investment opportunities of
the Corporation. HNC Reinsurance Company was incorporated on March 30, 2001 as an Arizona Corporation
and reinsures consumer loan credit life and accident and health insurance.

The Bank is a national banking association under the supervision of the Qffice of the Comptroller of the
Currency (the OCC). The Corporation’s and the Bank’s legal headquarters are located at 483 Main Street,
Harleysville, Pennsytvania 19438. HNC Financial Company’s legal headquarters is located at 2751 Centerville

. Road, Suite 3164, Wilmington, Delaware 19808. HNC Reinsurance Company’s legal headquarters is located at
" 101 North First Avenue, Suite 2460, Phoenix, AZ 85003.

The Bank provides a full range of banking services including loans and deposits, investment management
and trust and investment advisory services to individual and corporate customers located primarily in eastern
Pennsylvania. The Bank engages.in the full-service commercial banking and trust business, including accepting
time and demand deposits, making secured and unsecured commercial and consumer loans, financing
comumercial transactions, making construction and mortgage loans and performing corporate pension and

-personal investment and trust services. Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) to the extent provided by law. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had 55 branch offices located in
Montgomery, Bucks, Chester, Berks, Carbon, Lehigh, Monree, and Northampton counties, Pennsylvania.

The Bank has maintained a stable base of core deposits and is a leading community bank in its service areas.
The Bank believes it has gained its position as a result of a customer-oriented philosophy and a strong
commitment to service. Senior management has made the development of a sales orientation throughout the Bank
one of their highest priorities and emphasizes this objective with extensive training and sales incentive programs.
The Bank maintains closc contact with the local business community to monitor commercial lending needs and
believes it responds to customer requests quickly and with flexibility.

The Bank opened new branches in Warminster, Bucks County and East Norriton, Montgomery County and
relocated its Blue Bell office in Montgomery County during 2007. The Bank plans to add new retail branches in
" Warrington, Bucks County, Conshohocken and Flourtown, Montgomery County and Whitehall, Lehigh County
in 2008. The Bank continues to cvaluate potential new branch sites that are contiguous to our current service area
and will expand the Bank’s market area and market share of loans and deposits.

Acquisitions

Effective November 16, 2007, the Corporation completed its acquisition of East Penn Financial and its
subsidiary, East Penn Bank. On the acquisition date, East Penn Financial had approximately $451.1 million in
assets, $337.7 million in loans and $382.7 million in deposits. Headquartered and founded in Emmaus, PA in
1990, East Penn Bank, had nine banking offices located in Lehigh, Northampton and Berks Counties. The
acquisition expands the branch network the Corporation has in the Lehigh Valley and its opportunity to provide
East Penn customers with a broader mix of products and services.




On March 1, 2007, the Cornerstone Companies, a subsidiary of the Bank, completed a selected asset
purchase of McPherson Enterprises and related entities (McPherson), registered investment advisors specializing
in estate and succession planning and life insurance for high-net-worth construction and aggregate business
owners and families throughout the United States. McPherson became a part of the Cornerstone Companies, a
component of the Bank’ s Millennium Wealth Management division, The acquisition was part of the
Corporation’s plan to continue to build its fee-based serv1ces businesses. The consideration for the transaction
was $1.5 million in cash.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank completed its acquisition of the Cornerstone Companies, registered
investment advisors for high net worth, privately held business owners, wealthy families and institutional clients.
Located in the Lehigh Valley, Pennsylvania, the firm serves clients throughout Pennsylvania and other mid-
Atlantic states. The purchase price consisted of $15.0 million in cash paid at closing and a contingent payment of
up to $7.0 million to be paid post-closing. The contingent payment is based upon the Cornerstone Companies
meeting certain minimum operating results during a five-year earn-out perlod with a maximum payout of §7.0
million over this period. For 2007 and 2006, the minimum operating resulfs were met resulting in earn-out
payments totaling $2.2 million which were recorded as additional goodwill. At December 31, 2007, the
remaining maximum payout is $4.8 million through 20]0

Dispositions

The Corporation completed a sale-leaseback transaction involving fifteen bank properties as well as a
separate sale of office,space during the fourth quarter of 2007. The Corporation received net proceeds of $39.7
mitlion and recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.8 million. The remaining gain of $ 17.1 million will be defetred and
amortized through a reduction of occupancy expense over the term of the leases.

The Corporation has two reportable operating segments: Community Banking and Wealth Management
(including the Cornerstone Companies acquired tn January 2006) as well as certain other non-reportable
segments. As of December 31, 2007, the Wealth Management segment had assets under management of $3.2
billion. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
.Enterprise and Related information” establishes standards for the way public business enterprises report
information about operating segments. Operating segments are components of an enterprise, which are evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in deciding how to allocate and assess resources and.
performance. The Corporation’s chief operating decision-maker is the President and Chief Executive Officer. For
more. detailed financial information pertaining to operating segments, see Item 8— Note 17 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements which is herein incorporated by reference

As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation had total assets of $3.9 billion, total shareholders’ equity of -
$339.3 million and total deposits of $3.0 billion.

As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation and the Bank employed approximately 820 full time equivalent
employees. The Corporatlon provides a variety of employmem benefits and considers its relationships with its
employces to be satlsfdctory
Competition :

The Bank competes actively with other eastern Pennsylvania financial institutions, many larger than the
Bank, as well as with financial and non-financial institutions headquartered elsewhere. Commercial banks,
savings banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, and money market funds actively compete for
deposits and loans. Such institutions, as well as consumer finance, insurance companies and brokerage firms,
may be considered competitors with respect to one or more services they render. The Bank is generally
competitiv_e with all competing institutions in its service areas with respect to interest rates paid on time and
savings deposits, service charges on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on loans and fees for trust and
investment advisory services. At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s Iégal lending limit to a single customer was
$46.9 million. Many of the institutions with which the Bank competes are able to lend significantly more than
this amount to a single customer.

.




Concentrations/Seasonality . !

The Corporation and its subsidiaries do not have any portion of their businesses dependent on a smg]e or
limited number of customers, the loss of which would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s ,
business. No substantial portion of investments is concentrated within a single industry or group of related
industries. The Corporation had no concentrations of credit extended to any specific industry that exceeded 10%
of total loans at December 31, 2007. The businesses of the Corporation and its subsidiaries are not typically
seasonal in nature,

Supervision and Regulation—The Registrant

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Modernization Act of 1999 (Modemization Act) allows bank holding
companies meeting management, capital, and Community Reinvestment Act standards to engage in a
substantlally broader range of non-banking activities than permissible before enactment, including underwriting

.insurance and making | merchant banking investments in commercial and financial companies. It allows insurers
and other financial services companies to acquire banks, removes various restrictions that currently apply to bank
holding company ownershlp of securities firms and mutual fund advisory compames, and establishes the overall
regulatory structure applicable to bank holding companies that also engage in insurance and securities operations.

The Modernization Act also modified law related to financial privacy and community reinvestment. The
privacy provisions generally prohibit financial institutions, including the Corporation, from disclosing nonpublic
financial information to nonaffiliated third parties unless customers have the opportunity to ‘opt out” of the
disclosure. ‘ '

Pending Legislation

Management is not aware of any other current spemﬁc recommendations by regulatory authorities or
proposed legistation which, if they were implemented, would have a material adverse effect upon the liquidity,
capital resources, or results of operations, although the general cost of compliance with numerous federal and
state laws and regulations does have, and in the future may have, a negative impact on the Corporation’s results
of operations.

Effects of lnflatmn

Inflation has some impact on the Corporatlon s and the Bank s operating costs. Unlike many mdustnal
companies, however, substantially all of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. As a result,
interest rates have a more significant impact on the Corporation’s and the Bank’s performance than the general
level of inflation. Over short perlods of time, interest rates may not necessarily move in the same direction or in
the same magnitude as prices of goods and services.

"
.

Effect of Government Monetary Policies

The earnings of the Corporation are and will be affected by domestic economic conditions and the monetary
and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. An important function of the Federal
Reserve is to regulate the money supply and interest rates. Among the instruments used to implement those
objectives are open market opetations in United States government securities and changes in reserve '
requirements to member bank deposits. These instruments are used in varying combinations to influence overall
growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposns and their use may also affect rates charged on
loans or paid for deposits. :

The Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve and, therefore, the policies and regulations of the Federal
Reserve have a significant effect on its deposits, loans and investment growth, as well as the rate of interest
earned and paid, and are expected to affect the Bank’s operations in the future. The effect of such policies and |
regulations upon the future business and eamings of the Corporation and the Bank cannot be predicted.




Environmental Regulations

There are several federal and state statutes which regulate the obligations and liabilities of financial
institutions pertaining to environmental issues. In addition to the-potential for attachment of liability resulting
from its own actions, a bank may be held liable under certain circumstances for the actions of its borrowers, or
third parties, when such actions result in environmental problems on properties that collateralize loans held by the
bank. Further, the liability has the potential to far exceed thé original amount of a loan issued by the bank.
Currently, neither the Corporation nor the Bank are a party to any pending legal proceeding pursuant to any
environmental statute, nor are the Corporation and the Bank aware of any circumstances that may give rise to
liability under any such statute, y

Supervision and Regulation—Bank

The operations of the Bank are subjéct to federal and state statutes applicable to banks chartered under the
banking laws of the United States, to members of the Federal Reserve and to banks whose deposits are insured by
the FDIC. The Bank’s operations are also subject to regulations of the OCC, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), the Federal Reserve and the FDIC. The primary supervisory authority of the Bank is the
OCC, who regularly examines the Bank. The OCC has authority to prevent a national bank from engaging in
unsafe or unsound practices in conducting its business.

Federal and state banking laws and regulations govern, among other things, the scope of a bank’s business, ’
the investments,a bank may make, the reserves against deposits a bank must maintain, loans a bank makes and
collateral it takes, the activitics of a bank with respect to mergers and consolidations and the establishment of
branches. . .

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to regulations of certain state and federal agencies and,
accordingly, these regulatory authorities periodically examine the Corporation and the Bank. As a consequence of
the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities, the Corporation’s and the'Bank’s business is -
susceptible to being affected by state and federal legislation and regulations.

As a subsidiary bank of a bank holding company, the Bank is subject to certain restrictions imposed by the
Federal Reserve Act on any extensions of credit to the bank holding company or its subsidiaries, or investments
in the stock or other securities as collateral for loans. The Federal Reserve Act and Federal Reserve regulations
also place certain limitations and reporting requircments on extensions of credit by a bank to principal
shareholders of its parent holding company, among others, and to related interests of such principal shareholders.
In addition, such legislation and regulations may affect the terms upon which any person becoming a principal
shareholder of a holding company may obtain credit from banks with which the subsidiary bank maintains a
correspondent relationship. -

Under the Federa! Deposit Insurance Act, the OCC possesses the power to prohibit institutions regulated by
it (such as the Bank) from engaging in any activity that would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice or
would otherwise be in violation of the law. ' ' '

Community Reinvestment Act

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, the OCC is required to assess the record of ail financial
institutions regulated by it to determine if these institutions are meeting the credit needs of the community,
including low and moderate income neighborhoods which they serve and to take this record into account in its
evaluation of any application made by any of such institutions for, among other things, approval of a branch or
other deposit facility, office relocation, a merger or an acquisition of bank shares. The Financial Institutions
Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act amended the CRA to require, among other things, that the OCC make
publicly available the evaluation of a bank’s record of meeting the credit needs of its entire community, including
low and moderate income neighborhoods. This evaluation will include a descriptive rating like “outstanding,”.
“satisfactory,” “needs to improve” or “substantial noncompliance” and a statement describing the basis for the
rating. These ratings are publicly disclosed. ) . o
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Bank Secrecy Act -

Under the Bank Secrecy Act, banks and other financial institutions are required to report to thé Internal
Revenue Service currency transactions of more than $10,000 or multiple transactions of which a bank is aware in
any one day that aggregate in excess of $10,000 and to report suspicious transactions under specified criteria. .

- Civil'and criminal penalties are provided under the Bank Secrecy Act for failure to file a required report, for
failure to supply information required by the Bank Secrecy Act or for filing a false or fraudulent report.

+

Capital Requirements / FDICIA

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (FDICIA) requites that institutions be
classified, based on their risk-based capital ratios into one of five defined categories, as illustrated below: well
capllallzed adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically
undercapitalized.'Under these guidelines, the Bank was considered well capitalized as of December 31, 2007.

', o [ ‘ Undera °
\ Total Tier 1 ) Capital
: Risk Risk - Tier 1 Order
Based Based Leverage or
Ratip Ratio Ratio Directive
Capital category
Well-capitalized ........:...... T 210.0% 26.0%  25.0% NO
Adequately capitalized. . . ................ L T 280% 24.0% - 24.00(1)
* Undercapitalized. ... ... e <B.0%  <4.0%  <4.08(1)
Significantly undercapitalized......... S <6.0% <3.0%  <3.0%
Critically undercapitalized. .. ............... ... .. . Tangible equity capital ratio that is < 2%

(1) 3.0 for those banks having the hig_hest available regulatory rating.

In the event an institution’s capital deteriorates to the undercapitalized category or below, FDICIA®
prescribes an increasing amount of regulato:y intervention, including; the institution of a capital restoration plan
and a guaramee of the plan by a parent institution; and the placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of
branches or lines of business, If capital has reached the significantly or critically undercapitalized levels, further
material restrictions can be imposed, including restrictions on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of
management and, in critically undercapitalized situations, appointment of a receiver. For well capitalized
institutions, FDICIA provides authority for rcgulatory intervention where the institution is deemed to be engaging
in unsafe or unsound practices or receives a less than satisfactory examination report rating for asset quality,
management, earnings or liquidity. All but well capitalized institutions are prohibited from accepting brokered
deposns without pnor regulatory approva]

Under FDlC]A financial 1nst1tut|ons are sub_]ect to increased regulatory scrutmy and must comply with
certain operatlonal managerial and compensation standards developed by Federal Reserve Board regulations. As
required by FDICIA, the regulators have adopted guidelines prescribing safety and soundness standards relating
to internal controls, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth and
compensation, fees and benefits.

Annual full-scope, on site regulatory examinations ar¢ required for all FDIC-insured institutions except
institutions with assets-under $500 million that meet certain other criteria may qualify for an 18 month on site
examination cycle, Banks with total assets of $500 million or more are required to have an annual audit of their
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by an independent
public accountant. The independent accountants of banks with total assets of $1 billion or more are required to
attest to the accuracy of management’s report regarding the internal controls of the bank. In addition, such banks
also are required to have an independent audit committee composed of outside directors who are independent of
management, to review with management and the independent accountants, the reports that must be submitted to
the bank regulatory agencies. [f the independent accountants resign or are dismissed, written natification must be
given to the bank’s supervising government banking agencies.




A separate subtitle within FDICIA, called the “Bank Enterprise Act of 1991, requires “truth-in-savings” on
consumer deposit accounts so that consumers can make meaningful comparisons between the competing claims
of banks with regard to deposit accounts and products. Under this provision, a bank is required to provide
information to depositors concerning the terms of their deposit accounts, and in particular, to disclose the annual
percentage yield.

Capital Distributions ‘ ‘

¥

The Corporation is a legal entity separate and distinct from its banking and other subsidiaries. The majority
of the Corporation’s revenue is from dividends paid to the Corporation by.the Bank. The Bank is subject to
various regulatory policies and requirements relating to the amount and frequency of dividend declarations.
Future dividend payments to the Corporation by the Bank will be dependent on a number of factors, including the
earnings and financial condition of the Bank, and are subject to hmltatlons and othier statutory powers of bank
regulatory agencies. .

The National Banking Laws require the approval of the OCC if the total of all dividends declared by a
national bank in any calendar year exceed the net profits of the bank for that year combined with its retained net
profits for the preceding two calendar years. An insured depository institution is prohibited from making any
capital distributions to its owner, including any dividend, if, after makmg such distribution, the depository
institution fails to meet the required mininum level for any relevant capital measure, including the risk- based
capital adequacy and leverage standards previously discussed in the capital requirements section.

Deposit Insurance and Premiums

The Bank’s deposits are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund {DIF) which is administered by the FDIC.
The basic insurance limit is $100,000 per depositor per insured institution. Certain retirement accounts, such as
Individual Retirement Accounts are insured up to $250,000 per deposrtor per insured institution. The FDIC is
authorized to consider inflation adjustments to increase the insurance limits for all deposit accounts every five
years, beginning in 2010. The insurance is backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government.

As insurer, the FDIC imposces deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of,
and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. 1t also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from
engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to the insurance fund.
The FDIC also has the authority to terminate an institution’s deposit insurance if it determines that the institution
has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is in an unsafe or unsound condition. .

During 2006, deposit insurance premiums were assessed based both on the-balance of insured deposits held
as well as the degree of risk the institution poses to the insurance fund with a designated minimum reserve ratio
of 1.25% of estimated insured deposits or such higher reserve ratio as established by the FDIC. The Bank was
classified in the strongest risk category, therefore, had a 0.00% assessment rate in 2006.

On November 2, 2006, the FDIC set the designated reserve ratio for the deposit insurance fund at 1.25% of |
estimated insured deposits and adopted final regulations to implement the risk-based deposit insurance
assessment system mandated by the Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2003, which more closely ties each bank's
deposit insurance assessments to the risk it poses to the deposit i insurance fund. Under the new nsk-based
assessment system, the FDIC evaluates each institution's risk based on three primary factors -- supervisory
ratings for all insured institutions, financial ratios for most institutions, and long-term debt issuer ratings for large
institutions that have them and places the institution into one of four risk categories. The new rates range from 5
1o 43 basis points. The new assessment rates took effect at the beginning of 2007. However, the Deposit
Insurance Reform Act of 2005 provided credits to institutions that paid high premiums in the past to bolster the *
FDIC's insurance reserves, as a result of which a majority of banks had assessment credits to initially offset all of
their premiums in 2007. The Bank was classified in the strongest risk category for 2007 and its.assessment rate.
for 2007 was approximately 5.4 basis points, or $1.1 miltion. The Bank did not pay any premiums during 2007
since its one-time assessment credit of $1.4 million was available to offset the initial assessment in 2007. As of
December 31, 2007, the remaining assessment credit available to offset future deposit insurance assessments was
$343,000. _ ;
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In addition, all insured institutions are required to pay a Financing Corporation (FICO) assessment. FICO is
a government agency- sponsored entity that was formed to borrow money necessary to carry out the closing and
disposition of failed thrift institutions in the 1980’s. The annual FICO rate for all insured institutions as of
December 31, 2007 was 1.14 basis points. These assessments are revised quarterly and will continue until the
bonds mature in the year 2019. The Bank paid FECO premiums of $308,000 in 2007.

Any significant increases in assessment rates or additional special assessments by the FDIC could have an
adverse impact on the results of operations and capltai of the Bank and the Corporation.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 implemented a broad range of corperate governance, accounting and
reporting measures for companies that have securities registered under the Exchange Act, including publicly-held
bank holding companies. The more significant reforms of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 included: (1) new
requirements for audit committees, inctuding independence, expertise, and responsibilities; (2) certification of
financial statcmcents by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting company;

(3) new standards for audltors and regulatlon of audits, including independence provisions that restrict non-audit
services that accountants may provide to their audit clients; (4) increased disclosure and reporting obligations for
the reporting company and their directors and executive officers, including accelerated reporting of stock
transactions and a prohibition on tradlng during pension blackout periods; (5) a range of new and increased cw1l
and criminal penalties for fraud and other violations of the securities laws.

USA Partriot Act

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA Patriot Act) imposés additional obligations on financial institutions, including banks
and broker-dealer subsidiarics, to implement policies, procedures and controls which are reasonably designed to
detect and report instances of money laundermg and the financing of terrorism. In addition, provisions of the
USA Patriot Act require the federal financial institution regulatory agencies to consider the effectiveness of a
financial institution’s anti-money laundering activities when reviewing bank mergers and bank holding company
acqmsntlons

Supervision and Regulation - Cornerstone Companies

The Comnerstone Companies (Cornerstone Financial Consultants, Ltd. (CFC), Cornerstone Institutional
Investors, Inc. (CII) and Comersiotie Advisors Asset Management, Inc. (CAAMY) are subject to regulation by a
number of federal regulatory agencies that are charged with safeguarding the integrity of the securities and other
financial markets and with protecting the interests of customers participating in those markets. The SEC is the
federal agency that is primarily responsible for the regulation of broker-dealers and investment advisers doing
business in the United States. The Federal Reserve Board promulgates regulations applicable to securities credit
transactions involving broker-dealers and certain other institutions. Much of the regulation of CII, as a registered
broker-dealer, however, has been delegated to self-regulatory organizations (SROs), principally FINRA
(Financial industry Regulatory Authority, formerly known as the NASD), its subsidiaries and the national
securities exchanges. These SROs, which are subject to oversight by the SEC, adopt rules (which are subject to
approval by the SEC) that govern the mdustry, momtor daily activity and conduct periodic examinations of '
member broker dealers

CIl CFCand CAAM are re,g,lstered investment advisers with the SEC and are subject to the requirements of
the Investment Advisers Act 0f11940 and the SEC’s regulations, as well as certain state securities laws and
regulations, These requirements relate to limitations on the ability of an investment adviser to charge
performance-based or non-refundable fees to clients, record-keeping and reporting requirements, disclosure -,
requirements, limitations on principal transactions between an adviser or its affiliates and advisory clients, as well
as general anti-fraud prohibitions. CI1, as a broker-dealer registered with the SEC and as a member firm of -
FINRA, is subject to capital requirements of the SEC and the FINRA. These capital requirements specify
minimum levels of capital that CI{ is required to maintain and also limit the amount of leverage that it is able to
obtain in its respective business,




In the event of non-compliance with an applicable regulation, governmental regulators and FINRA, if
concerning Cll, may institute administrative or judicial proceedings that may result in censure, fine, civil
penalties, the issuance of cease-and-desist orders or the deregistration or suspension of the non-compliant broker-
dealer or investment adviser or other adverse consequences. The imposition of any such penalties or orders on the
Comerstone Companies could have a material adverse effect on the Comerstone Compames (and therefore the
Corporation’s) operating results and financial condition.

CIl is a member of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), which is a non-proﬁt corporation
that was created by the United States Congress under the Securities Protection Act of 1970. SIPC protects
customers of member broker-dealers against losses caused by the financial failure of the broker-dealer but not
against a change in the market value of securities in customers’ accounts at the broker-dealer. In the event of the
inability of a member broker-dealer to satisfy the claims of its customers in the event of its failure, the SIPC’s
funds are available to satisfy the remaining claims up to maximum of $500,000 per customer, including up to
$100,000 on claims for cash. In addition, CII’s clearing firm, Pershing LLC, carries private insurance that
provides unlimited account protection in excess of SIPC’s protection.

Changes in Regulations . : ~

From time to time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that could result in -
additional regulation of, and restriction on, the business of the Corporation and the Bank. It cannot be predicted
whether any such legislation will be adopted or, if adopted, how such legislation would affect the business of the
Corporation or the Bank. As a consequence of the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities in the-
United States, the Corporation and the Bank are particularly susceptible to being affected by federal legislation
and regulations that may increase the costs of doing business.

Additional Information . o :

The Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or fumlshed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 are available free of charge on the Corporation’s website (www.hncbank.com under
“Investor Information——Documents”) as soon as reasonably practicable after the Corporation electronically files
such material with, or furnishes it to the Securities and Exchange Commission. These filings are also accessible
on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website (www.sec.gov). In addition, the Corporation makes
available on www, hncbank.com under “Investor Information—Corporate Governance” the following: 1) Audit
Committee Charter, 2) Code of Ethics, which applies to all divectors and all employees, 3} Whistleblower Policy,
4) Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter and 5} Compensation Committee Charter.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The business of the Corporation and the Bank involve significant risks as described below. Additional risks
may arise in the future or risks that are currently not considered significant may also impact the operations of the
Corporation and the Bank. The Corporation may amend or supptement the risk factors described below from time
to time by reports filed with the SEC in the future. Management's ability to analyze and manage these and other
risks could affect the future financial results of the Corporation. If any of the events or circumstances described in
the following risks occurs, the financial condition or results of operations of the Corporation could suffer and the
trading price of the Corporation’s common stock could decline.

Interest rate movements impact the earnings of the Corporation.

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk, through the operations of its banking subsidiary, since
substantially all of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. Interest rate risk arises from market
driven fluctuations in interest rates that affect cash flows, income, expense and value of financial instruments.
The Bank’s earnings, like that of most financial institutions, largely depends on net interest income, which is the
difference between the interest income earned on interest-earning assets, such as loans and investments, and the
interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. In an increasing interest rate
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environment, the cost of funds is expected to increase more rapidly than the interest earned on the loans and
securities because the primary source of funds are deposits with generally shorter maturities than the maturities -
on loans and investment securities. This causes the net interest rate spread to compress and negatively impacts the
Bank’s profitability. The Corporation actively manages its interest rate sensitivity positions. The objectives of -
interest rate risk management are to control exposure of net interest income to risks associated with interest rate
movements and to achieve consistent growth in net interest income. Continued aggesswe pricing by competitors
for loans and deposits may adversely affect the Corporation’s profitability.

The Corporation is exposed to risks in connection with loans the Bank makes and if the allowance for loan losses
is not sufficient to cover actual loan losses, the Corporation’s earnings could decrease.

;

A significant source of risk for the Corporation arises from the possibility that losses will be sustained.
because borrowers, guarantors and related parties may fail to perform in accordance with the terms of their loans.
The Corporation has underwriting and credit monitoring procedures and credit policies, including the
establishment and review of the ailowance for loan losses, that are believed to be adequate to minimize this risk
by assessing the likelihood of nonperformance, tracking loan performance and diversifying loan portfolios. Such
policies and procedures, however, may not prevent unexpected losses that could adversely affect the
Corporation’s results of operations.

The Corporation maintains an allowance for loan losses at a ievel management believes is sufficient to
absorb estimated probable credit losses. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based
on periedic evaluations of the loan portfolio and other relevant factors. However, this evaluation is inherently |
subjective as it requires significant estimates by management. Consideration is given to a variety of factors in
establishing these estimates including historical losses, current and anticipated economic conditions,
diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of internal loan reviews, borrowers’ perceived
financial and management strengths, the adequacy of underlying cotlateral, the dependence on coliateral, or the
strength of the present value of future cash flows and other relevant factors. These factors may be susceptible to
significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional provisions for
loan losses may be required which may adversely affect the Corporation’s results of operations in the future. If
economic conditions weaken in the geographic region served by the Corporation, the allowance may not be
sufficient to cover actual loan losses, which could adversely affect our profitability.

The Corporation's ability to pay dividends is subject to limitations.

The Corporation is a bank holding company and its operations are conducted by direct and indirect
subsidiaries, each of which is a separate and distinct legal entity. Substantially all of the Corporation’s assets are
held by its direct and indirect subsidiarics.

The Corporation’s ability to pay dividends depends on its receipt of dividends from its direct and indirect
subsidiaries. Its principal banking subsidiary, Harleysville National Bank, is its primary source of dividends.
Dividend payments from its banking subsidiaries are subject to legal and regulatory limitations, generally based
on net profits and retained earnings, imposed by the various banking regulatory agencies. The ability of banking
subsidiaries to pay dividends is also subject to their profitability, financial condition, capital expenditures and
other cash flow requircments. There is no assurance that the Corporation’s subsidiaries will be able to pay .
dividends in the future or that the Corporation will generate adequate cash fiow to pay dividends in the future.
The Corporation’s failure to pay dividends on its common stock could have a material adverse effect on the
market price of its common stock.
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Future acquisitions by the Corporation could dilute shareholder ownership of the Corporation and may cause
the Corporation to become more susceptible to adverse economic events.

The Corporation has acquired other companies with its common stock in the past and may acquire or make
investments in banks and other complementary businesses in the future. The Corporation may issue shares of its
common stock in connection with these potential acquisitions and other investments, which would dilute
shareholder ownership interest in the Corporation in the event that shareholders receive consideration in the form
of the Corporation’s common stock. While there is no assurance that these transactions will occur, or that they
will occur on terms favorable to the Corporation, future business acquisitions could be material to the
Corporation, and the degree of success achieved in acquiring and integrating these businesses into the
Corporation could have a material effect on the value of Corporation’s commeon stock. In addition, any such
acquisition could require the Corporation to expend substantial cash or other liquid assets or to incur debt, which
could cause the Corporation to become more susceptible to economic downturns and competitive pressures.

An economic downturn in eastern Pennsvivania or a general decline in economic conditions could adversely
affect the Corporation’s financial resulls.

The Bank’s operations are concentrated in eastern Pennsylvania. As a result of this gcographic
concentration, the Corporation’s financial results may correlate to the economic conditions in this area.
Deterioration in economic conditions in this market area, particularly in the industries on which this geographic
areas depend, or a general decline in economic conditions may adversely affect the quality of the loan portfolio
(including the level of non-performing assets, charge offs and provision expense) and the demand for products
and services, and accordingly, the Corporation’s results of operations. Inflation has some impact on the
Corporation’s and the Bank’s operating costs.

Strong competition within the Corporation's market area may limit its growth and profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. The Bank competes actively with
other eastern Pennsylvania financial institutions, many larger than the Bank, as well as with financial and non-
financial institutions headquartered elsewhere. Commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations,
credit unions, and money market funds actively compete for deposits and loans. Such institutions, as well as
consumer finance, insurance companies and brokerage firms, may be considered competitors with respect to one
or more services they render. The Bank is generally competitive with all competing institutions in its service
areas with respect to interest rates paid on time and savings deposits, service charges on deposit accounts, interest
rates charged on loans and fees for trust and investment advisory services. Many of the institutions with which
the Bank competes have substantially greater resources and lending limits and may offer certain services that the
Bank does not or cannot provide. The Corporation’s profitability depends upon the Bank’s ability to successfully
compete in its market area.

The Corporation operates in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changes in laws
and regulations.

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by certain
state and federal agencies including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as insurer of the Bank’s deposits,
the Board of Governors of the Federat Reserve System, as regulator of the holding company and the Office of the
Comptrolier of Currency. Such regulation and supervision governs the activities in which an institution and its
holding company may engage, and are intended primarily to ensure the safety and soundness of financial
institutions. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory and enforcement activities,
including the imposition of restrictions on operations, the classification of assets and determination of the level of
the allowance for loan losses. Any change in such regutation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory
policy, regulations, legislation or supervisory action, may have a material impact on the Bank’s and the
Corporation’s operations. There are also several federal and state statutes which regulate the obligation and
liabilitics of financial institutions pertaining to environmental issues. In addition to the potential for attachment of
liability resulting from its own actions, a bank may be held liable under certain circumstances for the actions of




its borrowers, or third parties, when such actions result in environmental problems on properties that collateralize
loans held by the bank. Further, the liability has the potential to far exceed the original amount of a loan issued by
the bank.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments - :

None.




Item 2.  Properties

The principal executive offices of the Corporation and of the Bank are located in Harleysville, Pennsylvania in
two, two-story office buildings leased by the Bank, one built in 1929 and the other in 2007. The Bank owns the
buildings in which twenty-two of its branches are located (three branches to be opened during 2008) and leases
space for the other thirty-seven branches (one branch to be opened during 2008) from unaffiliated third parties under
leases expiring at various times through 2036. The Bank leases office space for commercial business development in
Blue Bell and Towamencin, Pennsylvania. The Comerstone Companies lease office space in Bethlehem and
Allentown, Pennsylvanta. " HNC Financial Company leases an office in Wilmington, Delaware. HNC
Reinsurance Company leases an office in Phoenix, Arizona,

Office Location

Owned/Leased

Office

Harleysville Campus 483 Main Street, Harleysville, PA Leased
Harleysville-Meadowbrook 278 Main Street, Harleysville, PA Own‘ed(z’ '
Skippack 3893 Skippack Pike, Skippack, PA Leased
Limerick 260 West Ridge Pike, Limerick, PA Leased
North Wales 1498 North Wales Road, North Wales, PA Leased
Gilbertsville 1050 East Philadelphia Avenue, Gilbertsville, PA Leased
Hatfield 1632 Cowpath Road, Hatfield, PA Leased
Lansdale-North Broad 1804 North Broad Street, Lansdale, PA - Leased ‘
Lansdale-Marketplace 1551 Valley Forge Road, Lansdale, PA Owned?
Normandy Farms Morris Road & Route 202, Blue Bell, PA Leased
Horsham 955 Horsham Road, Horsham, PA I.eased
Meadowood 3205 Skippack Pike, Worcester, PA Leased
Collegeville 364 East Main Sireet, Collegeville, PA Owned .
Sellersville 209 North Main Street, Sellersville, PA Leased ’
Trainers Corner 120 North West End Boulevard, Quakertown, PA Leased
Quakertown Main 224 West Broad Street, Quakertown, PA Owned
Spring House!" 1017 North Bethlehem Pike, Spring House, PA Leased

Red Hill 400 Main Street, Red Hill, PA Leased
Doylestown 500 East Farm Lane, Doylestown, PA Owned?
Audubon 2624 Egypt Road, Norristown, PA Owned®
Chalfont 251 West Butler Avenue, Chalfont, PA Leased
Royersford 440 W. Linfield-Trappe Road, Royersford, PA Owned?
Souderton 702 Route 113, Souderton, PA C Owned?
Foulkeways 1120 Meetinghouse Road, Gwynedd, PA L.cased
Malvern™ 30 Valley Stream Parkway, Malvern, PA Leased
Blue Bell 20 West Skippack Pike, Ambler PA Owned?
Wyomissing!" 2800 State Hill Road, Wyomissing, PA Leased
Lansford 13-15 West Ridge Street, Lansford, PA Leased
Summit Hilf 2 East Ludlow Street, Summit Hill, PA v Leased
Lehighton 904 Blakeslee Blvd, Lehighton, PA . ‘Leased '
Slatington 502 Main Strect, Slatington, PA Leased
Slatington Handi-Bank 7011-705 Main Street, Slatington, PA Leased
Lehigh Township 4421 Lehigh Drive, Walnutport, PA Leased
Palmerton 372 Delaware Avenue, Palmerton, PA Leased
Kresgeville Route 209, Kresgeville, PA Leased
Allentown 1602 Allen Street, Allenton, PA Leased
Pottstown-Train Station One Security Plaza, Pottstown, PA Leased
Pottstown-East End 1450 East High Street, Pottstown, PA Owned
Pottstown-North End 930 North Charlotie Street, Pottstown, PA Leased
Pottstown Center Rt. 100 and Shoemaker Road, Pottstown, PA Owned®
Pottstown-Coventry 2 Glocker Way, Pottstown, PA Owned?
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Office ‘ Office Location Owned/Leased
Boyertown “ Rt. 100 and Bause Road, Boyertown, PA Leased
Douglassville 1191 West Ben Franklin Highway, Douglassville, PA Leased
Dorneyville 3570 Hamilten Boulevard, Allentown, PA Leased
Warminster * 190 Veterans Way, Warminster, PA Owned™
Peter Becker Community _ 815 Maplewood Drive, Harleysville, PA Leased
Warrington® Titus and Easton Roads, Warrington, PA Owned?® -
East Norriton 450 East Germantown Pike, East Norriton, PA Owned®
Conshohacken™ 101 Ridge Pike, Conshohocken, PA Owned®?
Flourtown"’ 1851 Bethlehem Pike, Flourtown, PA Leased
Cedar Crest 1251 § Cedar Crest Bivd, Allentown, PA Leased
Mertztown 951 State Street, Mertztown, PA Leased
Bethlehem 4510 Bath Pike, Bethlehem, PA Leased
Macungie 201 W Main St, Macungie, PA Owned?
Whitehall®? 2985 MacArthur Rd, Whitehall, PA Owned =~
Emmaus 731 Chestnut St, Emmaus, PA Owned
Trexlertown " 6890 Hamilton Blvd, Trexlertown, PA Owned
Emmaus 502 State Ave, Emmaus, PA Owned
Fogelsville 861 N Rt 100, Fogelsville, PA Owned
Emmaus High School 500 Macungie Ave, Emmauys, PA Leased

(1) Locations include Millennium Wealth Mar'lagement and Private Banking offices.

(2) Branch buildings are owned by the Bank and the land is leased.
(3) These branches are expected to open for business in 2008.

In management’s opinion, all of the above properties are in good condition and are adequate for the
Registrant's and the Bank’s purposes. *

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Management, based on consultation with the Corporation’s legal counsel, is not aware of any litigation that
would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Corporation. There are no
proceedings pending other than the ordinary routine litigation incident to the business of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries—the Bank, HNC Financial Company and HNC Reinsurance Company. In addition, no material

proceedings are pending or are known tg bé threatened or contemplated against the Corporation and the Bank by

government authorities.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fourth quafter of 2007 to a vote of holders of the Corporation’s
Common Stock. .




PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
The following table sets forth high and low closing sales prices for the Corporation’s common stock and
quarterly cash dividends paid per share for 2007 and 2006. The Corporation’s stock is traded under the symbol
“HNBC” on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, Ali share information has been restated to reflect stock

dividends and splits. For certain limitations on the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the Corporation, see Item 1,
“Supervision and Regulation—Bank” and Item 8, Note 20, “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—

Regulatory Capital.”

Price of Common Stock and Cash Dividends

Cash dividends

2007 ) High Price  Low Price per share
FirstQuarter .. ... ... ... .. il $20.25 $17.11 $0.20
Second QUATLET . . ... ... ... . ittt 18.13 "15.54 50.20

" Third Quarter ................. 18.58 14.03 $0.20
FourthQuarter.................... N N 17.17 . 1315 50.20

- Cash dividends

2006 ; High Price  Low Price per share
First Quarter(1). .. ...t e $24.90 $18.65 $0.18
Second Quarter(1). ....... ... .. ... e 21.80 18.06 0.18
Third Quarter ............... e 2087 . 18.82 0.19
Fourth Quarter. . ........ e e “21.72 . 1922 0.20

(1) Ad_]usted for a five percent stock dividend effectwe September 15, 2006.

At December 31, 2007, there were 4,172 shareholders of record, not including. the number of PErsons or -
entities whose stock is held in nominee or “street” name through various brokerage firms and banks.

The Corporation has a stock repurchase program that permits the rephrchase of up to five percent of its
outstanding common stock. The repurchased shares will be'used for general corporate purpeses. '

The following table provides information about purchases made by the Corporation of its common stock
during the quarter ended December 31, 2007:

Issuer Purchases of Common Stock

Maximoum

Total Number Number of
of Shares Shares that may
. Weighted Purchased as yet be

Total Number of Average Part of Publicly Purchased

Common Shares Price Paid Announced under the

Purchased Per Share Plans Plans(1)
October 1-31,2007................ — $ — — 731,761
November 1-30,2007.............. - T — — 731,761
December 1-31,2007.............. ‘ o — — 731,761

Total ......................... — — _

(1) On May 12, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized a pian 1o purchase up to 1,416,712 shares (adjusted for
five percent stock dividend paid on September 15, 2006 and September 15, 2005) or 4.9%, of its outstanding

common stock.



Equity Compensation Plan Information

" The followmg table provides information about shares of the Corporation’s stock that may be issued under

ex1stmg equlty compensation plans as of December 31, 2007.

Fl

Number Of Securities To Be Issued ~ Weighted-Averagé Exercise Price
Upon Exercise Of Outstanding Of OQutstanding Options, Warrants

Number Of Securities Remaining Available
For Future Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans, Excluding Securities

i i i Reflected In Column (A
Plan Category Options, Warrants And Rights And Rights Reflected.In Column (A)
(A) (B (B) (%) «m

o $15.74 pesar
Equity Compensation Plans

Not Approved by 02 . -0- 22,824
Stockholders . - . '

TOTAL , 1,113,499 $15.74 per share 1,288,944

(1} Includes options issued under the Corporation’s 1993 and 1998 Stock Incentive Plans, 1998 Independent Director’s
Stock Opticn Plan, 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, options assumed pursuant to the merger & acquisition of
Millennium Bank on April 36, 2004, and options assumed pursuant to the merger & acquisition of East Penn F1nanc1al

Corporation on November 16, 2007."

(2) On December 13, 1996, the Board of Directors autherized the registration of 70,354 shares of common stock for issuance

under the Corporation’s Employee Stock Bonus Plan, On December 24, 1996, in celebration of the Corporation reaching

$1 billion in total assets, 41,685 shares were issued to full and part-time employees of the Corporation’s subsidiaries.
Annually, since 1996, a total of 5,845 shares in the aggregate, have been awarded under this Plan to employees in
recognition of exemplary service during each calendar year. When awarded, the value of shares is based on the closing
price of the Corporation’s common stock as of the close of business on the last business day of the most recently

Compensation,” is incorporated herein by reference.

' ¢
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completed calendar quarter. Registered shares and available shares-under the Plan reflect adjustment for stock dividends.

Additional information on the Corporation’s equity compensation plans included under ltem 8, Note 1, .
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Stock-Based Compensanon and Note 14, “Stock-Based




Shareholder Return Performance Graph

A line graph comparing the yearly change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Corporation’s
common stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S. Companies) Index and the
NASDAQ Bank Stocks Index for the period of 5 fiscal years commencing January 1, 2003, and ending December
31, 2007, follows. The shareholder return shown on the graph below is not necessanly indicative of future
performance

Comparison of Five —Year Cumulative Total Returns
_ Performance Geaph for
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORP
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Prepared by CRSP (wwwermpuchicugo.edu), Center for Research in Seeurity Prires, Graduxte School of Bushess,
1oom The University of Chitsgn. Lised with permission. All rights reserved. Ctopyight 200 |
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,

2007(1) 2006(2) 7005 200403 2003
{Dollars in thousands, except per share information)

Income and expense ) ‘ .
Inferest income . . ............... "8 194,561 $ 178,94k § 151,739 § 127,729  $ 119,200
Interest expense. .. .. ..oy, 112,127 ‘ 95,768 64,618 42,638 40,079
Net interest income . . ............ 82,434 83,173 87,121 85,091 79,121 '
Provision for loan losses™ ;... .... - 10,550 4,200 3,401 " 2,555 3,200
Net interest income after provision .

forloanlosses................ 71,884 78,973 83,720 82,536 75,921
Noninterest income . . ............ £ 43,338 45,348 29,990 28,158 27,638
Noninterest expense ............. 81,355 70,830 62,479 59,561 59,529
Income before income tax expense. . 33.867 53,491 51,231 51,133 44030
Income tax expense. . ....... e 7.272 14,076 - 12,403 12,566 8,697
Netincome .................... $ 26,595 § 39415 $ 38,828 $ 38,567 $ 35333
Per share information(d) . ' o
Basiceamings. ................. 8 0.91 b 1.36 $ . 134 3 1.35 $ 1.28
Diluted earnings . ............... 0.90. 1.34 1.32 1.31 1.24
Cash dividends paid ... .......... 0.8¢ 0.75 0.72 0.65 0.57
Basic average common shares

outstanding . . ... ............. 29,218,671 28,946,847 28,891,412 28,505,392 27,557,04
Diluted average common shares T

outstanding . . ................ 29,459,898 29,353,128 29,490,216 29,465,613 28,505,43
Average balance sheet - '
Loans....... RS $2,123,170 $2,014,420 $1,900,023 $1,625,419 $1,354,127
Investments, ... ...... ......... 944,464 925,635 903,063 941,910 950,225
Other interest-earning assets. ... ... 72,087 79,670 51,740 41,064 28,782
Totalassets . ................... 3,371,304 3,229,224 3,039,186 2,773,405 2,466,070
Deposits . .......... AP 2,557,546 . 2,469,514 2,259,831 2,094,998 - 1,927,899
Borrowed funds. . ....:.......... 471,296 434,938 456,599 372,141, © 270,325
Shareholders’ equity . .. .......... 298,393 281,847 272,974 251,963 216,846
Balance sheet at year-end )
Loans...... B | $2,460,823 $2,047,355 51,985,493 $1,845,802 $1,408,351
Investments. ................... 982,915 911,889 901,208 943,563 924,874
Other lmerest-eammg assets....... 135,473 62,975 37,455 56,291 38,551
Total ASSEtS . - ..o oo, 3,903,001 3,249,828 3,117,359 3,024,515 2,510,939
Deposits ......oovviiiniini... 2,985,058 2,516,855 - 2,365,457 2,212,563 1,979,081
Borrowed funds. . ............... 508,285 389,495 439 168 488,182 255,056
Sharcholders’ equity .. ........... . 339,310 294,751 273,232 270,532 227,053
Performance ratios L
Return on average assets. . ........ 0.79% 1.22% 1.28% 1.3%% 1.43%
Return on-average equity .. ..... .. 891 C13.98 1422 7 15.31 . 1629
Average equity to average . '

assets................ e . 885 873 898 9.08 8.79
Dividend payoutratio ... ......... - 88.82 5526 5340 ., 48,16 . 44.06

m
(2)

)]
- {4

bank properties during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Honesdale branch effective November 10, 2006.

stock splll effective September 15, 2003.

The results of operations include the acquisition of Millennium Bank effective April 30,2004
Adjusted for a five percent stock dividend effective September 15, 2006, Septembcr 15, 2005, September 15, 2004 and 2 ﬁve-for-four
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The results of operations include the acquisition of the East Penn Financial effective November 16, 2007 and the sale lease-back of

The results of operations include the acquisition of the Cornerstene Companies effective January 1, 2006 and the sale of the Bank s




ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is management’s discussion and analysis of the significant changes in the results’of
operations, capital resources and liquidity presented in its accompanying consolidated financtal statements for
‘Harleysville National Corporation (the Corporation), and its wholly owned subsidiaries—Harleysville National *
Bank (the Bank), HNC Financial Company and HNC Reinsurance Company. The Corporation’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations consist almost entirely of the Bank’s financial condition and results
of operations. ' Current performance does not guaranlee and may not be indicative of, similar performance in the
future. The information in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of t
Operations should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s consolidated financiat statements and the
accompanying footnotes under Item 8 and the Forward-Looking Statements on page 3 of this report on
Form 10-K.

v

Critical Accountmg Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation and its subs:dlanes conform to accountmg
principles generally accepted in the United States and general practices with the financial services indusiry. The
Corporation’s significant accounting policies are described in Note | of the consolidated financial statements and
are essential in understanding Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition. In dpplying accountmg policies and preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is
required to make estimates and ‘assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the dates
of the balance sheets and revenues and expenditures for the periods presented. Therefore, actual results could
differ significantly from those estimates. Judgments and assumptions required by management, which have, or
could have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of cperations are ccms:dered
critical accounting estimates. The following is a summary of the policies the Corporation recognizes as involving
critical accounting estimates: Allowance for Loan Loss, Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairment,
Stock-Based Compcnsauon Unreahzed Gains and Losses on Securities Available for Sale, and Deferred Taxes.

Allowance for Loan Losscs. The Corporation maintains an allowance for loan losses at a level management
believes is sufficient to absorb estimated probable credit losses. Management’s determination of the adequacy of
the allowance is based on periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio and other relevant factors. However, this
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires significant estimates by management. Consideration is given (o a
variety of factors in establishing these estimates including historical losses, current and anticipated economic
conditions, diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of internal loan reviews, borrowers’
perceived financial and management strengths, the adequacy of underlying collateral, the dependence on
collateral, or the strength of the present value of future cash flows and other relevant factors. These factors may
be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional
provisions for loan losses may ‘be required which may adversely affect the Corporation’s resuits of operations in
the future.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairment: Goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed for
potential impairment on an annual basis, or more often if events or circumstances indicate that there may be
impairment, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Goodwill is tested for impairment at the
reporting unit level and an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds
its implied fair value. The Corporation employs general industry practicés in evaluating the fair value of i its
goodwill and other intangible assets. The Corporation calculates the fair value using a combination of the
following valuation methods: dividend discount analysis under the income approach, which calculates the present
value of all excess cash flows plus the present value of a terminal value and price/earnings multiple under the
market approach. Management performed its annual review of goodwill and other identifiable intangibles at .
June 30, 2007 and determined there was no impairment of goodwill or-other identifiable intangibles..No
assurance can be-given that future impairment tests will not result in a.charge to eamings.
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Stock-based Compensation: The Corporation recognizes compensation expense for stock options in
accordance with SFAS 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123(R}) adopted at January 1, 2006
under the modified prospective application method of transition. The expense of the option is generally measured
at fair value at the grant date with compensation expense recognized over the service period, which is usually the
vesling period. For grants subject to a service condition, the Corporation utilizes the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model (as used under SFAS 123) to estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. The Black-
Scholes model takes into consideration the exercise price and expected life of the options, the ctirrent price of the
underlying stock and its expected volatility, the expected dividends on the stock and the current risk-free interest
rate for the expected life of the option. For grants subject to a market condition, the Corporation utilizes a Monte’
Carlo simulation to estimate the fair value and determine the derived service period. Compensation is recogmzed
over the derived service périod: with any unrecognized compensation cost immediately recognized when the
market condition is met. The Corporation’s estimate of the fair value of a stock option is based on expectatlons
derived from historical experience and may not necessarily equate to its market vatue when fully vested. In
accordance with SFAS 123(R), the Corporation estimates the number of options for which the requisite service is
expected to be rendered. Prior to-January 1, 2006, the Corporation followed SFAS 123 and APB 25 with pro
Jforma disclosures of net income and earnings per share, as if the fair value-based method of accounting defined
in SFAS 123 had been applied. - .

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Securmes Available for Sale: The Corporation receives estimated fair
values of debt securities from independent valuation services and brokers. In developing these fair values, the
valuation services and brokers use estimates of cash flows based on historical performance of similar instruments
in similar rate environments. Debt securities available for sale are mostly comprised of mortgage-backed
securitie$ as well as tax-exempt municipal bonds and U.S. government agency securities. The Corporation uses
various indicators in determining whether a security is other-than-temporarily 1mpa|red including for equity ~
securities, if the market value is below its cost for an extended period of time with low expectation of recovery or
for debt securities, when it is probable that the contractual intcrest and principal will not be collected. The debt
securities are monitored for changes in credit ratings. Adverse changes in credit ratings would affect the
estimated cash flows of the underlying collateral or issuer. The unrealized losses associated with the securities
portfolio, that management has the ability and intent to hold, are not considered to be other-than temporary as of
December 31, 2007 because the unrealized losses are related to changes in interest rates and do not affect the
expected cash flows of the underlying collateral or issuer. The Corporation recognized an other-than temporary
charge of $55,000 during the third quarter of 2007 as a result of an equity holding in a financial institution which
was purchased by another institution at a lower than cost share price. In conjunction with the closing of the
merger during the fourth quarter of 2007, the Corporation exchanged its equity holding in the financial institution
for cash, .

Deferred Taxes: The Corporation feéognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future effects of
temporary differences, net operating loss carryforwards, and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are subject to
management’s judgment based upon available evidence that future realizations are likely. If management
determines that the Corporation may not be able to realize some or all of the net deferred tax asset in the future, a
charge to income tax expense may be required to reduce the value of the net deferred tax asset to the expected
realizable value,

The Corporation has not substantively changed its application of the foregoing polmes and there have been
no material changes i in assumptions or estimation techniques used as compared to prior penods

Fmanual Overview

.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s dlluted earnings per share were $0 90 compared to
$1.34 for 2006. Net income in 2007 was $26.6 million compared to $39.4 million in 2006. The year-to-date
financial results include the impact on operations from the acquisition of the East Penn Financial Corporation:
effective November 16, 2007 and the related issuance of 2,432,771 shares of the Corporation common stock. The
following is an overview of the key financial highlights for 2007:
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Consolidated total assets were $3.9 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of 20.1% or $653.2 million
over $3.2 billion in total assets reported at December 31, 2006. On November 16, 2007, the Corporation
completed its acquisition of East Penn Financial and its subsidiary, East Penn Bank. At the acquisition date, East
" Penn Financial had approximately $451.1 million in assets, $337.7 million in loans and $382.7 million in
deposits. : ' . ‘

The return on'average shareholders’ equity was 8.91% in 2007 compared to 13.98% in 2006. The return on
average assets was 0.79% in 2007 compared to 1. 22% in 2006. The decrease in these ratios during 2007 was
primarily the result of lower net income. , T “r

Loans increased $413. 5 million and deposits increased $468.2 million, Adjusted for the East Penn Financial
acquisition, organic loan growth was approxxmaiely $81.9 million or4. 0% and deposit growth was approximately
$63.5 million or 2.5%.

Net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis decreased $698 000, or .8%, for the year ending December 31,
2007, over the prior year. The net interest margin for 2007 was 2.82% compared to 2.95% for 2006. The decline
in the net interest margin was mainly attributable to the increased customer deposit costs which outpaced yield
increases in loans and investments. v T '

Nonperforming assets increased $4.3 mlllxon to $22.0 million at December 31, 2007 from $17.6 miillion at
the end of 2006. However, nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assets remained relatively stable at .
0.56% compared to 0.54% ‘at the end of 2006. The provision for loan losses increased $6.4 million mostly as a
result of decreased quality of the loan portfolio. Net charge-offs increased by $4.7 million during-2007 over 2006
largely related to one large real estate loan charge -off and four other unrelated comniercial and industrial loans

Noninterest income decreased $2. 0 mllllon or 4.4% durmg 2007 over 2006, although wealth management fee
income rose $3.9 million or 26.1% and service charges on deposrts increased $1.7 million or 21.1%. During 2007,
the Corporation recog,mzed gains from sale-leaseback transactions of $2.8 million, while during 2006 the o
Corporation recognized gains on the sale of the Honesdale branch and credlt card portfollo of $]0 7 million and $1.4
million, respectively. : . - ‘

Noninterest expenses were up $10.5 million or r 14.9% in 2007 as compared to 2006. Drlvmg these mcreases
were salaries and bencfits expenses primarily due to higher staffing levels resultmg from new branch openings
and the East Penn acquisition. In addition, occupancy expenses increased due to several new office locations
including the new operations center bu1ldmg in Harleysville and four new branch openings as well as the addition
of the East Penn branches. Other expenses increased due to a one-time pre-tax charge of $1.9 million related to
the pension plan curtailment and increased professional and consulting fees. The Corporation changed the
structure of its retirement programs by announcing its intention to terminate the defined benefit pension plan
while enhancing the 401(k) defined contribution savings plan. Going forward, managemem anticipates that
pens10n and 401 (k) expenses will be reduced by approximately $600, OOD annually ;

Acqumnom/Drs'po wnons

Effective November 16, 2007 the Corporation completed 1ts acquisition of East Penn Fmanc1al Under the
terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 15, 2007, as amended August 29 2007, East Penn
Financial was acquired by Harleysville National Corporation and East Penn Financial’s wholly owned subsidiary,
East Penn Bank, a $451 million state chartered, FDIC insured bank offering deposn and lending services
throughout the Lehlbh leley, PA merged with and into the Bank. Heddquartered and founded in Emmaus, PA in
1990, East Pean Bank, had nine banking offices located in Lehigh, Northampton and Berks Counties. The
acquisition expands the branch network that the Corporation has in the Lehigh Valley and its opportunity to
provide East Penn customers with a broader mix of products and services. As part of the merger agreement, East
Penn Bank continues to operate under the East Penn name and logo, and has become a division of the Bank. Nine
of the Bank’s existing branches were transferred to the East Penn division including those in Lehigh, Carbon,
Monroe, and Northampton Counties. The Corporation acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of East Penn
Financial for a total purchase price of $91.3 million. The transaction was accounted for in:accordance with SFAS
No. 141, “Business Combinations.” In connection therewith, 2,890,125 East Penn Financial shares were
exchanged for 2,432,771 shares of the Corporation’s common stock and 3,444,229 East Penn Financial shares
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were exchanged for cash consideration totaling $49.9 million. East Penn Financial stock options of 136,906 were
exchanged for cash consideration of $792,000 and options of 29,092 were exchanged to acquire 25,480 shares of
the Corporation’s common stock options. The allocation of the Corporation’s common stock and cash was such
that the East Penn Financial shareholders did not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes on those
East Penn Financial shares that were exchanged for the Corporation’s common stock in the merger. East Penn
Financial’s results of operations are included in the Corporation’s results from the date of acquisition, November
16, 2007. The transaction is expected to be accretive to the Corporation’s earnings for the fiscal year of 2008,

On March 1, 2007, the Cornerstone Companies, a subsidiary of the Bank, completed a selected asset
purchase of McPherson Enterprises and related entities (McPherson), registered investment advisors specializing
in estate and succession planning and life insurance for high-net-worth construction and aggregate business
owners and families throughout the United States. McPherson became a part of the Cornerstone Companies, a
component of the Bank’s Millennium Wealth Management division. The acquisition is part of the Corporation’s
plan to continue to build its fee-based services businesses. The consideration for the transaction was $1.5 million
in cash. ]

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank completed its acquisition of the Cornerstone Companies, registered
investment advisors for high net worth, privately held business owners, wealthy families and institutional clients.
Located in the Lehigh Valley, Pennsylvania, the firm serves clients throughout Pennsylvania and other mid-
Atlantic states. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price
consisted of $15.0 million in cash paid at closing and a contingent payment of up to $7.0 million to be paid post-
closing. The contingent payment is based upon the Cornerstone Companies meeting certain minimum operating
results during a five-year earn-out period with a maximum payout of $7.0 million over this period. For 2007 and
2006, the minimum operating results were met resulting in earn-out payments totaling $2.2 million which was
recorded as additional goedwill. At December 31, 2007, the remaining maximum payout is $4.8 million through
2010. The Cornerstone Companies results of operations are included in the Corporation’s results from the
effective date of the acquisition, January 1, 2006. '

On December 27, 2007, the Bank settled and closed an agreement to sell fifteen properties to affiliates of
American Realty Capital, LLC ("ARC”) in a sale-leaseback transaction. The properties are located throughout
Berks, Bucks, Lehigh, Montgomery, Northampton, and Carbon counties. Under the leases, the Bank will
continue to utilize the properties in the normal course of business. Lease payments on each property are
institution-quality, triple net leases with an initial annual aggregate base rent of $3.0 million with annual rent
escalations equal to the lower of CPI-U {Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers) or 2.0 percent
commencing in the second year of the lease term. As tenant, thé Bank wili be fully responsible for ali costs
associated with the operation, repair and maintenance of the properties during the lease terms and will be
recorded as occupancy expense. The agreement provides that each lease will have a term of 15 years,
commencing on the closing date for the Agreement. The agreement also contains options to renew for periods
aggregating up to 45 years. Undér certain circumstances these renewal options are subject to revocation by the
lessor. The Bank received net proceeds of $38.2 million and recorded a gain on sale from the transaction of $2.3
million (pre-tax) representing a portion of the total gain of $18.9 million. The remaining gain will be deferred and
amortized through a reduction of occupancy expense over the 15-year term of the leases an annual amount of
$1.1 million. The Corporation also completed a separate sale-leaseback of office in October 2007 receiving net
proceeds of $1.5 million with a recognized pre-tax gain of $473,000. The deferred gain of $552,000 will be
amortized over the 10-year term of the lease. This strategic initiative wilt help the Corporation translate a large
non-earning asset into an eaming asset in the form of loans, which can help boister earnings and increase
liquidity. .

For a five-year summary of financial information, see Item 6, “Setected Financial Data,” which is
incorporated herein by reference. '

For quarterly information for 2007 and 2006, see Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Fourth Quarter 2007 Results,” and Table 16, “Selected Quarterly
Financial Data,” which are incorporated herein by reference.
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Investment Securities

SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” requires that debt and
equity securities classified as available for sale be reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from eamings and reported in other comprehensive income. The net effect of unrealized gains or losses,
caused by marking an available for sale portfolio to market, causes fluctuations in the level of shareholders’
equity and equity-related financial ratios as market interest rates cause the fair value of fixed-rate-securities to
fluctuate. :

Investment securities increased 7.8% to $982.9 million at December 31, 2007 from $911.9 miilion at
December 31, 2006. The invéstment securities available for sale increased $72.6 million and the investment
securities held to maturity decreased $1.5 million. The majority of the increase in available for sale securities is
due to the securities acquired from East Penn Financial of $66.2 million at November 16, 2007, During 2007,
$186.2 million of securities available for sate were sold which generated a pre-tax gain of $1.1 million. The
securities sold consisted primarily of bullet and callable agency, tax-exempt municipal and mortgage-backed
securities. In comparison, $110'8 million of securities available for sale were sold in 2006 which generated-a
pretax loss of $674,000.

-The following table shows the carrying value of the Corporation’s investment securities available for sale
and held to maturity:

Table 1—Investment Portfolio

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 .-
(Dollars in thousands)

Investment securities available for sale:

Obligations of other U:S. government agencies and corporations ... ... . $98,734 3119956 $157,396
Obligations of states and political subdivisions .. ................... 228,436 201,643 173,845
Mortgage-backed SECUMLIES . .. ..o vt ii i 515,989 476,107 467,568
Other SECUrTtIES . . ..ottt et e e 82,409 55304 42,844
Total investment securities available forsale..................... $925,568 $853,010 $841,653
Investment securities held to maturity: ‘ ‘ ' ’
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and corporations ... ... $ 388 S 3856 § 3,843
Obligations of states and political subdivisions . .................... 53,479 55,023 ° 55,712
Total investment securities held to maturity, . ................ ... $57,347 § 58879 § 59,555

. The maturity analysis of investment securities including the weighted average yield for each category as of
December 31, 2007 is as follows. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers and
borrowers may have the right 1o call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
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Table 2-—Maturity and Tax-Equivalent Yield Analysis of Investment Securities

December 31, 2007
. . Due after * Due after
. ‘ } Duein 1 year 1 year through 5 years through Due after
or less 5 years 10 years 10 years Total
- . i {Dollars in thousands) '
Investment securities available for sale: . . o
Obligations of other U.S. government - ' : : . .
agencies and corporations:
Fairvalue................... io.oo. o 313,693 $34942 - $47,092 $ 3,007 § 98,734
Weighted average vield . . ... ., DU 7% 446% 6.67% ' 5.20% ' 5.48%
Weighted average maturity .. ........ _ . 3.8 years
Obligations of states and political ‘ '
subdivisions: ’ - _ , S, R
Fairvalue. . ...........ovvnn.s. S — 415 52,489 175532 - 228436
Weighted average yield(1)........ ... —% 5.15% . 585% 6.28% - 6.18%
Weighted average maturity ... ... ... . 6.1 years
Mortgage-backed sccurities:
Fairvalue............. DU 837 19,566 65,027 430,559 515,989
Weighted average yield ... .......... 3.42% 4.05% 4.69% 533% 5.20%
Weighted average maturity .......... . R 5.7 years
Other debt securities: ' _
Fairvalue......................... 6,532 7,921 2,000 36,927 53.380
"Weighted average yield ............. 4.11% 5.14% 4.23% 6.20% 5.71%
Weighted average maturity .......... - , 183 years
Equity securities; . : -
Fairvalue......................... — — — — 29,029
Weighted average yield ......... ... - —% —% - —% —% . 5.47%
Total investment securities available for '
sale: : . .
Fairvalue. .. ... .................. $21,062 $62,844 $166,608  $646,025 $925,568
Weighted averageyield .. ... ..., 3.83% 4.42% 5.56% 5.64% 5.51%
Weighted average maturity. . ... .. .. . ) 6.3 years
Investment securities held to maturity: _ ' '
Obligations of other U.S. government
agencies and corporations: ‘
Amortized cost . ......... e 8 = 5 — 8 — $3,868 | $3,868.
Weighted average yield .. ........... —% —% —%  542%  5.42%
Weighted average maturity .. ... P e 10.5 years
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions: :
Amortized Cost. ............. P — — 3,598 49,881 53,479
Weighted average yield{1)......... .. —% —% 6.02% 6.69% 6.65%
Weighted average maturity .......... ‘ 2.7 years
TFotal investment securities held to
maturity: -
Amortized Cost ... ................ $ — $§ — $ 3,598 $53,749 $57,347
Weighted average yield .. .. ... PR —% —% 6.02% . 6.60% 6.56%
Weighted average maturity......... : 3.2 years

(1) Weighted average yield on nontaxable investment securities is shown on a tax equivalent basis (tax rate of
35%).
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Loans

Loans increased $413.5 million in 2007. The acquisition of East Penn Financial accounted for $337.7
million as of November 16, 2007. Organic growth was approximately $81.9 million, or 4.0%. At the acquisition
date, East Penn Financial included $58.7 million in real estate loans, $239.0 million in commercial loans, and
$40.0-million in consumer loans. The growth in commercial loans and real estate loans was mainly due to the
emphasis on owner-operated businesses and owner occupied commercial mortgage loans in its primary market.
The growth in consumer loans was mainly due to marketing efforts. In addition, there was also a shift from
variable rate home equity lines to fixed rate, fixed payment home equity loans. The planned reduction in lease
financing was due to run-off. One of the Bank’s strategic objectives is to increase its loan to deposit ratio by
growing its loan portfolio at a faster pace than its deposits. Loans increased $61.9 million, or 3.1% in 2006,
primarily attributed to growth in commercial and industrial, commercial real estate and residential mortgage

loans.
The following table shows the composition of the Bank’s loans, net of deferred costs:

Table 3—Composition of Loan Portfolio

: December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 - 2003
. Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Amount of Loans Amount ofLoans Amount of Loans Amount_ of Loans _Amount of Loans
(Dollars in thousands)

Realestate ... § 959,064 3% § 845880 4% -$ 791,358 404§ 693468 I?%  § 498,135 3%
Commercial , . . \ .

and industrial 730,144 30% 507,899 25% 479,238 24% 473,514 26% 385,554 2%
Consumer. . . . 769,051 % 685,988 " 34% 697373 3% 645,718 35% 463,492 3%
Lease '

financing . . 2,564 —% 1,588 _—% 17,524 1% 33102 2% 61,210 . 4%

Total ..... $2,460,823  100% 52,047,355 1007 $1,985493 100% 81,845,802 1000 §1.408391  100%

E———== _— ———— _— _— el E—— — ——— —_—

The ﬂ')llow'ing table details outstanding loans by type as of December 31, 2007, in terms of contractual
maturity date:

Table 4—Selected Loan Maturity Data

December 31, 2007
] Due after .
Due in 1 year Due after
I year or less through 5 vears 5 vears Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Realestate. ... .....oovnvennenn oty $183,969 $508,448 $266,647 § 959,064
Commercial and industrial. ................ 162,486 235,321 332,337 730,144
CONSUMEL . ..o\ttt aeaeaenns 224,034 219,506 325,511 769,051
Lease financing. ......................... 2,220 344 — 2,564

Total ... $572,709 $963.619 $924,495 $2,460,823
Loans with variable or floating interest

1 {1 $364,868 $260,155 $338,674 § 963,697
Loans with fixed predetermined interest rates . 207,841 703,464 585,821 1497126

Total ... $572,709 $963.,619 $£924,495 $2,460,823

The Bank had no concentration of loans to individual borrowers which exceeded 0% of total loans at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Bank actively menitors the risk of loan concentration. The Bank had no
foreign loans, and the impact of nonaccrual and delinquent loans on total interest income was not material.
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Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include toans that are in nonaccrual status or 90 days or more past due and loans that
are in the process of foreclosure. A loan is generally classified as nonaccrual when principal or interest has - . .
consistently been in default for a period of 90 days or more, when there has been deterioration in the financial
condition of the borrower, or payment in full of principal or interest is not expected. Delinquent loans past due -
90 days or more and still accruing interest are loans that are generally well-secured and expected to be restored to
a current status in the near future.

Nonperforming assets (including nonaccrual loans, loans 90 days or more past due and net assets in
foreclosure) were 0.56% of total assets at December 31, 2007, compared to 0.54% at December 31, 2006 and
0.27% at December 31, 2005. The ratio of nonperforming loans to total net loans was 0.90% at December 31,
2007, compared to 0.87% at December 31, 2006 and 0.42% at December 31, 2005.

Nonaccruing loans increased $5.9 million to $21.1 million at December 31, 2007, as compared to .
December 31, 2006. The higher level of nonaccruing loans was mainly due te an increase in nonaccrual
commercial construction, home equity revolving and installment loans during 2007 offset by a decrease in non-
accrual commercial mortgages. Nonaccruing loans increased $7.7 million to $15.2 million at December 31, 2006,
as compared to December 31, 2005. The increase in nonaccruing loans was principally due to an increase in non-
accrual commercial mortgage loans during 2006. The Bank’s policy for interest income recognition on
nonaccrual loans is to recognize income under the cash basis when the loans are both current and the collateral on
the loan is sufficient to cover the outstanding obligation to the Bank. The Bank will not recognize income if these
factors do not exist. During 2007, interest accrued on nonaccruing loans and not recognized as interest income
was $982,000 and interest paid on nonaccruing loans of $331,000 was recognized as interest income. During
2006, interest accrued on nonaccruing loans and not recognized as interest income was $788,000 and interest paid
on nonaccruing loans of $191,000 was recognized as interest income. During 2005, interest accrued on
nonaccruing loans and not recogmzed as interest income was $310,000, and interest paid on nonaccrumg loans of
$250,000 was recognized as interest income.

Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest are loans that are generally well secured and are in
the process of collection. As of December 31, 2007, loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest
were $857,000, compared to $2.4 million at Dccember 31, 2006 and $846,000 at December 31, 2005. The lower
level of loans past due 90 days or more at December 31, 2007 from December 31, 2006 was primarily in the
commercial loans, commercial mortgages, home equity revolving lines and home equity installment loans. The
higher level of loans past due 90 days or more at December 31, 2006 compared to December 31, 2005 was
primarily in the commercial and residential real estate loan portfolio.

The expectation of continued economic pressures resulting in deterioration of credit quality has caused us to
provide more resources to resolve troubled credits including an increased focus on earlier identification of
potential problem loans and a more active approach to managing the level of criticized loans that have not
reached nonacciual status.

Net assets in foreclosure at December 31, 2007 were $28,000. There were no net assets in foreclosure at
December 31, 2006 and $29,000 at December 31, 2005. Efforts to liquidate assets acquired in foreclosure
proceed as qu:ck]y as potential buyers can be located and legal constraints permit. Foreclosed assets are carried at
the lower of cost (lesser of carrying value of the asset or fair value at date of acqutsmon) or estimated fair value.
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The following table presents information concerning nonperforming assets. Nonperforming assets include
loans that are in nonaccrual status or 90 days or more past due and loans that are in the process of foreclosure.

Table S—Nonperforming Assets

December 31
: ) " (Dollars in thousands) ‘

Nonaccrualloans ........... ... eviunn. $21,091 $15201 $7.493 $4,705 $3,343
Loans 90 days or more pastdue ............. 857 2,44 846 981 1,164

Total nonperforming loans. .. ............. 21,948 17,645 8,339 5,686 4,507 cy
Net assets in foreclosure. . . .........c.ovis 28 - .29 370 935 :

Total nonperforming assets .. ............. $21,976 $17,645. $£8368 $6,056 35,442
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming .

loans . ..o e 124.5% 119.9% 238.2% 3246% 371.7%
Nonperforming loans to total loans. . ......... < 0.90% 087% 042% 031% 032%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans . .. .. .. 1.11% 1.03% 1.00% 1.00% 1.19%
Nonperforming assets to total assets. . ........ 0.56 % 0.54% 027% 020%  0.22%

Locally located real estate, most with acceptable loan to value ratios, secures many of the nonperforming
loans. ' '

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Corporation uses the reserve method of accounting for loan losses. The balance in the allowance for
loan losses is determined based on management’s review and evaluation of the loan portfolio in relation to past
loss experience, the size and composition of the portfolio, current economic’ events and conditions, and other
pertinent factors, including management’s assumptions as to future delinquencies, recoveries and losses.

Increases to the allowance for loan losses are made by charges to the provision for loan losses. Credit exposures
deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of previously charged-
off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

While management considers the allowance for loan losses to be adequate based on information currently
available, future additions to the allowance may be necessary due to changes in economic conditions or |
management’s assumptions as to future delinquencies, recoveries and losses and management’s intent with regard
to the disposition of loans. In addition, the OCC, as an integral part of their examination process, penodlcally
reviews the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses. The OCC may require the Corporation to recognize
additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the
time of their examination.

The Corporation performs periodic evaluations of the allowance for loan losses that include both historical, -
internal and external factors. The actual allocation of reserve is a function of the application of these factors to
arrive at a reserve for each portfolio type. Management assigns credit ratings and individual factors to individual
groups of loans. Changes in concentrations and quality are captured in the analytical metrics used in the '
calculation of the reserve. The components of the allowance for credit losses consist of both historical losses and
estimates. Management bases its recognition and estimation of each allowance component on certain observable
data that it believes is the most reflective of the underlying loan losses being estimated. The observable data and
accompanying analysis is directionally consistent, based upon trends, with the resulting component amount for
the allowance for loan losses. The Corporation’s allowance for loan losses components includes the following:
historical loss estimation by loan product type and by risk rating within each product type, payment (past due)
status, industry concentrations, internal and external variables such as economic conditions, credit policy and
underwriting changes and resuits of the loan review process. The Corporation’s historical loss component is the ’
most significant component of the allowance for loan losses, and all other allowance components are based on the
inherent loss attributes that management believes exist within the total portfolio that are not captured in the: !
historical loss component. . J . K
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The historical loss components of the allowance represent the results of analyses of historical charge-offs
and recoveries within pools of homogeneous loans, within each risk rating and broken down further by segment,
within the portfolio. Criticized assets are further assessed based on trends, expressed as percentages, relative to
delinquency, risk rating and nonaccrual, by credit product.

The historical loss components of the allowance for commercial and industrial loans and commercial real
estate loans (collectively “commercial loans™) are based principally on current risk ratings, historical loss rates
adjusted, by adjusting the risk window, to reflect current events and conditions, as well as analyses of other
factors that may have affected the collectibility of loans. All commercial loans with an outstanding balance over
$500,000 are subject to review on an annual basis. Samples of commercial loans with a “pass” rating are
individually reviewed annually. Commercial loans that management determines to be potential problem loans are
individually reviewed at a minimum annually. The review is accomplished via Watchlist Memorandum, and is
designed to determine whether such loans are individuaily impaired, with impairment measured by reference to
the collateral coverage and/or debt service coverage. Consumer credit and residential real estate reviews are
limited to those loans reflecting delinquent payment status. Homogeneous loan pools, including consumer and t-
4 family residential mortgages are not subject to individual review but are evaluated utilizing risk factors such as
concentration of one borrower group. The historical loss component of the allowance for these loans is based
principally on loan payment status, retail classification and historical loss rates, adjusted by altering the risk
window, to reflect current events and conditions.

Thé industry concentration component is recognized as a possible factor in the estimation of oan losses, Two
industries represent possible concentrations: commercial real estate and consumer loans relying on residential home
equity. No specific Joss-related observable data is recognized by management currently, therefore no specific factor
is calculated in the reserve solely for the impact of these concentrations, although management continues to
carefully consider relevant data for possible future sources of observab]e data.

The historic loss model includes a judgmental component (env:ronmental factors) that reﬂects management’s.
belief that there are additional inherent credit losses based on loss attributes not adequately captured in the lagging
indicators. The environmental factors are based upon management’s review of trends in the Corporation’s
primary market area as well as regional and national economic trends. Management utilizes various economic
factors that could impact borrowers’ future ability to make loan payments such as changes in the interest rate-
environment, product supply shortages and negative industry specific events. Management utilizes relevant
articles from newspapers and other publications that describe the economic events affecting specific geographic
areas and other published economic reports and data. Furthermore, given that past-performance indicators may not
adequately capture current risk levels, allowing for a real-time adjustment enhances the validity of the loss
recognition process. There are many credit risk management reports that are synthesized by credit risk management
staff to assess the direction of credit risk and its instant effect on lossés. It is important to continue to use experiential
data to confirm risk as measurable losses will continue to manifest themselves at higher than normal levels even
afier the economic cycle has begun an upward swing and lagging indicators begin to show improvement. The
judgmental component is allocated to the specific segments of the portfolio based on the historic loss component.

The provision for loan losses increased $6.4 million during 2007 compared to 2006 mostly as a result of a
decrease in the quality of the loan portfolio which caused an increase in the amount of the required reserve. Net
loans charged-off increased $4.7 million for 2007 compared to 2006 principally from charge-offs related to real
estate construction loans for one borrower which were disposed of subsequent to September 30, 2007 through a
sale of the collateral and four unrelated commercial and industrial loans. The profile of our customer base has
remained relatively constant and we believe that the current deterioration in credit quality has been caused by the
economic pressures being felt by our borrowers. We have experienced a similar decline in the past and expect
that we could experience a simitar decline in future economic cyctes. The provision for loan losses for 2006
reflected an increase of $799,000 compared to the 2005 primarily due to 1nherent risk related to loan grow1h and
the increase in non-performing loans of $9.3 million.

The allowance for loan losses increased $6.2 million, or 29.2%, to $27.3 million at December 31, 2007 as
compared to December 31, 2006. The increase in the allowance was primarily due to the addition of the East
Penn Financial loan loss reserve in November 2007 as well as the inherent risk related to loan growth and the
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increase in nonperforming loans of $4.3 million. The allowance for loan losses increased $1.3 million, or 6.5%,
to $21.2 million at December 31, 2006 from December 31, 2005.. The increase in the allowance was mainly due
to inherent risk related to loan growth and the increase in nonperforming loans-of $9.3 million:

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Table 6—Allowance for Loan Losses

Deocmber 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
' . (Dollars in thousands) -

Averageloans .................... $2,123,170 $2,014,420 $1,900,023 $1,625,419 $1,354,127
Allowance, beginning of )

VAT . i e $ 21,154 $ 19,865 $ 18455 -§ 16,753 $ 17,190
Loans charged off: . '

Realestate..................... 4,847 1,047 83 - 208 1,311

Commercial and industrial . ... .. .. ' 1,551 1,141 353 522 515

Consumer . .........cvovvinnuns 1,693 1,481 2,123 1,921 2,173

Lease financing. . .. ............. 51 42 188 883 556

Total loans charged off. . ... .... v 8,142 3,711 3,047 3,534 4,555

Recoveries: o ‘ o L. N

Realestate..................... 72 138 © 7 326 307 80

Commercial and industrial .. . ... .. 142 - 55 66 . 58 33

Consumer ..................... - 283 519 ' 586 496 685 -

Lease financing.......... P 19 - 88 78 © 143 120

Total recoveries .............. ) 516 800 1,056 1,004 © 918

Net loans charged off .. ........ . 7,626 - 2911 1,991 2,530 3,637
Reserve from East Penn Financial .

acquisition. ........... .. ... 3,250 — — 1,677 —
Provision for loan losses, .......... . 10,550 4200 -« 3401 2,555 3,200
Allowance, end of year............. _-§ 27.328 $ 21,154 $ 19865 § 18455 § 16,753
Ratio of net charge offs to average B ' ' i

loans outstanding ............... 0.36% 0.14% 0 | 0.16% 0.27%

The factors affecting the allocatron of the allowance during 2007 were changes in credit quality resulting
from increases in criticized real estate construction loans and increases in loan volume from the East Penn
Financial acquisition. The allocation of the allowance for real estate loans at December 31, 2007 increased $2.6
million as compared to December 31, 2006 principally due to an increase in criticized real estate construction
loans including a loan for one borrower totaling $7.8 million. The loan is part of a syndicated credit for a local
borrower that has been negatively affected by a decline in home sales. The allocation of the allowance for
commercial and industrial loans at December 31, 2007 increased $3.2 million from December 31, 2006 mostly
due to an increase in commercial loan volume from the East Penn Financial acquisition. In addition, the
allocation of the allowance for consumer toans at December 31, 2007 increased $444,000 primarily due to the
increased level of consumer loans related to the East Penn acquisition, There was no material changes in the
allocation of the allowance for lease financing at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006. There
were no significant changes in the estimation methods and assumptions including environmental factors, foan
concentrations or terms that impacted the allowance during 2007. The interest rate environment as well as
weakening in the commercial real estate market has moderately increased our allowance allocation in concert
with the historical trends. It is expected that the negative trends in the real estate industry will continue to affect .
credit quality for the remainder of 2007 and into 2008. The growth in the loan portfolio and the change in the mix
will result in an adjustment to the amount of the allowance allocated 1o each category based upon historical loss
trends and other factors.
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The following table sets forth an allocation of the allowance for loan losses by category. The specific
allocations in any particular category may be reallocated in the future to reflect then current conditions.
Accordingly, management considers the entire allowance to be available to absorb losses in any category.

Table 7—Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses by Loan Type

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of - .of . of of of
i Amount  Allowance Amount Allowance Amount  Allowance Amount Allowance Amount  Allowance
: ] ‘ (Dollars in thousands) _
’ Realestate ........... $10,491 %% 37918 . I8% $6,422 3% § 4923 2% % 3919 23%°
Commercial and . ,
industrial .......... 12,340 45% 9,119 43% 8,534 43% 7,456 40% 6,840 41%
Consumer. ........... 4,485 17% 4,041 %% 4,596 23% 5,515 30% 4,990 3P -
Lease financing .. .. ... 12 * 6. % 3y 2% 561 3% 1,006 6%
Total ............. $27,328 100%  $§21,154 &)% $19,865 &l% $18.455 1_00% $16,753 _l___O?A:

lnvéstment in Bank

The Corporation acquired an investment in Berkshire Bancorp, the holding company of Berkshire Bank,
through the East Penn Financial acquisition. As of December 31, 2007, the total investment in Berkshire -
Bancorp, Inc. was $2.6 million represented by 543,783 shares, resulting in a 17.97% ownership in consideration
of the combined ownership of the Corporation, its directors and officers. The Corporation is considered tobe a
passive investor under a Crown X Agreement which imposes cértain restrictions on the Corporation. The
Corporation is entitled to purchase additional share of common stock from Berkshire Bank up to 24.9% of the
outstanding shares of common stock at any time up to July 3,,2013 at an exercise price of $4.10, which is
adjusted for stock splits. The investment is included in other assets at its cost basis.

Deposits and Borrowings

Deposits and borrowings are the primary funding sources of the Corporation. Core deposits increased 7.1%, or
$118.1 million, to $1.8 bitlion at December 31, 2007, up from $1.7 billion at December 31, 2006. This growth is .
due to $185.2 million acquired from East Penn Financial at November 16, 2007 and an organic decrease of
approximately $67.2 million. Total deposits increased $468.2 miilion, or 18.6% for the same period, which was
primarily attributable to deposits associated with the acquisition of East Penn Financial of $382.7 million at
acquisition date and growth in time deposits. The Corporation continued its emphasis on government banking to
provide additional funding sources through relationships with municipalities and school districts resultmg in both
interest-bearing checking accounts and large time deposits.

Deposit Structure

The following table is a distribution of average balances and average rates patd on the deposit categories for
the last three years:

Table 8—Average Deposits - o . .

December 31, . '
2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate '
: (Dollars in thousands)
Demand—noninterest-bearing. ............. $ 312,011, —% § 333406 —% § 335, 962 —%
Demand—interest-bearing . . ............... 517,520 3.52% 450,256 3.24% 351,071 1.64%
Money market and savings. ................ 864,062 3.45% 836,940 291% 889,332 1.86%
Time deposits . ... . e e . 863,953 4.78% 848912 4294 683,466 3.56%
Total interest-bearing deposits. . ........., $2,245,535 3.98% $2,136,108 3.53% $1,923 869 2.42%
Total deposits ...............c....... $2,557,546 $2.469514 $2,259.831
|
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The maturity distribution of certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over as of December 31, 2007 is as
follows;

Table 9—Maturity Distribution of Certificates of Deposit $100,000 and Over

(Dollars
. in thousands)
Three monthsorless .............. e e e $185,640
Over three months to six months. . ................. e 88,555
Oversixmonthstotwelve months ... ... .. o i i 95,583
Overtwelve months . . ...ttt iei e eaaeen [ 113,902
Total ..o e P FETRRIE - $483,680 .

Borrowings

_ Borrowings increased $118.8 million to $508.3 at December 31, 2007 from $389.5 million at December 31,
2006. The Corporation decreased long term debt with the Federal Home Loan Bank by $23.0 million while
increasing long-term securities sold under agreement to repurchase by $105.0 million. Subordinated debt
increased to $83.0 million at December 31, 2007. The Corporation completed a private placement of $22.5
million in aggregate principal amount of fixed/floating rate preferred securities (subordinated debt) through a
newly formed Delaware Trust affiliate HNC Statutory Trust [V on August 22, 2007. The Corporation acquired
$8.2 million of subordinated debt from East Penn Financial on November 16, 2007.

Borrowings decreased $49.7 million to $389.5 million at December 31, 2006 from $439.2 million at
December 31, 2005. The decrease was the result of reductions of $58.0 million in long-term Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB) borrowings offset in part by increases of $8.3 million in short-term borrowings. C

The Bank, pursuant to a designated cash management agreement, utilizes securitics sold under agreements to.
repurchase as vehicles for customers’ sweep and term investment products. Securitization under these cash
management agreements are in U.S. Treasury Securities and obligations of states and political subdivisions
securities. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are generally overnight transactions. These securities
are held in a third-party custodian’s account, designated by the Bank under a written custodial agreement that
explicitly recognizes the Bank’s interest in the securities.

At or for the vear ended December 31,

Table 10—Securities Sold under Agreemenfs to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase(l): 2007 2006 2005

’ . - (Dollars in thousands) i
Balance atyear-end ......... ... i $ 101,493 § 96,840 § 88118
Weighted averagerate at year-end .................. A < 3.60% 4.61% 3.45%
Maximum month-end balance....«...... ... ... ..o $105,205- $100,944 §$155,239
Average balance during the year. ... ... e $121,392- $128,185 §$102,722
Weighted average rate during the year . ............./ A _ 4.46% 4.37% 2.64%

(1) Excludes long-term securities sold under agreements to repurchase with private entities of $105 million at December 31, 2007.

Results of Operations

Net income is affected by five major elements: (1) net interest income, or the difference between interest
income earned on loans and investments and interest expense paid on deposits and borrowed funds; (2) the,
provision for loan losses, or the amount added to the allowance for loan losses to provide reserves for inherent
losses on loans; (3) noninterest income, which is made up primarily of certain fees, wealth management income,,
and gains and losses from sales of securities or other transactions; (4) noninterest expense, which consists
primarily of salaries, employee benefits and other operating expenses; and (5) income taxes. Each of these major
elements is reviewed in more detail in the following discussion.

33




Net Interest Income

Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis in 2007 decreased $698,000, or .8% to $88.5 million,
compared to 2006. During 2007, the Corporation experienced higher deposit costs offset in part by yield
increases in loans and investments; Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis in 2006 decreased $4.3 million,
or 4.6% to $89.2 million, in comparison to 2005. The decrease in 2006 was mostly due to higher deposit rates,
partially offset by higher loan rates and loan volume.

The rate volume analysis in the following table, which is computed on a tax-equivalent basis (tax rate of
35%), analyzes changes in net interest income for the last three years by their volume and rate components The
change atiribuiable 10 both volume and rate has been allocated proportionately.

Table 11—;-Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income—Fully Taxable-Equivalent Basis

2007 compared to 2006 2006 compared to 2065
Wet Due 1o Change in Net Due to Change in
+ _Chanpe Volume Rate Change Volume _ Rate
(Dollars in ¢ ousands) . .

.

Increase (decrease) in interest income:

Al .
' . . 8

Investment securities(1) .. .................. $4935 $953 $3982 $5611 S$1019 § 4 592
Federal funds sold and deposits in banks . ..... i) (376) 101y 2,416 1134 1 282
Loans(12) -+ ovegenriiiieenens .- 11,203 7349 3,854 18843 7244 _ 11599

Total. ..o 15,661 7926 7,935 26870 9,397 17,473

Increase (decrease).in interest expense: .

Savings and maney market deposits . ... Lee. . 90747 2992 6082 16587 874 15713
Time deposits . ... ..vvereriieiiin ., . 4849 651 4,198 12,130 6,567 5,563
Borrowed funds............ ... ... L 2,436 1,730 706 2,433 (8&1) 3,314

Total......... T [P R, - 16,359 5373 10,986 31,150 6,560 24,590
Net (decrease) increase in interest income . . . .. $ (698) $2,553 5(3,251) $(4.280) $2,837 $7,117)

(1) The interest carned on ‘nontaxable investment securlues and ]oans 1s shown on 4 tax- equwa]ent basis U usm1= a
tax rate of 35%, net. Tea e '

(2) Nonaccrual loans have been included in the appropriate average loan balance category, but interest on
nonaccrual loans has not been included for purposes of determining interest income.

Interest income on a tax-equivalent basis in 2007 increased $15.7 million, or 8.5% to $200.6 million, in
comparison to 2006. The increase was primarily due to higher average loans of $108.8 million, or 5.4%, and a 19
basis point rise in the average rates camed on loans. The growth in average loans during 2007 was mainly’
attributable to higher levels of new commercial and industrial criginations and real estate loan originations,
including both construction and consumer and loans acquired from East Penn Financial, partialiy offset by a
lower level of real estate refinancing loans due to the higher interest rate environment. The average yield on
investments also increased 42 basis points. Interest expense increased $16.4 million, to $112.1 million during
2007 mostly attributed to higher deposit rates and an increase in average deposits of $109.4 million. The average
rate paid on deposits during 2007 of 3.98% was 45 basis points higher compared to 2006 primarily due to higher
rates on money market accounts, interest checking accounts and time deposits accounts. The increase in average.
deposits was mostly from growth in interest-bearing checking and money market accounts as well as deposits
acquired from East Penn Financial partially offset by reductions in savings accounts, The Corporation has placed
more emphasis on lower rate deposit products in an effort to improve the net interest margin.

Interest income on a tax-equivalent basis in 2006 increased $26.9 million, or 17.0% to $185.0 million, as
compared to 2005. The increase was primarily due to higher average loans of $114.4 million, or 6.0%, and a 59
basis point rise in the average rates earned on loans. The average yield on investments also increased 50 basis
points. [nterest expense increased $31.2 miltion, to $95.8 'million during 2006 mostly attributed to higher deposit
and borrowing rates. The average rate paid on deposits during 2006 of 3.53% was 111 basis points higher
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compared to 2005 primarily due to higher rates on most deposit products. These higher rates resulted from the ,
continued increase in short-term rates during 2006. The average rate paid on borrowings for 2006 of 4.69% was .
75 basis points higher than 2005 mainly due to an increase in short-term borrowing rates.

Net Interest Margin

The 2007 net interest margin of 2.82% was lower than the net interest margins for 2006 and 2005 of 2.95%
and 3.27%, respectively. The decline in the net interest margin during 2007 and 2006 was mainly. attributable to
the increased customer deposit costs which outpaced yield increases in loans and investments.

During 2007, the Corporation continued to manage its balance sheet in an effort to position it for the
inverted yield curve and subsequent falling rates scenario. The Corporation sold securities with lower fixed rates
and longer average lives and purchased securities with higher yields to take advantage of specific market sectors
and more stable cash flows. As a result, the balance sheet is better positioned to mitigate market risk.

The table below presents the major asset and liability categories on an average basis for the periods
presented, along with interest income and expense, and key rates and yields:

- Table 12—Average Balance Sheets and Interest Rates—Fully Taxable—Equivalent Basis

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
> Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
{Dollars in thonsands)

Assets
Eaming Assets:
Investment securities: : !
Taxable investments . ... ............ § 681,788 $34803 510% 5 672,648 $30296 4506 § 648630 523923 1.6%

Nontaxable investments{1). . ........ .. 282676 15849 6.03 252,987 15421 6.10 254,433 16,183  6.36
Total investment securities. ... ...... 944,464 50,652 536 925,635 45717 4.9 903,063 40,106 4.44
Federal funds sold and deposits in : - o
banks . . ... ... .. s 72,087 3576 4.9 79.670 4051 500 51,740 1,637 316
Loans(1)(2). ... ..o vvvi i 2,123,170 146400  6.90 2,014,420 135,197 671 £900,023 116,354  6.12
Total eamingassets. . .. ........... 3,139,721 200,628 639 3,019,725 184967 6.13 2.854,826 158,097 554
Noninterest-eaming assets . ... ............ 231,583 209,459 ’ 184,360
Totalasseds .............v0 s $3,371.304 83,2292 53,039,186
. I— ] = —_—

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:

Savings and money market . ..., ... .., + $1,381,582 47,980 347 $1,287.196 38,906 3.02% $1,240403 22319 LB
TME. .o e e 863,953 41,309 478 848,912 36460 429 683.466 24330 356
Total interest-bearing deposits . ... ... 2,245,535 89,280 198 2,136,108 75,366 3.53 1,923,869 46,649 2,42
Borrowed funds . . ... ........ ... ... 471,196 22,838 4.85 434,938 20402  4.69 456,559 17969 394
Total interest-bearing libilities . .. ... 1,716,831 112,127 413 2,571,046 95,768 3,72 2.380.468 64,618 271 ¢
Noninterest-bearing liabilities: . . N
Demand deposits .. ... e 312,011 333,406 135,962
Other [iabilities . .................... 44.069' 42,925 49,782
Total noninterest-bearing liabilities. . . . 356,080 376,331 - 385,744
Total liabilities. . . ............s 3,072911 294737 2,766,212 ,
Shareholders’ equity . . . ... .. e 198,193 281.847 272,974
Total liabilities and sharcholders™ equity ~ $3,371,304 $3,229.224 $3,039.186 .
Netinterestspread .. ................... .26 ’ 24] 283
Effect of noninterest-bearing sources. . ... .. .. 0.56 0.54 ' 044
Net interest income/margin en earning
BSSELS. . ..ot iu s -$88501 2.82% ‘$89,199  29%% $93479 327
Less tax equivalent adjustment. _ . .......... 6,067 . 6,026 6,358
Net intevestincome. . ... ...........ouu0n $ 82,434 §83,173 $87.121
— 3 M ———

(1}  The interest camed on nontaxable investment securities and loans is shown on a tax-equivalent basis, net of deductions (tax rate of 35%).

(2)  Nonacerua! loans have been included in the appropriate average loan balance category, but interest on nenacerual loans has not been included for purpases
of determining interest income. ’ :
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Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

In the normal course of conducting business activities, the Corporation is exposed to market risk, prmcupally
interest rate risk, through the operations of its banking subsidiary. Interest rate risk arises from market driven’
fluctuations in interest rates that affect cash flows, income, expense and value of financial instruments.

The Corporation actively manages its interest rate sensitivity positions. The objectives of interest rate risk
management ate to control exposure of net interest income to risks associated with interest rate movements and to
achieve consistent growth in net intcrest income. The Asset/Liability Committee, using policies and procedures
approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, is responsible for managing the rate sensitivity position. The
Corporation manages intefest rate sensitivity by changing the mix and repricing characteristics of its assets and
liabilities through the management of its investment securities portfolio, its offering of loan and deposit terms and
through wholesale borrowings from several prov:ders but prlmanly from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The
nature of the Corporat\on s current operations is such that it is not subject to foreign currency exchange or
commodity price risk.

The Corporation only utilizes derivative instruments for asset/liability management. These transactions
involve both credit and market risk. The notional amounts are amounts on which calculations and payments are
based. The notional amounts do not represent direct credit exposures. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net
diffefence between the calculated amounts to be received and paid, if any. Interest rate swaps are contracts in
which a series of interest-rate flows (fixed and floating) are exchanged over a prescribed period. The notional
amounts on which the interest payments are based are not exchanged. Interest rate caps are purchased contracts
that limit the exposure from the repricing of Habilities in a rising rate environment.

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had cash flow hedges in the form of interest rate swaps with a notional
amount of $45.0 million that have the effect of converting the rates on money market deposit accounts to a fixed-
rate cost of funds. This strategy will cause the Bank to recognize, in a rising rate environment, a larger interest rate
spread than it otherwise would have without the swaps in effect. In addition, the Corporation had cash flow hedges
with a notional amount of $10.0 million that have the effect of converting variable debt to a fixed rate. For these
swaps, the Corporation recognized net interest income of $287,000, $442,000 and $69,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively and estimates that for 2008, $153,000 will be recognized as a
decrease in net interest income. These swaps mature in 2008. During the first quarter of 2005, the Corporation
terminated a cash flow hedge with a notional value of $25.0 million. The gross loss related to the termination: of -
this swap was $310,000 which was amortized through October 2006 in accordance with SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, the Corporation amortized into net interést income $151,000 and $159,000, respectively related to this
swap. Periodically, the Corporation may enter into fair value hedges to limit the exposure to changes in the fair
value of loan assets, At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had fair value hedges in the form of interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of $3.9 million. These swaps mature in 2017. The Corporation recognized net
interest income of $59,000 and $7,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which
includes $55,000 for 2007 related to two terminated swaps with notional amounts totaling $3.9 million that were
terminated during 2007. At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had swap agreements with a positive fair value
of $10,000 and with a negative fair value of $366,000. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had swap
agreements with a positive fair value of $545,000 and with a negative fair value of $21,000. There was no hedge
ineffectiveness recognized during 2007, 2006 and 2005.

During March 2007, the Corporation purchased one and three month Treasury bill interest rate cap
agreements with notional amounts totaling $200 miilion to limit its exposure on variable rate now deposit
accounts. The initial premium related to these caps was $73,000 which is being amortized to interest expense
over the life of the cap based on the cap market value. The Corporation recognized amortization of $8,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2007 and estimates that for 2008, $46,000 will be recognized as interest expense. At
December 31, 2007, these caps, designated as cash flow hedges, had a positive fair value of $222. The caps
mature in March 2009. During 2007, the Corporation accelerated the reclassification of an immaterial amount in
other comprehensive income to earnings as a result of variable-rate interest payments becoming probable not to
occur. The accelerated amount was a loss of $7,000 recognized in interest expense.
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The Corporation uses three principal reports to measure interest rate risk: (1) asset/liability simulation
reports; (2) gap analysis reports; and (3) net interest margin reports. The Corporation’s interest rate sensitivity, as
measured by the repricing of its interest sensitive assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007, is presented in the
following table. The data in the table was based in part on assumptions that are regularly reviewed for accuracy.
The table presents data at a single point in time and includes management assumptions estimating the prepayment
rate and the interest rate environment prevailing at December 31, 2007. The table indicates a liability sensitive
one-year cumulative gap position of 6.76% of total carning assets.

Table 13—Contractual Repricing Data of Interest Sensitive Assets and Liabilities

December 31, 2007
After 1 year
0to 91 to through Over .
90 days 365 days 5 years 5 years - Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Earning assets

Investment securities .................... $123476 $177,901 $ 385265 $296273 $ 982915
Federal funds sold and deposits in banks . . .. 135,473 — — — 135,473
0T 11 - PR 734,454 225,436 887,746 613,187 2,460,823
Total eamning assets ................... $993.403 $403,337 $1,273,011 $909,460 $3,579,211
Interest-bearing liabilities ‘ .
Interest-bearing checking accounts ... ... ... $111,130  $140,033 § 230,941 $ — § 482,104
Money market funds. . ......... ... ... 92.579 224,442 479,304 — . 796,325
Savingsaccoumts.............. ... e 7,284 21,852 116,545 — 145,681
Time deposits ................ ... ..ot 318,651 517,317 366,538 184 1,202,690
Borrowed funds. ........................ 157,162 52,248 243,720 55,155 508,285
Total interest-bearing liabilities. . ........ $686,806 $955,892 $i,437,048 $ 55339 33,135,085
Interest rate SWaps. . ... ool $8928 § (5000 % — § (3928 §  —
Incremental gap. ... ...........ciiann $315,525 $(557.555) $(164,037) $850,193
Cumulative gap(1) ............. .. ... $315,525 §(242,030) $(406,067) $444,126
Cumulative gap as a percentage of earning
ASSEES L oot 8.82% —6.76% ~11.35% 12.41%

(1) The information is based upon significant assumptions, including the following: loans and Jeases are repaid
by contractual maturity and repricing; securities, except mortgage-backed securities, are repaid according to
contractual maturity adjusted for call features; mortgage-backed security repricing is adjusted for estimated

_ early paydowns; interest-bearing demand, regular savings, and money market savings depesits are estimated
to exhibit some rate sensitivity based on management’s analysis of deposit withdrawals; and time deposits
are shown in the table based on contractual maturity.

Management also simulates possible economic conditions and interest rate scenarios in order to quantify the
impact on net interest income. The effect that changing interest rates have on the Corporation’s net interest
income is simulated by increasing and decreasing interest rates. This simulation is known as rate shocking. The
results of the December 31, 2007 net interest income rate shock simulations show that the Corporation is within
guidelines set by the Corporation’s Asset/Liability Policy when rates increase or decrease 100 or 200 basis
points.
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The following table forecasts changes in the Corporation’s market value of equity under alternative interest
rate environments as of December 31, 2007, The market value of equity is defined as the net present value of the
Corporation’s existing assets and liabilities. The Corporation is within guidelines set by the Corporation’s
Asset/Liability Policy for the percentage change in the market value of equity.

Table 14—Market Value of Equity

December 31, 2007
Asset/Liability

Change in Approved

Market Value  Market Value Percentage Percent

of Equity of Equity Change Change

(Dollars in thousands)
+300 Basis Points . . .................. $416,917 $(116,265) -21.81% +/—35%

+200 Basis Points . .. ................. 457,103 (76,079 -14.27 +/=25
+100 BasisPoints. . .................. 497,873 (35,309) -6.62 +~15
FlatRate ........................... 533,182 — 0.00 —
=100 Basis Points. . .................. 538,758 5,576 1.05 +/—15
—200 Basis Points. . .................. 528,116 (5,066) —0.95 © /=25
=300 BasisPoints .. .................. 517,653 (15,529) -2.91 +—-35

In the event the Corporation should experience a mismatch in its desired gap ranges or an excessive decline
in its market value of equity resuiting from changes in interest rates, it has a number of options that it could use to
remedy the mismatch. The Corporation could restructure its investment portfolio through the sale or purchase of
securities with more favorable repricing attributes. It could also emphasize growth in loan products with
appropriate maturities or repricing attributes, or attract deposits or obtain borrowings with desired maturities.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses increased $6.4 million during 2007 compared to 2006 mostly as a result of
decreased quality of the loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for 2006 reflected an increase of $799,000
compared to the 2005 primarily due to inherent risk related to loan growth and the increase in non-performing
loans of $9.3 million. Total net loans charged off in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $7.6 million, $2.% million and
$2.0 million, respectively.

Noninterest Income

For the year ended December 31, 2007, noninterest income was $43.3 million, a decrease of $2.0 million or
4.4% from 2006. Wealth management fee income rose $3.9 million or 26.1% during 2007 primarily driven by a
higher level of life insurance business at Comnerstone as well as growth in trust assets. Major revenue component
sources of wealth management income include investment management and advisory fees, trust fees, estate and
tax planning fees, brokerage fees, and insurance related fees. The Bank experienced an increase in deposit service
charges of $1.7 million or 21.1% over the prior year mainly from return check and overdraft fees and fees from
East Penn deposit accounts. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Bank recognized a pre-tax gain of $2.3 million
on the sale-leaseback of fifteen bank properties representing a portion of the total gain of $18.9 million. The
remaining gain will be deferred and amortized through a reduction of occupancy expense over the 15-year term
of the leases an annual amount of approximately $1.1 million. The Corporation also completed a separate sale-
leaseback of office space in October with a recognized pre-tax gain of $473,000. The deferred gain of $552,000
will be amortized over the 10-year term of the lease. In addition, gains on sale of investment securities were $1.1
million during 2007 as compared to losses of $674,000 for 2006. The net security gains during 2007 were
primarily the result of the sale of bullet and callable agency, tax-cxempt municipal and mortgage-backed
securities. [n addition, noninterest income for 2006 included the pre-tax gains on the sales of the Bank’s
Honesdale branch and credit card portfolio of $10.7 million and $1.4 mitlion, respectively.
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Noninterest income of $45.3 million during 2006 increased $15.4 million compared to 2005. During 2006,
the Bank recognized a pre-tax gain of $10.7 million on the sale of its Honesdale branch: The sale of this single
Wayne County location included $74.2 million in deposits, as well as approximately $22.5 million in loans and
other assets, and resulted in a net cash payment of $42.5 million. The acquisition of the Comerstone Companies
was the primary driver of increases in wealth management income'of $8.1 million for the year of 2006 over 2005,
partially offset by the sale of Cumberland Advisors, which was divested in 2005. In addition, noninterest income
for 2006 included the pre-tax gain'of $1.4 million on the sale of the Bank’s $15.3 million credit card portfolio as
well as increases in fee revenue resulting from credit card operations. Losses on sales of investment securities for
2006 were $674,000 as compared to gains of $4.8 million for 2005. Noninterest income for 2005 included the
gains of $690,000 and $287,000 on the sales of Harleysville National Bank’s McAdoo branch and Cumberland
Advisors, Inc, respectively. . .

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense of $81.4-million for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased $10.5 million or
14.9% in comparison to 2006. Salaries and benefits expense rose $4.2 million during 2007 from the previous
year, primarily due to higher staffing levels resulting from new branch openings and the East Penn Financial
acquisition and higher costs of medical benefits. Occupancy expense increased $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, over 2006 mostly due to several new office locations inc’hic'ding the new operations center
building in Harleysville and four new branch openings as well as the addition of the East Penn branches. Other
expense increased $5.0 million during 2007 mainly as a result of the one-time pre-tax charge of $1.9 million
related to the pension plan curtailment, increased professional and consulting expense as well as East Penn
merger costs of approximately $339,000 and lower deferred loan origination costs resulting from lower loan
volume. ' ) ‘ o

Noninterest expense of $70.9 million during 2006 increased $8.4 million compared to 2005. Salaries and
benefits expense rose $7.2 million for the year of 2006 over 2005, primarily related to the acquisition.of the
Cormnerstone Companies, partially offset by the sale of Cumberland Advisors in the second quarter of 2005,
higher staffing levels resulting from growth, increased incentives, non-recurring compensation and severance
charges primarily related to the former Chief Executive Officer’s contract, and compensation expense of
$440,000 resulting from recording the Corporation’s stock option expense in conformance with FAS 123(R), *
“Stock Based Compensation.” Occupancy expense increased $494,000 in 2006 over 2005 mostly due to the
Cornerstone Companies acquisition and a new branch opening. Other expense increased $2.0 million during 2006 .
mainty as a result of the Cornerstone Companies acquisitiori including amortization of intangible assets of o
$448,000 partially offsct by decreased marketing expenses during 2006. o

Income Taxes

The effective income tax rates for 2007, 2006 and 2005-were 21.5%, 26.3% and 24.2% were less than the
applicable federal statutory rate of 35%. The Corporation’s effective rates were lower than the statutory tax rate
primarily ds a result of tax-exempt income earned from state and municipal securities and loans and bank-owned
life insurance, as well as for 2005, the non-taxable gain on the sale of Cumberland Advisors, Inc. The effective
tax rate for 2007 was lower than 2006 and 2005 primarily due to the lower level of net income during 2007.

Capital

Capital formation is important to the Corporation’s well being and future growth. Capital, at the end of 2007,
was $339.3 million, an increase of $44.6 million over the end of 2006. The increase was mainly due to the
issuance of $39.1 million in common stock in connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial. At
December 31, 2006, capital was $294.8 million, an increase of $21.5 million over December 31, 2005, The.increase
was primarily the result of the retention of the Corporation’s earnings and issuances of stock for stock options
including tax benefits partially offset by dividends paid to the shareholders. Management believes tha the
Corporation’s current capital position and liquidity position are strong and that its capital position is adequate to
support its operations. Management is not aware of any recommendation by any regulatory authority, which, if it
were to be implemented, would have a material effect on the Corporation’s capital, '
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Pursuant to the federal regulators’ risk-based capital adequacy guidelines, the components of capital are
called Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. For the Corporation, Tier 1 capital is generally common stockholder’s equity and
retained earnings adjusted to exclude disallowed goodwill and identifiable intangibles as well as the inclusion of.
qualifying trust preferred securities; Tier 2 capital for the Corporation is the allowance for loan losses. The risk-
based capital ratios are computed by dividing the components of capital by risk-adjusted.assets. Risk-adjusted
assets are determined by assigning credit risk-weighting factors from 0% to-100% to various categories of assets
and off-balance sheet financia! instruments. The minimum for the Tier 1 capital ratio is 4.0%, and the rotal capital
ratio (Tier 1 plus Tier 2 capital divided by risk-adjusted assets) minimum is 8.0%. At December 3 1,2007, the
Corporation’s Tier | risk-adjusted capital ratio was 9.79%, and the total risk-adjusted capital ratio was 10.67%, -
both well above regulatory requirements. The risk-based capital ratios of the Bank also exceeded regulatory
requirements at the end of 2007. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s Tier | risk-adjusted capital ratio was
11.75%, and the total risk-adjusted capital ratio was 12.58%. The lower risk-based capital ratios of the
Corporation at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 were primarily attributable to the increase in
risk-weighted assets from the acquisition of East Penn Fmanma] in November 2007 and due to an increase in
loans and federal funds sold. : .

To supplement the risk-based capltal adequacy guidelines, the Federal Reserve Board (FRB) established a
leverage ratio guideline. The leverage ratio consists of Tier 1 eapltal ‘divided by quarterly average total assets,
excluding goodwill and identifiable mtanglbles The minimum leverage ratio guideline is 3% for banking
organizations that do not ant1c1pate significant growth and that have well-diversified risk, excellent asset quallty
high liquidity, good earnings and, in general, are considered top-rated, strong bankmg organizations, Other
banking organizations are expected to have ratios of at least 4% or 5%, depending upon their particular condition
and growth plans. Higher leverage ratios could be required by the particular circumstances or risk profile of a
given banking organization. The Corporation’s leverage ratios were 8.72% and 9.36% at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The lower leverage ratio of the Corporation at December. 31, 2007 was mainly due to an
increase in average assets from the acquisition of East Penn Financial and increases in average loans and average:
federal funds sold..

Under FDIC regulations, a “well capitalized” institution must have a leverage ratio of at least 5%, a Tier 1
risk-based capital ratio of at least 6% and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10% and not be subject to a
capital directive order. To be considered “adequately capitalized” an institution must generally have a leverage |,
Tatio of at least 4%, a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of at least 4% and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least
8%. An institution is deemed to be “critically under capitalized” if it has a tanglble equity ratio of 2% or less. As,
of December 31, 2007, the Bank is above the regulatory m1mmum guidelines and meets the criteria to be
categorized as a “well capllallzed institution.

The cash dividends paid during 2007 of $.80 per share was 6.7% higher than the cash dividends in 2006 of
$.75. The proportion of net income patd out in dividends for 2007 was 88.82%, compared to 55.26% for 2006,
the increase maintly resulting from lower net income during 2007, The dividend payout ratios are in compliance
with regulatory guidelines. Management is focusing on improving and increasing earnings so that the dividend
payout ratio remains within acceptable limits: Activity in both the Corporation’s dividend reinvestment and stock
purchase plan did not have a material impact on capital during 2007.

Ligquidity

Liquidity is a measure of the ability of the Corporation to meet its current cash needs and obligations on a
timely basis. For a bank, liquidity provides the means to meet the day-to-day demands of deposit customers and
the needs of borrowing customers. Generally, the Bank arranges its mix of cash, money market investments,
investment securities and loans in order to match the volatility, seasonality, interest sensitivity and growth trends
of its deposit funds. The Cotporation’s decisions with regard to liquidity are based on the projections of potential
sources and uses of funds for the next 120 days under.the Corporation’s asset/liability model.

The resultmg projections as of December 31,2007, show the potential sources of funds exceedmg the
potential uses of funds. The accuracy of this pl'edlCthl‘l can be affected by limitations inherent in the model and
by the occurrence of future events not anticipated when the projections were made. The Corporation has external
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sources of funds which can be drawn upon when funds are required. One source of external liquidity is the
available line of credit with the FHLB. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had borrowings outstanding with the
FHLB of $216.8 million, all of which-were long-term. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had unused lines of
credit at the FHLB of $363.1 million and unused federal funds lines of credit of $195.0 million. In addition, the
Corporation’s funding sources includé investment and loan portfolio cash flows, fed funds sold and short-term
investments, as well as access to the brokered certificate of deposit market and repurchase agreement borrowings.
The Corporation has pledged available for sale investment securities with a carrying value of $699.0 million and
held to maturity securities of $57.3 million. The Corporation could also increase its liquidity through its pricing
on certificates of deposit products. The Corporatlon believes n has adequate funding sources to maintain
sufﬂc1ent liquidity under varying business conditions. '

There are no known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in,
or that are reasonably likely to result in liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way although a
significant portion of the Corporation’s time deposits mature in 2008. Given the antncnpated low rate environment
for much of 2008, we expect to be able to retain most of these deposits. In the event that additional funds are
required, the Corporation believes 1ts short-term liquidity is adequate as outlmed above.

The following table sets forth contractual obligations and other comm1tments representing required and
potential cash outflows as of December 31, 2007: ‘

Table IS—Cop‘tractual Obligations and Other Com_mitnii_ents , '

+

v . December 31, 2007

After one After three '
One yearor  year through  years through After five
Total less threc years five vears _vears
) (Dallars in thousands) :
Minimum annual operating leases. . . . .. 3 87,937 $§ 6,119 § 11,607 $ 11,133 $ 59,078
Remaining contractual maturities of time A '
deposits ...... ... . i 1,202,690 835,496 335,959 31,049 186 .
Long-term borrowings . .............. 321,785 57,035 54,750 160,000 50,000
Subordinated debt. .................. 82,992 S— — ' — . 82992
Unfunded home equity lines : Lo : :
ofcredit{1)....................... 326,972 12,978 14,758 20,793 278,443
Unfunded'other loan lines of credit . , . .. 492,892 384,922 57,138 ' 31,885 18,947 ,
Unfunded resxdenual mortgages ....... . 3,131 3,131 L= —_ o,
Standby letters of credit .. ~........... 23473 - 20,195 1,728 ' — 1,550
Total. S .. . $2,541,872 $1,319.876 $475,940 $254,860 - $491,196

(1) Home equity lines of credit in the after five years category have no stated explratlon

The Bank also had commitments with customers to extend mortgage loans at a specnf’ jed rate at December
31,2007 and December 31, 2006 of $3.4 mitlion and $2.3 million, respectively and commitments to sell
mortgage loans at a speuﬁed rate at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 of,$2.4 million and $792,000,
respectively. The commitments are accounted for as a derivative and recorded at fair value. The Bank estimates
the fair value of these commitments by comparing the secondary market price at the reporting date to the price -
specified in the contract to extend or sell the loan initiated at the time of the loan commitment. At December 31,
2007, the Corporation had commitments with a positive fair value of $19,000 and negative fair value of $19,000
wh:ch was recorded as other income. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had commitments with a posntwe

* fair value of $15,000 and a negative fair value of $3,000.

During Aprll 2006, the Bank sold its ex1st1ng credit card portfolio of $15.3 mllllon The sale agreemem
stipulated that any credit card accounts delinquent over 30 days, overlimit accounts and petitioned bankruptcies
would be guaranteed by the Bank for a period of one year..Of the $15.3 million in credit card receivables sold,
$529,000 was sold with full recourse which was the total potential recourse exposurc at the time of the sale. During
the second quarter of 2006, the Bank recorded a recourse liability of $371,000 which was the entire recourse hablhty
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recorded. This estimate was based on our historic losses as experienced on similar credit card receivables. The Bank
was subject to the full recourse obligations for a period of one year. At June 30, 2007, the total potential recourse
exposure was reduced to 30 with the expiration of the one-year recourse period. The Corporation’s actual loss-
experience approximated the initial reserve.

During January 2006, the Bank completed its acquisition of the Cornerstone Companies. The purchase price
consisted of $I5 0 million in cash paid at closing and a contingent payment of up to $7.0 million to be paid post-
closing. The contingent payment is based upon the Cornerstone Companies meeting certain minimum operating
results during a five-year earn-out period with a maximum payout of $7.0 million over this penod For 2006 and
2007, the minimum operating results were met resulting in earn-out payments totaling $2.2 million which was
recorded as addmonal goodw:!l At December 31, 2007, the remaining maximum payout is $4.8 million through
2010, .

During December 2004 and January 2003, the Bank sold lease ﬁnancmg receivables of $10.5 million. Of
these leases, $1.2 mllhon were sold with full recourse and the remaining leases were sold subject to recourse with
a maximum exposure of ten percent of the outstanding receivable. The total recourse exposure at the time of the
sale of the leases was $2.0 million. During the first quarter of 2005, the Bank recorded a recourse liability of -
$216,000 which was the entire recourse liability recorded. This estimate was based on our historic losses as
experienced on similar lease financing receivables. After the first anniversary of the sale agreement, and on a
quarterly basis thereafter, upon written request by the Bank, the purchaser will review the portfolio performance
and may reduce the total exposure to an amount equal to ten percent of the outstandmg net book value. The Bank
will be subject to the full and partial recourse obligations until all the lease financing receivables have been paid *
or otherwise been terminated and all equipment has been sold or disposed of. The final lease payment is due in
2010. The outstanding balarice of these sold leases at December 31, 2007 was $1.0 million with a total recourse
exposure of $198,000 and a current recourse liability of $17,000.

For information on known uncertainties, see ltem 1, “Business.”

Fourth Quarter 2.007 Results (Unaudited)

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2007 was $6.2 mllhon or $0.20 per diluted share, as compared to k) 13 3
mllllon or $0.45 per diluted share for the fourth quarter of 2006.

Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis in the fourth quarter of 2007 increased $1.8 million, or 8.7%,
from the same period in 2006. This increase was mainly attributable to higher net earing assets from the East
Penn Financial acquisition effective November 16, 2007 and lower interest bearing checking and money market
deposit costs, The net interest margin for the fourth quarter of 2007 of 2.76% remained flat as compared to 2.75%
for the fourth quarter of 2006,

Noninterest income of $14.2 million for the fourth quarter of 2007 decreased $4.0 miltion from the

' comparable period in 2006. Fourth quarter 2007 growth, however, was achieved over 2006 in wealth

management fee income and service charges on deposits. Wealth management fee income rose $1.5 million or
44.5% primarily driven by-a higher level of life insurance business at Cornerstone as well as growth in trust

" assets. Service charges on deposits increased $876,000 or 43.9% mainly from return check and overdraft fees and

fees from East Penn deposit accounts. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Corporation recognized gains from
sale-leaseback transactions of $2.8 million and from sales of investment securities of $657,000, while during 2006
the Corporation récognized a gain on the sale of the Honesdale branch of $10.7 mllllon and a-loss on sale of
investment secunnes of $674 000.

Nommerest expense of $23.6 million for the fourth quarter of 2007 increased $5 1 mllhon from the same
period in 2006. Saiaries and benefits expense rose $1.3 million during the fourth quarter of 2007 from the
comparable period in 2006, primarily related to higher staffing levels resulting from new branch openings and the
East Penn acquisition. In addition, occupancy expense increased due to several new office lgcations including the
new operations center building in Harleysville and four new branch openings as well as the addition of the East
Penn branches. Other expenses increased mostly due to a one-time pre-tax charge of $1.9 million related to the
pension plan curtailment, merger expenses of $339,000 and increased professional and consulting fees. -
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The following is the summarized (unaudited) consolidated quarterly financial data of the Corporation which,
in the opinion of management, reflects all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurrmg ad_]ustments
necessary for fair presentation of the Corporation’s results of operations:

Table 16—Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended 2007 {1} Three Months Ended 2006 (2)

Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31

(Dollars in thousands, except per share information)

Interest income . ... ... $51,133 $49,022 $47,711 $46,695 $46,661 $45961 $44,223 $42.096
Interest expense. . ... .. 29,555 28,158 27,556 26,858 26,849 25347 22947 20,625
Net interest income.. . .. 21,578 20,864 20,155 19,837 19,812 20,614 21,276 21471
Provision for loan

losses .............. 4475 2,525 1,125 2,425 1,200 900 | 900 1,200

Net.interest income after
provision for lean :
losses .............. 17,103 18339 19,030 17,412 18,612 19,714 20,376 20,271

Noninterest income... . . 14,171 9,765 10,255 9,147 18,206 8,286 9,923 8,933
Noninterest expense . .. 23,579 18856 20,141 18,779 18,467 17,560 17,678 17,125
Income before income ) )

tax expense........, 7,695 9,248 9,144 7,780 18,351 10,440 12,621 12,079
Income tax expense. . .. 1,514 2,047 2,065 1,646 5079 2533 3336 - 3,128
Netincome ........... $6,181 $7,20t $7,07% 8$6,134 513272 $7907 $9.285 § 80951
Net income per share ' '

Basic .............. $ 020 $ 025 $ 025 § 021 § 046 § 027 § 032 8§ 03]

Diluted ...... e $ 020 % 025 % 024 § 021 § 045 § 027 § 032 § 030

(1) The results of operations include the acquisition of East Penn Financial effective November 16, 2007
and the sale-lease-back of bank properties during the fourth quarter of 2007. ‘

(2) The results of operations include the sale of the Bank’s Honesdale branch effective November 10, 2006.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

In the normal course of conducting business activities, the Corporation is exposed to market risk, principally
interest risk, through the operations of its banking subsidiary. Interest rate risk arises from market driven
fluctuations in interest rates that affect cash flows, income, expense and values of financial instruments. The
Asset/Liability Committee of the Corporation, using policies and procedures approved by the Bank’s Board of
Directors, is responsible for managing the rate sensitivity position.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the economy has experienced a continued decline in the housing market,
reductions in credit facilities, rising food and energy prices, all resulting in short-term rate reductions by the
Federal Open Market Committee. This has created a challenging interest rate environment for the Corporation
which has impacted our interest rate sensitivity exposure. Information on quantitative and qualitative disclosures
about market risk is incorporated by reference to the discussion contained in Item 7, under the caption “Interest
Rate Sensitivity,” and Table 13, “Contractual Repricing Data of Interest Sensitive Assets and Liabilities,” and Table
14, “Market Value of Equity.”
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Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORAT]ON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS .

¢ December 31,
' 2007 2006
. o (Dollars in thousands)
Assets : . o
Cashanddue frombanks ... ... ... . it e $ 73930 § 61,895
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell ..................... 131,600 59,000 ,
Interest-beaning deposits inbanks. . .., .. ... i o e e 3,873 : 3,975
Total cash and cash equIValents . ... ..........ouee e L 209,403 124,870 -
Residential mortgage loans held forsale. . ..................... e 1,140 1,857
Investment securities available forsale. . . ... .. .. 925,568 853,010
Investment securities held to maturity (market value $57,518 and $59,297, respectwely) ....... 57,347 58,879
Loans and 1ases . ... ..ottt i e e e e e e e e 2,459,683 2,045,498
Less: Allowance for loanlosses ..,.............. e P S I L (27,328) (21,154}
Netloans...........cccooiiiiiiiinnnnn. e e e e 2,432,355 2,024,344
Premises and equlpmem L2 P P 32,518 33,785
Accrued interestreceivable. . ... .. .. L L e e 16,456, '114,950
Goodwilt......... e S PP 111,155 43,956
TREANEIblE A55ELS, MOt . . v oo it ittt et e e s . 13,340 7,282 °
Bank-owned life Insurance . ... .. i i i e i s faeeas 72,269 61,720
Otherassets. .. ... e SR 31,450 25,175
CTOtalaSSEIS . . Lo e e o ... 83,903,001 33,249,828
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits - . . . .
Noninterest- bearmg ............................................................ $ 358258 % 327973
Intcrest-bearing:
Checking............. e e e . Ll 482,104 539,974
Money market . ... .. e e 796,325 662,966
VIS o ittt i i i i i e e e 145,681 133,370
Time dePOSitS . . ...ttt et e e e 1,202,690 852,572
Total deposits :........ e [ e .. 2985058 2,516,855
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase ................ 101,493 96,840
Olhershorttermborrowmgs.......................................- ........ e 2,015 1,357
Long-term borrowings ....... e et ea e e 321,785 239,750 °
Accrued interestpayable. .. ... ... ... e 28,810 31,358
Subordinated debt. . ... ... e 82,992 51,548
Other Habilities .. ©. ... ooeea... Yo AT, P A 41,538 17,369
Total liabilities ....... U Lo R, . 3,563,691 2,955,077
Shareholders’ equity: ' .
Series preferred stock, par value $1 per share; authorized 8,000,000 shares, none 1ssued ...... — —
Common stock, par value $1 per share; authorized 75,000,000 shares; issued 31,507,021 shares :
-in 2007 and 29,074,250 shares in 2006. . ... ... ... . ... ... . 31,507 29,074
Additional paid-incapital . .. ... i 231,130 194,713
Retained eamings . .. ... o ittt i i e e e e 82,311 79,339
Accumulated other comprehensive 1085 .. ... i e e (2,566) (6,103)
Treasury stock, at cost: 174,605 shares in 2007 and 109,767 shares in 2006 ... ............ 3,072) (2,272)
Total sharcholders’ eqUItY. .. ... ot i e it it e i, 339,310 294,751
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity. . ... ... .. o i i i $3,903,001  $3,249,828

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES:
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

- Year Ended December 31,
S LT E0T 2006 2005
. . {Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Interesi income S - - :
Loans and leases, including fees. ... ............ ... .. ..., $145,319 §134,115 $115,333 4
Investment securities: . N
TaXaDlE . . it e e e 34,803 30,296 23,923 .
Exempt from federal taxes . . ... ... .. .. ... . . iiiieiieia. 10,863 10,477 10,846
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell. . . . . . 3,084 3,838 T 1,451 :
Deposits Inbanks ... ... .. i e 492 215 186" - ¢
Total interest iNCOME . .. ...\ i uie i iie it e iiie i eineeenns 194,561 178,941 151,739 = °
Interest expense _ L
Savings and money market deposits . ... ... ... e e . 47,980 38,906 22,319
B T o 41,309 36,460 24,330
Short-term BOTTOWINES ... ... oot ittt 5,431 " 5,202 --3,972.
Long-term borrowings ....................... e e 17,407 15,200 13,997 .
Total interest eXpense. . .. ... ... it i 112,127 . 95,768 . 64,618
NetinterestinCome .. ..oovvui ittt enrinriarnnns - 82,434 83,173 - 87,120
Provisionforloanlosses. . ......... ... . i 10,550 * 4,200 3,401
Net interest income after provision for loanlosses ............... 71,884 78,973 83,720 -
Noninterest income B !
Servicecharges. ... .. ... e ) 9,690 8,002 8,202
Gain (loss) on sales of investment securities, net . ...................... 1,132 (674) 4,794
Gain on sale-leaseback of bank properties .................. P 2,788 - . C o
Gain on sale of branch. . . . .. e e e —_ 10,650 . - 690
Gain on sale of creditcard portfolio . ... .. ... ... ... ... o o oo — 1,444 —
Wealth management . . ... ... ... . i e i 18,642 14,788 6,651
Bank-owned lifeinsurance . ....... ... ... .. ... . i e 2,489 2,386 2,234
Other INCOME. . .. ... . it ittt 8,597 8,752 7.419
Total nODINIETest INCOME & . v\ v v sttt e te e e ninaar e ennas 43,338 45,348 29,990 L
Net interest income after provision for loan losses and . . . "
NORIMErest MMNCOME. . . .. ..ottt et et et e e 115,222 124,321 . 113,710
Noninterest expense . L
Salaries, wages and employee benefits . . ................... P 48,832 44,647 37,441
OCCUPANCY - ..ttt e e ie e e 7,008 5,670 5,176
Fumitureand equipment. . . ... ... i e e e 3,941 3,664 14230 - '
Marketing . .o oo e 1,617 1,854 2,506
Other eXpense . .. .o v et ii e ieire i e 19,957 14,995 13,125 "
Total NONINETESt EXPENSC. . . . . ..o ev et e e eeeeereaaeeennn. 81,355 70,830 62479
Income before income tax EXPEnSe. . ... v vttt iit i i 33,867 53,491 51,231 ’ ’
Income tax expense. ...... e e e e e e e 1,272 14,076 12,403
NetiCOME .. oot e e e ettt e e ea e aaes $ 26,595 $ 39415 $ 18,828
Net income per share information: : )
Basic. .. ... $ 091 $ 136 c 85 134
10 T SR $  0.90 5 1.34 s 132 .
Cash dividends per share. . . . .. e e - _§ 080 § 0.75 5 072
Weighted average number of common shares: ' o )
CBasIC. L 29,218,671 28,946,847 28,891,412
Diluted ............ e e e e 29,459,898 29,353,128 29,490,216

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION.AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Common 'Treasury

a
. T

¢

See accompanying notes td consolidated financial statements.

46

. Stock - . Stock Common ) Accumulated
- Number = Number Stock Additional Other
’ , , h 'of‘! .oref Par Paid in Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury Comprehensive
o . _Shares " Shares Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total Income (Loss)
' . {Dallars and share information in thousands) ,

Balance Jandary 13 2005. . . .. 27,320 (1,043 327,320 $160,039 '$99,730 $1,243 (17,8000  $270,532
Issuance of stock for stock . : '

eptions, net of tax .

benefits .. ... ... ©o 142 153 142 t.284 — — 3,027 . 4,453
Issuance of stock awards.’. . .. 47, — . — — . 5 — — " - 3 -
Stock dividend. . . ... .. ... R 38 1,272 38 6.090 (29,535) ) — 23,392 (15
Netincome ,..7.,.. ....0° o — .= — 18,828 —_ — 33828 $38,828
Other comprehensive [oss, net

of reclassifications and tax . —_— - — — — {9,861) -_— (9,861) (9,360)
Purchases of treasury stock . . . — {4486)- - — — — (997 9.972)
‘Cash dividends. . .......... — v — — (20,738 — — (20,738)
Comprehensivé income . .. .. . ' [ $28,967
Balance December-31,2005 .." 27,500 (64 ¢ . 27,500 167,418 88,285 (8,618 (1353 273232
Issuance of stock.for stock ' o ’ oot

options. net of excess tax , H ‘ :

benefits .. .. ... P e 192 220 B 7] 1,662 —_ — 4,583 6,437 .
Issuance of stock awards. . . .. . —_— S T 5 — — — 5
Stock-based compensation s - s

EXPENSE. .. ... ... — —_ —_ 440 —_ —_— — 440
Stock dividend:, . ... ....... , 7 1382 — 1,382 25,188 (26,582) — - ()] .
Netincome= 4. . ........ ' [C— - —_ — 39,415 - — S —_ 39,415 “$39415
Other cotnprehensive income, - I

net of reclassifications and .+ . .

tax{ly............. ... : — — —_ — — 4,050 — 4,050 4,050
Purchases of treasury stock . . . - — (265 — — — - _— (5,502) (5,502)
Cash dividends. .. .. ....... — - — — (21,779 —_ — {21,779
Comprehensive income .. ... ' e .. $43.465
Adjustment for adoption 'of .

FAS No. 158, net of tax e = — - — (1,535} ) — (1,535
Balance December 31, 2006 .. | 29,074 (109) 29,074 194,713 79,339 (6,103) (227 294,751
Issuance of stack for stock . !

options, net of tax and .

excess tax benefits. . ... .. — 7% — (386) — — 1,391 1,005
Issuance of stock awards ... . —_ — -—_— {1 ' —_— — 5 4
Stock-based compensation -

expense. . ............. . — —. — 118 — —_ —_ 118 .
Netincome........... e = — — — 26,595 —_ — 26,595 $126,595
Other comprehensive income, . '

net of reclassifications - - !

andéax... ........... — — — — —_ 3,537 ’ — 3,537 3,537
Issuance of common stock for '

acquisition of East Penn L

Financisl 2,433 — 243 - 36,686 — - R 39,119
Purchases of treasnry stock . — (141) _ — — — (2,96  (2,196)

. Cash dividends. . ......... — — — — (23,623 — — (23,623

Comprehensive income. . . .. . Y : $30,132
Balance December 31,2007 . 31,507 (174) $31,507  $231,130 $82,311 $(2,566) $ (3,07 $339310




HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Operating activities . .
LA Tt o 17 O U N U OO $ 26,595 $ 39,415 $38.828
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash prowded by operating dctivities: . :

. Provision for loan losses. ... ... .. e it : 10,550 4,200 3401
Depreciation and amMOrtization .. .. ... u ' ur vt ira et e 5,232 4,483 3,909
Net amortization of investment sceurities discoums/premiums . ... . ... e 1,758 3,327 5.890
Deferred income (benefit} CXPENSE . vt et e e e ! (7.859)° 659 (5,530)
(Gain) loss on sales of investment securities, NEt .. . ... ...ttt n e ii i (L1132 674 1 {4,799
(Gain on sale-leaseback of bank properties . . . .. e e e e (2,788) —

Gainonsaleof branch . . ... ... .. e e e — (10,650) (690)
Gainonsaleof eredit card portfolio . ... ... .. .. . . . e — {1.444) e
Gain on sale of bank subsidiary ................ e P L. ) - _ (287
Bank-o“ ncd life insurance income . ... .o v v s v ea s e ' (2,489 {2,386) (2,239
Stock-based COMPENSAION eXpense. ... ... vevv . s e 118 440 -
Penston termination expense. .. ... ... oo, 197 — —
Net decrease (increase) in acored interest receivable .. ... ... ... .. e i . 307 {1,725 (1,209
Net (decrease) increase in pcerued interestpayable. . .. .. .. .. ... L L oL o 44100 . 4,412 2,039
Net decrease (increase) inotherassets. . . ................. e 5 (8,085) 3214
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities . . ... . .. e ‘ 5,773 1,711 (8.850)
OIher, el . . Lo i e e 31 ) (89 86
Net cash provided by opcraung activities . ....... [ U 33,608 34,942 33,777
Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of invesiment securities availableforsale. ... ... .. ... ............ 186,218 110,842 273,919
Proceeds from maturity or calls of investment securities held to maturity . ... ..., .. [ . + 1,500 617 9,243
Proceeds from maturity or calls of investment securities available forsale ................. 157,911 158,146 196,161
Purchases of investrnent secunities available forsale 7. . ...... ... e (347,416) {278,063) - (454,254)
et RS (1 0N, . L o i i e et e e (83,162) + (101,554 (147,029
Net cash paid due to acquisitions, net of cashaequired ... ... ......... ... i, (34,010 (14,525) —
Net cash paid insale of branch .. ... . ... ... e e .-.‘ ......... —_ (42,472) (74301
Net proceeds from sale of creditcard portfolio . ... .. ... . . i : — 16,705 —
Net cash received from sale of bank subsidiary . . .. .. ... ... .. ... . e — — 1,931
Purchases of premises and equipment. . . .. .. ... e . (10,912) (10,783) (4,783)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment . .. .. ... . ... Lol 39,712 857 , 35
Purchase of bank-owned life inserance. . .. .. ... ... ... .. ..., . feeeeea ' — — . (5,000)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate . . . ., . D 13 109 466
Net cash used in investing activities . .. ...... ... .. ....... D XEEUREE (90,136} {160,121, (136,742
Financing activities ] . . ) s , , ) .
Net increase indeposits. . ... ............... e e . 85,491 225,554 166,472
(Decrease) increase in federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase’ Y (6,429) 8,722 - (541327)
Increase (decrease} in short-term borrowings . ..... ... ... ... ... ... [ 658 (395) (45,461)
Advances of long-termbommowings .. ... ... L 125,000 10,000 25,000
Repayments of Llong-1erm BOImowings. .. .. ..ottt it i i e (62,003) {68,000} —
Proceeds from subordinated debtissuance ... ... .. i i s 23,196 — 25,774
Cashdividends. .. ... .. i i i i i i iy {23,623 21,779 (20,738)
Repurchase of common stock .. ..o P [P . et (2,196 (5.502) 4.972
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options . .. .. ..... . ... ... ... ... .. ’ 975 5302 4453
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation . ... ... . ... . L .. .. 42 948 —_
L0 R 1 OO - {12) (15)
Net cash provided by financing activities .. .. ... ... ... .. ... L o o 141,061 154,838 91,186
Net increase (decrease) incashand cashequivalents. . ... ... . o oo on, 84,533 29,659 (15779
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. .. ..... e 124,870 _ 55211 106,990
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year ... ... ..., ... . ittt iieienanns $209,403 $124,870 $95211
Cash paid during the year for: 4
Interest. . . .. e . e $116,649 $ 91,435 $ 62,860
Income taxes. .. ........... e e . _S 6145 $ 17,088 $ 18,940
Supplemental d!sclosurc of noncash inv esting and financing acnvmcs
Transfer of assets from loans to other reat estate owned .. ..~ e L 5 51 $ 128 $ 288
Acquisition of East Penn Financial, common stock issued. . .. . ... ... .. ..., ..... § 39,119 — —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Note I—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Harleysville National Corporation (the Corporation} through its subsidiary bank, Harleysville National Bank
(the Bank), provides a full range of banking services including loans, deposits, investment management, trust and
investment advisory services to individiial and corporate customers primarily located in eastern Pennsyivania.
HNC Financial Company and HNC Reinsurance Company are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation. ,
HNC Financial Company’s principal business function is to expand the investment opportunities of the
Corporation, HNC Reinsurance Company functions as a reinsurer of consumer loan credit life and accident and
health insurance. ' '

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to regulations of.certain state and federal agencies including the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as insurer of the Bank’s deposits, the Board of Govemnors of the Federal
Reserve System, as regulator of the holding company and the Office of the Comptroller of Currency.
Accordingly, these regulatory authorities periodically examine the Corporation and the Bank. As a consequence
of the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities, the Corporation’s and the Bank’s businesses are
susceptible to being affected by state and federal legislation and regulations,

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements follows. '

Principles of Consolidation and Busis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries, the Bank,
HNC Financial Company, and HNC Reinsurance Company. East Penn Financial Corporation (East Penn
Financial) and its banking subsidiary are included in the Corporation’s results effective November 16, 2007. The
Comerstone Companies’ (subsidiaries of the Bank) results of operations are included in the Corporation’s results
effective January 1, 2006. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation and certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation and its subsidiaries conform with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and general practices within the financial services industry.

The preparation of financial statements. in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported :
amount of assets and liabilities as of the dates of the balance sheets and revenues and expenditures for the periods
presented. Actuat results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents .

Cash and'cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, securities purchased under
agreements to resell and interest-bearing deposits in banks with an original maturity of generally three months or
less. . '

i

Irivestment Securities

The Corporation accounts for securities under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 115, *Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Debt securities, which
management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity, are classified as held to maturity and reported at
amortized cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts using the interest method over
the life of the securities. Debt and equily securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time are
classified as available for sale and are stated at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

+

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

and reported in other comprehensive income, net of income taxes. The Corporation receives estimated fair values
of debt securities from independent valuation services and brokers. In developing these fair values, the valuation-
services and brokers use estimates of cash flows based on historical perfonnance of similar instruments in similar
rate environments.’

Amortization of premiums and accretlon of discounts for i investment securities available for sale and held to
maturity are included in interest income. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investment securities arc
recognized using the specific identification method and are included in the consohdaled statements of income. .

The Corporation follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) FSP FAS Nos. 115-1 and FAS
124-1 “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary lmpalrmem and Its Application to Certain Investments,” which
provides guidance on determining when investments 1n certain debt and equity sccurities are considered .
impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, and on measurmg such impairment Toss. The .
Corporation uses various indicators in determining whether a security is other-than-temporarily impaired,
including for equity securities, if the market value is below its cost for an extended period of time with low \
expectation of recovery or for debt securities, when it is probable that the contractual interest and principal w1]|
not be collected. The debt securities are monitored for changes in credit ratings. Adverse changes in credit ratings'
would affect the estimated cash flows of the underlying collateral or 1ssuer

Loans

Loans that management intends to hold to maturity are stated at the principal amount outstanding. Net loanis
represent the principal loan amount outstanding net of deferred fees and costs, unearned income and the
allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans is credited to income based on the prmcxpal amount outstanding.

1

Lease financing represents automobile and equ1prnent leasing. The lease f' inancing receivabie included in
loans is stated at the gross amount of lease payments receivable, plus the residual value, less income to be‘eamed
over the life of the leases. Income is recognized over the term of the leases using the level yield method. -

Loan origination fees and direct loan origination costs of completed loans are deferred and recognized over
the life of the loan as an adjustment to the yield. The net loan origination fees recognized as yield adjustments are
reflected in loan interest income in the consolidated statements of income and the unamortized balance of the net
loan origination fees is reported in loans outstanding in the consotidated balance sheets.

1

Income recognition of interest on loans is discontinued when, in the opinion of managemient, the
collectibility of principal or interest becomes doubtful. A loan is generally classified as nonaccrual ' when
principal or interest has consistently been in default for a period of 90 days or more or becausé of deterioratior?'in
the financial condition of the borrower, and payment in full of pran(:lpal or interest is not expected, When a loan
is placed on nonaccrual status, all accrued but uncoltected interest is reversed from income. The Corporation:
recognizes income on nonaccrual loans under the cash basis when the loans are both current and the collateral on
the loan is sufficient to cover the outstanding obligation to the Corporation, The Corporation will not recognizé
income if these factors do not exist, Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest are loans that aré
generally well-secured and expected to be restored to a current status in the near futare. S

A loan is considered lmpatred when based on current information and events itis probable that the
Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due, including principal and interest, according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Corporation accounts for impaired loans under SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”, as amended by SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors
for Impairment of a Loan—Income Recognition and Disclosures.” Individually impaired loans are measured
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

hased on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, a loan’s
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Regardless of the
measurement method, impairment is based on the fair value of the collateral when foreclosure is probable. If the
recorded investment in impaired loans exceeds the measure of estimated fair value, a specific allowance is
established as a component of the allowance for toan losses. The Corporation’s policy for interest income
recognition on |mpa:red loans is to recogmze income on restructured loans under the accrual method.

Allowance for Loan Losses ' '

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that manag,ement believes is sufficient to absorb
estimated probable credit logses. The altowance for loan losses is based on estimated nét realizable value unless it
is probable that loans will bé forectosed, in which case the allowance for loan losses is based on the fair value of
the collateral less setling costs. Managemcnt s determinatioh of the adequacy of the allowance is based on
periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio 'and other relevant factors. However, this evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires significant estimates by management. Consideration is given to a variety of factors in
establishing these estimates including historical ldsses, current and anticipated economic conditions,
diversification of the loan portfolio, delmquency statistics, results of internal loan review, borrowers’ perceived
financial and management strengths, the adequacy of underlying collateral, the dependence on collateral, and the
strength of the present value of future cash flows and other relevant factors. These factors may be susceptible to
significant change. Increases to the allowance for loan losses are made by charges to the provision for loan losses.
Credit exposures deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of
previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses. To the extent actual outcomes differ
from management estimates, additional provisions for loan losses may be required which may adversely affect
the Corporation’s results of operations in the future. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of

Cr

- their examination process, periodically review the allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the

Corporation to recognize additions to the allowance based on Lhelr judgment of mformanon available to them at
the time of their examination. v

The Corporation performs periodic evaluations of the allowance for loan losses that include both historical,
internal and external factors. The actual allocation of reserve is a function of the application of these factors to
arrive at a reserve for each portfolio type. Management assigns credit ratings and individual factors to individual
groups of loans. Changes in concentrations and quality afe captured in the analytical metrics used in the
calculation of the reserve. The components of the allowance for credit.losses consist of both historical losses and
estimates. Management bases its recognition and estimation of each allowance component on certain observable
data that it belicves is the most reflective of the underlying loan losses being estimated. The observable data and
accompanying analysis is directionally consistent, based upon trends, with the resulting component amount for
the allowance for loan losses. The Corporation’s allowance for loan losses components includes the following:.
historical loss estimation by loan product type and by risk rating within each product type, payment (past due)
status, indusiry concentrations, internal and external.variables such as economic conditions, credit policy and.
underwriting changes and results of the loan review process. The Corporation’s historical loss component is the
most significant component of the allowance for loan losses, and all other allowance components are based on the
inherent loss attributes that management believes exist within the total portfolio that are not captured in the
historical loss component. ' o
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The historical loss components of the allowance represent the results of analyses of historical charge-offs
and recoveries within pools of homogeneous loans, within each risk rating and broken down further by segment,
within the portiolio. Criticized assets are further assessed based on trends, expressed as percentages, relative to
delinquency, risk rating and nonaccrual, by credit product.

The historical loss components of the allowance for commercial and 1ndustr|al loans and commerc1al real’
estate loans (collectively “commercial loans™) are based principally on current risk ratings, historical loss rates
adjusted, by adjustmg the risk window, to reflect current events and condmons as well as analyses of other
factors that may have affected the collectability of loans. All commercial loans with an outstandmg baldnce over
$500,000 are subject to review on an annuat basis. Samples of commiercial loans with a “pass” rating are
individually reviewed annually. Commercial loans that management determines to be potentlal probléem loans ‘are
individually reviewed at a minimum annually. The review is accomplished via Watchlist Memorandum, and is
designed to determme whether such loans are individually impaired, with impairment measured by reference to’
the collateral coverage and/or debt service coverage. Consumer credit and residential real estate reviews are
limited to those loans reflecting delinquent payment status. Homogeneous loan pools, including consumer and 1-
4 family residential mortgages are not subject to individual review but are evaluated utilizing risk factors such as
concentration of one borrower group. The historical loss component of the allowance for these loans is based-
principally on loan payment status, retail classification and historical loss rates, adjusted by altermg the risk |
window, to reflect current events and conditions. ' . . T

The industry concentration component is recogmzed as a possible factor in the estimation of loan losses. Two
industries represent possible concentrations: commercial real estate and consumer loans relying on res:dentlal home
equlty No specific loss-related observable data is recogmzed by management currently, therefore no specnﬁc factar
is calculated in the reserve solely for the impact of these concentrations, although management continues'to
carefully consider relevant data for possible future sources of observable data. : .

The historic loss model includes a judgmental component (enwronmenlal factors) that reflects management s
belief that there arc additional inherent credit losses based on loss attributes not adequately captured in the laggmg
indicators. The environmental faétors are based upon management s review of trends in the Corporatlon 5
primary market area as well as regional and national economlc trends. Management utilizes various economic
factors that could impact borrowers’ future ability to make loan payments such as changes in the interest rate,
environment, product supply shortages and negative industry specific events. Management utilizes relevant
articles from newspapers and other publications that describe the economic events affecting specific geographxc
areas and other published economic reports and data. Furthermore, given that past-performance indicators may not
adequately capture current risk levels, allowing for a real-time.adjustment enhances the validity of the loss ¢
recognition process. There are many credit risk management reports that are synthesized by credit risk management
staff to assess the direction of credit risk and its instant effect on losses. It is important to continue,to use experjential
data to corifirm risk as measurable losses will continue to manifest themselves at higher than normal levels even
after the economic cycle has begun an upward swing and lagging indicators begin to show improvement. The '
Jjudgmental eomponent is allocated to lhe specific segments of the portfolio based on the historic loss component.

Statement of Position (SOP) 03-3, Accounting for Loans or Certain Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer™
requires impaired loans for which it is probable that the investor will be unable to collect all contractually reqmred
payments receivable to be recorded at the present value of amounts expected to be received and prohlblts carrying
over or creation of valuation allowances in the initial accounting for these loans. The Company evaluates the assets
acquired in its acquisitions for appllcabﬂ]ty to this statement. :
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| Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) " ' . .
Movtgage Servicing

The Corporatlon performs various scrvncmg functions on mortgage loans owned by others. A fee, usually
based on a percentage of the outstanding principal balance of the loan, is received for these services.

The Corporation accounts for its transfers and servicing financial assets in accordance with SFAS No. 156
“Amendmg Accounting for Separatély Recognized Servicing Assets and Liabilities” and SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assefs and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” The -
Corporation originates mortgages under a definitive plan to sell or securitize those loans and service the loans
owned by the investor. The Corporation mmally recognizes and measures at fair value its servicing assets and
.allocates the carrying amount between the assets sold based on the relatwe fair values at the date of transfer. The
Corporatmn recognizes and mmally meastres at fair value, a servicing asset each time it undertakes an obllgatlon
to service a financial asset by cntenng into a servicing contract. The Corporation uses the amortlzauon method
for subscquent measurement of its servicing assets. Servicing assets are amortized in proportion to and over ‘the
penod of net servicing income and assessed for impairment based on fair value at each reporting period.

The Corporation estimates the fair value of servicing rights based upon the present value of expected future
cash.flows associated with the servicing rights discounted at a current market rate using the same assumptions
used by bidders of servicing portfolios. The loans are grouped into-homogenous pools for analysis based upon the
predominant risk characteristics including origination date, loan type, interest rate and term. Assumptions are
developed that include estimates of servicing costs, loan defauits, prepayment speeds, discount rates, market
conditions and olher factors that impact the value of retained interests. If the carrying value of mortgage servicing
nghts for a pool exceeds the estimated fair value, an lmpalrment loss is recognized through a charge to the
valuation aIlowance with a correspondmg adjustment to cammgs

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of ¢
aggregate cost or estimated fair value. Gains and losses on sales of loans are also accounted for in accordance
with SFAS No. 134, “Accountmg for Mortgage Securities Retained a&er the Securitization of Mortgage Loans
Held for Sale by a Mortgage Bankmg Enterpnse This statemem requires that an entity engaged in mortgage
banking actlvmes ClaSSlfy the retained mortgage-backed security or other interest, which resuited from the
sccunnzatlons of a mortgage loan held for salc based upon its ability and intent to sell or hold these investments.

v

FPremises and Eqmpment . ’ . ) y
"Premises and equipment are stated at-cost less accumulated depreciation, Deprcc1at10n is recorded using the
straight-line and accelerated depreciation-methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the remaining useful lives of the lcascs (including renewal options) or estlmated
useful lives, whichever is shorter, - -

(R . ‘ . . f

Net Assets in Foreclosure

'

Net assets in foreclosure include foreclosed real estate which is carried at the lower of cost (lesser of
carrying value of loan or fair value at date of acquisition) or estimated fair value of the, collateral less selling
costs. Any write-down, at or prior.to the dates the real estate is considered foreclosed, is charged to the allowance
for loan losses. Subscqucm write-downs and expenses incurred in connection with holding such assets are
recorded in other expenses. Any gain or loss upon the sale of real estate owned is charged to operations as '
incurred. Net assets in foreclosure alsé mc]udcs foreclosed leases which are carried at lower of cost (lesser of .
carrying valuc of loan or fair value at date of acquisition) or estimated fair value less selling costs.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill and Other. Intangible Assets : . ‘

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net .
assets acquired in accordance with the'purchase method of accounting. Goodwill'is not amortized but is reviewed.
for potential impairment on an annual basis, or more often if events or circumstances indicate that there may be -
impairment, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Goodwill is tested for
impairment at the reporting unit level and an impairment loss is reeorded to the extent that the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Core deposit intangibles are a measure of the value of checking and
savings deposits acquired in business combinations accounted for under the purchase method. Core deposit
intangibles and other identified intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis or
sum of the years digits basis over their estimated lives (ranging from five to ten years) and identifiable intangible
assets are evaluated for impairment if events and circumstances indicate a possible impairment in accordance
with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The Corporation
employs general industry practices in evaluating the fair value of its goodwill and other intangible assets. The
Corporation calculates the fair value using a combination of the followmg valuation methods: dividend discount’
analysis under the income approach, which calculates the present value of all excess cash flows plus the present
value of a terminal value and pnce/eammgs multiple under the market approach Any impairment loss related to
goodwill and other intangible assets is reflected as other noninterest expense in the statement of operations in the.
period in which the impairment was detérmined. No assurance can be'given that future impairment tests will not
result in a charge to earnings. See Note 2 - Acqulsltlons / Dispositions and Note 8 — Goodwill and Other
Intangibles for additional information.

Derivatives

The Corporation accounts for derivatives in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended. The Statement requires the Corporation to recognize all
derivative instruments at fair value as either asscts or liabilities. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative instrument depends on whether, at 1ncept10n it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging
relationship. For derivatives not designated as hedges, the gain or loss is recognized in current eamings. When '
the Corporation designates a derivative as hedging, it is required 1o establish at the inception of the hedge the
method it will use for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the measurement approach for
determining the ineffective aspect of the hedge. Those methods must be c0n51stent wnth the Corporatlon s
approach to managing nsk

The Corporation enters into interest rate swap contracts to modify the interest rate characteristics from
variable to fixed in order to reduce the impact of interest rate changes on future net interest income. Net amounts
payable or receivable from these contracts are accrued as an adjustment to interest income or interest expense of
the related asset or liability. Interest rate swap agreements are designated as either cash flow hedges or fair value
hedges. For cashflow hedges, the fair value of these derivatives is reported in other assets or: other liabilities and
offset in accumulated other comprehensive income for the effective portion of the derivatives. Amounts reclassed
into eamings, when the hedged transaction culminates, are included in net interest. Ineffectiveness of the strategy, as
defined under SFAS 133, if any, is reported in net interest. [n a fair value hedge, the fair values of the interest rate
swap agreements and changes in the fair values of the hedged items are recorded in the Corporation’s
consolidated balance sheet with the corresponding gain or loss being recognized in current earnings. The
difference between changes in the fair values of interest rate swap agreements and the hedged items represents
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

hedge ineffectiveness and is recorded in net interest in the Corporation’s income statement. The Corporation
performs an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge and quarterly thereafter, to determine whether these
denvatlves are highly effectlve in offsettmg changes in the value of thc hedged items.

Stock-Based Compensation '

The Corporation recognizes compensation expense for stock options in accordance with SFAS 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R) adopted at January 1, 2006 under the modified prospective
application method of transition. The expense of the option i$ generally measured at fair value at the grant date with
compcnsatlon expense recognized over the servicé period, which is usually the vesting period. For grants subject
to a service condition, the Corporation utilizes the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (as used under SFAS 123)
to estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. The Black-Scholes model takes into consideration the
exercise price and expected life of the options, the current price of the undetlying stock and its expected volatility,
the expected dividends on the stock and the current risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the option. For
grants subject to a market condition, the Corporation utilizes a Monte Carlo simulation to estimate the fair value and
determine the derived service period. Compensation is recognized over the derived service period wnh any
unrecognized compensation cost immediately recognized when the market condition is met. The Corporatlon 5
estimate of the fair value of a stock option is based on expectations derived from historical experience and may not
necessarily equate to its market value when fully vested. In accordance with SFAS 123(R), the Corporation
estimates the number of options for which the requisite service is expected to be rendered. Prior to January 1,
2006, the Corporation followed SFAS 123 and Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
Jor Stock Issued to Employees, " with pro forma disclosurcs of net income and earnings per share, as if the fair
value-based method of accounting defined in SFAS 123 had been applied. See Note 14 — Stock-Based
Compensation for additional information.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 110, “Certain Assumptions Used
in Valuation Mcthods.” SAB 110 expresses the views of the staff regarding the use of a “simplified” method as
discussed in SAB No. 107, “Share- Based Payment,” in developmg an estimate of expected term of “plain .
vanilla” share options in accordance w:th FAS 123(R). The staff stated in SAB 107 that it would not expecta
company to use the 51mphf' ied method for share option grants after December 31, 2007. Under SAB 110, the SEC
staff will continue to accept, under certain circumstances, the use of the simplified method beyond December 31,
2007 to help public companies, mostly small firms, that lack historical data on the exercising of options by
cmployees. SAB 110 is not expected to have any material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements,

Income Taxes

There are two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense
approximates cash to be paid or refunded for taxes for the applicable period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized due to differences between the basis of assets and liabilities as measured by tax laws and their basis as
reported in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are subjectto management’s judgment based upon .
available evidence that future realizations are likely. If management determines that the Corporation may not be
able to realize some or all of the net deferred tax asset in the future, a charge to income tax expense may be -
required to reduce the value of the net deferred tax asset to the expected realizable value. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is
recognized for the change in deferred tax liabilities or assets between periods.
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Note 1 —Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) -
Pension Plans .

The Corporation has certain employee benefit plans covering substantially all employees. The Corporation
accrues service cost as incurred. The Corporation’s current measurement date for plan assets and.obligations is
fiscal year-end. The Corporation’s defined benefit pension plan was frozen at the current benefit levels as of
December 31, 2007 at which time the accrual of future benefits for eligible employees ceased. The Corporation
accounts for its Pension Plan in accordance with SFAS No. 87 “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS
No. 88 “Employers” Accounting for Settlements and Curtaitments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits,” as amended by SFAS No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans.” SFAS 158, effective at the end of fiscal year 2006, requires companies to recognize
the funded status of defined benefit pension plans on the balance sheet and recognize changes in the funded status
of the plan in the year in which tlie changes occur. See Note 12— Pension Plans for additional information.’

Bank-Owned Life insurance ‘ '
The Corporation invests in bank-owned life insurance (BOLI). BOLI involves the-purchasing of life
insurance by the Corporation on a chosen group of employees. The Corporation is the owner and beneficiary ofr,
the policies. This pool of insurance, due to tax advantages 1o the Bank, is profitable to the Corporation. This
profitability is used to offset a portion of future benefit cost increases. The Bank s deposnts fund BOLI and the |
earnings from BOLI are recognized as noninterest income. . )

Earnings Per Share

The Corporation follows the provisions of SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” Basic earnings per share
exclude dilution and are computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share take into account the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised and
converted into common stock. Proceeds assumed to have been recewed on such exercise or conversion are
assumed to be'used to purchase shares of the Corporation’ s comimon stock at the average market price during the
period, as required by the “treasury stock method” of accounting. The effects of securities or other contracts to
issue common stock are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share in periods in which the
effect would be antidilutive. All weighted average shares, actual shares and per share information in the financial
statements have been adjusted retroactively for the effect of stock dividends.

. ' »

Markermg Costs _ '

It is the Corporatlon s pohcy to expense marketmg costs in the period in which they are 1ncurred . "

Camprehens:ve Income e

The Corporation records unreatized gains and losses on available for sale investment securities, net of tax
and gains and losses on cash flow hedges, net of tax in other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.
Gains and losses on available for sale investment securities are reclassified to net income as the gains or losses
are realized upon sale of the securities. Other-than-temporary impairment charges are reclassified to net income
at the time of the charge. Gains or losses on derivatives are reclassified to net income as the hedged item affects
earnings. The Corporation foltows the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 130, “Reponing Comprehensive
Income.”
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Variable Interest Entities

Harleysville Statutory Trust I (Trust I), HNC Statutory Trust IT (Trust 1), HNC Statutory Trust [I1 (Trust
1IT), HNC Statutory Trust IV (Trust I'V), and East Penn Statutory Trust, (collectively, the Trusts) are considered
variable interest entities under FASB Interpretation 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as revised
(FIN 46R). Accordingly, the- Corporation is not considered the primary beneficiary and therefore the Trusts.are:
not consohdated in the Corporatlon s financial statements.

Recent Actounting Pronouncements

. In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combmatrons (revised 2007).” FAS
141(R) will srgmﬁcantiy change how entities apply the acquisition method to business combinations. The new
standard requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the transaction; establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective
for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to investors and other users all
of the information they need to evaluate and understand the nature and financial effect of the business
combination. This Statement is broader than SFAS 141, which only applied to business combinations in which
control was obtained by transferring consideration. SFAS 141(R} applies to all transactions or other events in
which an entity (the acquirer) obtains control of one or more buisinesses including-combinations achieved without
the transfer of consideration. SFAS 141(R) requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of

.that date, with limited exceptions specified in the Statement. This replaces SFAS 141°s cost-allocation process,

which requtred the cost of an acquisition to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values. SFAS 141 required the acquirer to inciude the costs incurred to effect the
acquisition {acquisition-related costs) in the cost of the acquisition that was allocated to the assets acqutred and
the liabilities assumed. SFAS 141 (R) requires those costs to be recognized separately from the acquisition. In
accordance with SFAS 141, restructuring costs that the acquirer. expected but was not obligated to incur were
recognized as if they were a llabrllty assumed at the acquisition date. SFAS ]4l(R) requires the acquirer to
recogmze those restructuring costs that do not meet the criteria in SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities™ as an expense as mcurred Acquisition related transaction costs will
be expensed as incurred. SFAS’141(R) requires an acqurrer to recognize assets or liabilities arising from all other
contingencies (contractual contmgencres) as of the acquisition date, measured at their acqutsrtmn-date farr values
only if it is more likely than not that they meet the definition of an asset or a liability on’the acquisition date.
Under SFAS 141(R), changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in
a business combination after the measurement period will impact income tax expense. Additionally, under SFAS
141(R), the allowance for loan losses of an acquiree will not be permitted to be recognized by the acquirer. .

SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Corporatlon is currently
assessmg the impact of the adoption of this FAS 141(R) on its financia} statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.” FAS
160 requires all entities to report noncontrélling (minority) interests in subsidiaries as equ1ty in the consolidated
financial statements. Its intention is to eliminhate the diversity in practlce regarding the accounting for transactions
between an entity and noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2008. The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of SFAS 160 on its financial

statements.
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In November 2007, the SEC issued SAB 109, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value through
Earnings.” SAB 109 revises and rescinds portions of SAB 105, “Application of Accounting Principles to Loan "
Commitments.” The SEC staff’s current view is that the expected net future cash flows related to the associated -
servicing of a loan should be included in the measurement of derivative and other written loan commitments that
are accounted for at fair value through eamings. That view is consistent with the guidance in Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets” and FASB No.
159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” SAB 109 retains the view expressed
in SAB 105 that internally developed intangible assets should not be recorded as part of the fair value of a
derivative loan commitment. The guidance in SAB 109 is effective for derivative loan commitments issued or
modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The adoption of SAB 109 is not expected to have

a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements. . » v

In June 2007, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 06-1 l “Accountmg for
Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards.” EITF06-11 requires companies to U
recognize the income tax benefit realized from dividends or dividend equivalents that are charged to retained
earnings and paid to employees for nonvested equity-classified employee share-based payment awards as an
increase to additional paid-in capital. EITF 06-11 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15,°2007.
The Company does not expect EITF 06-11 will have a material impact on its financial statements, n

In April 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FIN 39-1, Amendment of FASB
Interpretation No. 39, “Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts.” FIN 39-1 permits a reporting entity
that is party 10 a master netting arrangement to offset the receivable or payable recognized upon payment or
receipt of cash collateral against the fair value amounts recognized against derivative instruments, thaf had been
offset under the same master netting arrangement. This FSP also replaces the terms “conditional contracts” and

exchange contracts” with the broader term “derivative instruments.” FIN 39-1 applies to fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. A reporting entity also must recognize the effects of initial adoption as a change in
accounting principle through retrospective application for all periods presented, unless it is impracticable to do
so. The Corporation has chosen not to adopt FIN 39-1 due to the immaterial :mpact on the Corporation’s
financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 139 permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS 159 provides entities
with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The Statement also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements. The entity shall report the effect of the first re-measurement to fair
value as a cumulative-effective adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamnings. At each subsequent
reporting date, unrealized gains and losses on items for which [the fair value option has been elected willbe
reported in earnings. The fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument, with a few exceptions, is
irrevocable and is applied only to entire instruments. Most of the provisions of SFAS 159 apply only to entities
that elect the fair value option. However, the amendment to SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in-
Debt and Equity Securities,” applies to all entities with available-for-sale and trading securities. If the fair value
option is elected for any available-for-szle or held-to-maturity securities at the effective date, the cumulative
unrealized gains and losses at that date shall be included in the cumulative-effect adjustment. SFAS 159 is
effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. Early adopuon
was penmtted as of the beginning of a fiscal year that began on or before November 15, 2007, provnded that the
entity also elected to apply the provisions of SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” The Corporation is not .
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currently electing to measure any additional financial instruments at fair.value under this Statement and the
adoption of FAS 159 is not expected to have a material impact on its financial statcments.

In Septémber 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 clarifics the
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value as “the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ]:ablhty in an orderly transaction between market
participants at ‘the measurement date.” The Statement will require the Corporation to apply valuation techniques
that (1) place greater reliance on observable inputs and less reliance on unobservable inputs ‘and (2) are consistent
with the market approach, the income approach, and/or the cost approach. The definition and framework apply to
both items recognized and reported at fair value in the financial statements and items disclosed at fair value in the
notes to the financial statements. The Statement also requires expanded disclosure in interim and annual financial
statements about how the Corporation uses fair value. The disclosures focus on items measured at fair value

~ based on significant unobservable inputs and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings. The disclosures

are only required for items recognized and reported at fair value in the financial statements. The Statement does
not change existing accounting rules governing what can or what must be recognized and reported at fair value in
the Corporation’s financial statements, or disclosed at fair value in the Corporation’s notes to the financial
statements. Additionally, SFAS 157 does not eliminate practicability exceptions that exist in accounting
pronouncements amended by this Statement when measuring fair value. As a result, the Corporation will not be
required to recognize any new instruments at fair value. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years, although earlier application was encouraged
Prospective application of the provisions of SFAS 157 is required as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which
itis mltlally applied, except for certain circumstances specified in the Statement that require retrospective
apphcanon In March 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2 to partially delay the effective implementation of
SFAS 157 until fiscal years beginning after November, 15, 2008 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities except

- those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually).

Assets and liabilities currently reported or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis in the Corporation’s
financial statements include investment securities, impaired loans, residential mortgage loans held for sale,
mortgage servicing rights and derivatives. The Corporation does not anticipate any material impact on its
financial statements upon partial adoption of FAS 157 for its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008. The |
Corporation is in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of SFAS 157 for its fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2009 relating to nonfinancial assets and liabilities on the Corporation’s financial statements including
goodwill and other mtanglble assets,

At its September 2006 meetmg,, the EITF reached a final consensus on Issue 06-05, “Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insurance~Determining the Amount That Could be Realized in Accordance with FASB
Technical Bulletin No. 85-4.” [ssiie 06-05 concludes that in determining the amount that could be realized under
an insurance contract accounted for under FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, “Accounting for Purchases of Life’
Insurance,” the policyholder should (1) consider any additional amounts included in the contractual terms of the

~ policy; (2) assume the surrender value on a individual-life by individual-life policy basis; and (3) not discount

the cash surrender value component of the amiount that could be realized when contractual restrictions on the
ability fo surrender a policy exist. [ssue 06-05 should be adopted through either (1) a change in accounting
principle through a cumulatwe—effcct adjustment to retained earnings as of the begmmng, of the year of adoption
or (2) a change in accountmg principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. Issue 06-05 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The application of lssue 06-05 did not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial posmon or results of operations.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Aécounting Policies (Continued)

At its September 2006 meeting, the EITF reached a final consensus on Issue 06—04, “Accounting for
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split—Dollar Life Insurance ,
Arrangements.” In accordance with the EITF consensus, an agreement by an employer to share a portion of the
proceeds of a life insurance policy with an employee during the postretirement period is a postretirement benefit
arrangement required to be accounted for under SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accountmg for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions” or APB Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion— 1967.” Furthermore, the purchase of
a split—dollar life insurance policy does not constitute a settlement under SFAS No. 106 and, therefore, a llablhty
for the postretirement obligation must be recognized under SFAS No. 106 if the benefit is offered under an _
arrangement that constitutes a plan or under APB No. 12 if it is not part of a plan. The provisions of Issue 06~04
are to be applied through either a cumulative—effect adjustment to retained carnings as of the beginning of the |
year of adopticn or retrospective application. Issue (6—04 is effective for annual or interim reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2007. The application of Issue 06- 04 is not expected'to have a material effect on

the Corporation’s financial statements.
1

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The .
provisions of FIN 48 are to be applied to ali tax positions upon initial adoption of this standard. Only tax
positions that meet a “more-likely-than-not” recognition threshold at the effective date may be recognized or
continue to be recognized upon adoption of FIN 48. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48
are to be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings {or other appropriate components
of equity or net dssets in the statement of financial position) for that fiscal year, The new int_efpretation also
provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Corporation’s implementation of this interpretation did not have a material impact on the
Corporat:on s financial position or results of operations and did not result in an adJustment to opening retamed
earnings.

In May 2007, the FASB issued FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FIN 48” to provide guidance on how
an enterprise should determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose of recognizing
previously unrecognized tax benefits. FIN 48-1 is effective retroactively to January 1, 2007. The implementation
of this standard did not have any impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial position or results of ‘
operations,
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Note 2—Acquisitions / Dispositions o

On December 27, 2007, thé Bank settled and closed an agreement to sell fifteen properties to affiliates of
American Realty Capital, LLC (*ARC”) in a sale- leaseback transaction. The properties are located throughout
Berks, Bucks, Lehigh, Montgomcry, Northampton, and Carbon counties. Under the leases, the Bank will
continue to utlllze the properties in the normal course of business. Lease payments on each propeﬂy are
institution-quality, triple net leases with an initial annual aggregate base rent of $3.0 million with annual rent
escalations equal to the lower of CPI-U (Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers) or 2.0 percent
commencing in the second year of the lease ferm. As tenant, the Bank will be fully responsible for all costs
associated with the operation, repair and maintenance of the properties during the lease terms and wnll be
recorded as occupancy expense. The agreement provides that each lease will have a term of 15 years,
commencing on the closing date for the Agreement. The agreement ¢ also contains options to renew for periods
aggregating up to 45 years, Under certain circumnstances these renewal optlons are subject to révocation by the
lessor. The Bank received net proceeds of $38.2 million and recorded a gain on sale from the transaction of $2.3
million (pre-tax)} representing a portion of the total gain of $18.9 million. The remaining gain will be deferred and
amortized through a reduction of occupancy expense over the 15-year term of the leases an annual amount of
approximately $1.1 million. The properties sold had a carrying value of $19.5 million. The Corporation also
completed a separate sale-leaseback of office space in Qctober 2007 receiving net proceeds of $1.5 million with a
recognized pre-tax gain of $473,000. The deferred gam of $552 000 will be amortlzed over.10-year term of the
lease. :

‘Effective November 1_6', 2007, the Corporation c'omplcted its acquisition of East Penn Financial Corporation
(East Penn Financial). Under the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 15, 2007, as -
amended August 29, 2007, East Penn Finangial was acquired by Harleysville National Corporatlon and East Penn
Financial’s wholly owned subsidiary, East Penn Bank, a $451 million state chartered, FDIC insured bank
offering deposit and lending services throughout the Lehlgh ‘Valley, PA merged with and into Harleysvnlle
National Bank. These transacnons were effective on November 16, 2007. Headquartered and founded in '
Emmaus, PA in 1990, East Penn Financial had nine banking offices located in Lehigh, Northampton and Berks
Counties. The acquisition expands the branch network that the Corpération has in the Lehigh Valley and its
opportunity to provide East Penn customers with a broader mix of products and services. East Penn Financial’s
results of operations are included in the Corporation’s results from the date of acquisition, November 16, 2007.

The Corporatxon acquired 100% of the outstandmg shares of East Penn Fmancnal Based on the terms of the
‘merger agreement and stock prices at the effective time of the merger, the transaction was valued at '
approximately $85.0 ‘million or $13:41 per share of East Penn Financial stock. Each shareholder of East Penn
Financial had the right to elect to receive either cash only or the Corporation’s shares only for each share of East
‘Penn Financial stock, but could receive a combination of both in the aggregate, subject to the allocation
provisions set forth in the Merger Agreement. The amount of final per share consideration was based on a
formula that was determined by the average of the closing prices for the Corporation’s common stock for the
twenty business day period ending eleven business days before the effective time of the merger. East Penn
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Note 2—Acquisitions / Dispositions (Continued)

Financial shares of 2,890,125 were exchanged at a conversion ratio of .8416 for 2,432,771 shares of the .
Corporation’s common $tock and East Penn Financial shares of 3,444,229 were exchanged for cash consideration
of $14.50 per share totaling $49.9 million. East Penn Financial stock options of 136,906 were exchanged for cash
consideration of $792,000 and options of 29,092 were exchanged at a conversion ratio of .8416 to acquire 25,480 -
shares of the Corporation’s common stock options, with exercise prices ranging from $5.94 to $13.07 per share .
with a total fair value of $111,000. The allocation of the Corporation’s common stock and cash was such that the
East Penn Financial shareholders did not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes on those East
Penn Financial shares that were exchanged for the Corporation’s common stock in the merger.

The following table summarizes the fair values of East Penn Financial’s assets acquired and liabilitics assumed
at the date of acquisition. This transaction. was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance
with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”

At November 16,
2007

{Dollars in thousands)

Assets: . }
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..........c..cocrveeveinirersnieccein e reeresenieans e $ 18,431
Investment securities available For SAlE ..o e s seneseennes 66,151
LOAMS ... i v s ess e er e ssssssrssn s etrats et e a e apseneans - 337,666
Less: Allowance for I0an LOSSES .....ocvreiemiieeiccsireisise e sreresessersss s ensfesssedrenes (3,250)
INEEIOANS. . ... cceeeeecr e crisestrene e emeeeeesesessssrsran st seseansene et emsasssreassstensrsssns s seres 334,416
OINET BSSELS ......ceveeeireteeeeieeeee e e s arae e esert e e sesasteessasesessssrassasssesssbessemsmsessnssansan 32,139
TOLRL ASSELS ..veveirieieeiestesteeeeesesetesra e s sssessresssbeatemsrsems sesassasseatentessresarassnan - $451,137
Liabilities: . '
Noninterest-bearing dePOoSILS .......ovrerereeereersaresieaesir s s esasses $ 46,401
INterest-bearing dEPOSIS ....c.vueercreceeereereireetie s saress e et am e senes © 336,311
ShOM-tEIT DOITOWINES .....ceoieirrecresiseiotie e nereeeest e ressstsssssssasarons s seseos snpansorssss 11,082
LONZARTIN DOTTOWINES «...vvvvvvesooeseceeeee e seoss et seessosseseessssressseessssessassssssesessennes ) 19,038
Other HabilitIes ...cvevcveeieeeeee st tes oo en v ens st et et ens e e rensrars bt sen 11,873
Total liabilities................ irefeeerneeen Lt eeanse et enart sebens s ensera et r et vear e s et seabeena . $424,705
Net aSSELS ACQUITEL .....oervvesververeresiar e resseres e s e renressens st ac e $ 26432
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Note 2—Acquisitions / Dispositions (Continued)

Goodwill.of $64.9 million was recorded in connection with the acquisition of East.Penn Financial and
allocated to the Comimunity Banking segment. The following table provides the calculation of the goodwill.
Management is in the process of evaluating and finalizing the identifiable intangible assets and purchase
accounting adjustments, thus the allocation of the purchase price is subject to reﬁnement The following table
provides the calculation of the goodwill: -

. S : . . . S s (Dollars.in
, thousands)
Purchase Price: .

Purchase price ass:gned to shares exchanged for stock $39,119 .
Purchase price assigned to shares exchanged for cash....................... i 49,941
TEANSACHON COSLS w-cvnrveeercerreereecssecseseesesssssssasssssrsssssssssssnssnsensessessosscsesees . : _ 2,246
Total PUIChase PIICE ......vvveveerieerrcne et cas sttt _ 91,306
Net Assets Acquired:
Seller shareholders’ equity ... 25,846
Estimated adjustments to reﬂect assets acqmred at fa1r value o
[NVestMents. ............... ' (1,102)
Loans (8 year WElbhted average hfe) (4,123)
Premises and equipment (39 year we:ghted average life) 1,204
Core deposit intarigible (4 year weighted average life).... 6,422
Estimated amount allocated to liabilities assumed at fair value:
Time deposits (1 year weighted average life) ..., : (703)
FHLB borrowings (1 year welghted average hfe) _ -(38)
Deferred tax hablhty (1,074)
Net assets acqu1red Cn 26,432, -
GOOAWIIILY o.ceo ittt res e see bbb st ' 364,874 -

4] Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of certain assets and certain liabilities were based on quoted market prices from reliable
market sources. When quoted market prices were not available, the estimated fair values were based upon the
~ best information available, including obtained prices for similar assets and liabilities, and the results of using
other valuation techniques. The prominent other valuation techniques used were the present value technique and
appraisal/third party valuations. When the present value technique was employed, the associated cash flow
estimates incorporated assumptions that marketplace participants would use in estimating fair values. In instances
where reliable market information was not available, the Corporation used its own assumptions in an effort to
determine a reasonable fair value. In other instances, the Corporation assumed the historical book value of certain
assets and liabilities represented a reasonable proxy of fair value. The Coporation determined that there were no
other categories of identifiable intangible assets arising from the East Penn Financial acquisition other than the
core deposit intangible. The Corporation also determined that there were no material purchase accounting
adjustments needed with respect to SOP 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a
Transfer.”
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Note 2—Acquisitions / Dispositions (Continued)

On March 1, 2007, the Comerstone Companies, a subsidiary of the Bank, completed a selected asset
purchase of McPherson Enterpriscs and related entities (McPherson), registered investment advisors specializing
in estate and succession planning and life insurance for high-net-worth construction and aggregate business
owners and families throughout the United States. Located in Towson, Maryland, McPherson became a part of
the Cornerstone Companies, a component of the Bank’s Millennium Wealth Management division. The Bank
paid $1.5 miilion in cash. Goodwill of $1.1 million and customer relationship intangibles of $375,000 (with a
weighted average amortization period of ten years) were recorded in'connection with the asset purchase.

On November 10, 2006, the Bank completed the sale of its Honesdale branch located in Wayne County,
Pennsylvania with deposits of $74.2 miilion, as well as loans and other assets of $22.5 million to First National
Community Bank. In connection with the sale, the Bank paid net cash of $42.5 million and recorded a gain in the
fourth quarter of 2006, net of federal income taxes, of $6.9 million or $.24 per diluted share. The sale of this
single Wayne County location allowed the Bank to focus on expanding within its core markets and alse helped to
provide the resources required to support strategic initiatives. '

On April 14, 2006, the Bank sold its existing credit card portfolio to Elan Financial Services, a national
credit card issuer and established an agent issuing relationship with Elan Financial Services, Under the
agreement, credit cards for the Bank are issued under the Harleysville National Bank name. The Bank sold $15.3
million in credit card receivables resulting in a gain in the second quarter of 2006 from the sale of these credit
cards, net of federal income taxes, of approximately $939,000 or $.03 per diluted share. The Bank continues to
earn certain fees from ongoing portfolio activity. The sale agreement stipulated.that any cred:t card accounts
delinquent over 30 days, overlimit accounts and petitioned bankruptcies would be guaranteed by the Bank for a
period of one year: Of the $15.3 million in crédit card receivables sold, $529,000 was Sold with full recourse which
was the total potential recourse exposure at the time of the sale. During the second quarter of 2006, the Bank
recorded a recourse liability of $371,000 which was the entire recourse liability recorded. This estimate was based
on our historic losses as experienced on similar credit card receivables, The Bank was subject to the full recourse
obligations for a period of one year. At June 30, 2007, the total potential recourse eXposure was reduced to $0 with
the expiration of the one-year recourse period. The Corporation’s actual loss experience approximated the initial
reserve.

3

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank completed its acquisition.of the Cornerstone Compames reglstered
investment advisors for hjgh net worth, privately held business owners, wealthy families and institutional clients.
Located in the Lehigh Valley, Pennsylvania, the firm serves clients throughout Pennsylvania and other mid-
Atlantic states. The purchase price consisted of $15.0 million in cash paid at closing and a contingent payment of
up 10 $7.0 miltion to be paid post-closing. The contingent payment is based upon the Cornerstone Companies
meeting certain minimum operating results during a five-year earn-out period with a maximum payout of $7.0
million over this period. For 2007 and 2006, the mintmum operating results were met resulting in earn-out
payments of $1.2 million and $1.0 million for each year, respectwely, which were recorded as additional _
goodwill. At December 31, 2007, the remaining maximum payout is $4.8 million through 2010. The Cornerstone
Companies acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No.
141, “Business Combinations.” The Cornerstone Companies results of operations are included in the
Corporation’s results from the effective date of the acquisition, January 1, 2006." Goodwill of $12.4 million
(including the earn-out payments) and customer relationship intangibles of $3.9 millien (with a weighted average
amortization period of nine years) were recorded in connection with the acquisition and allocated to the Wealth
Management segment.
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Note 3—Restrictions on Cash and Due from Banks

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank did not need to maintain reserves (m the form of deposits with
the Federal Reserve Bank) to satisfy federal regulatory requirements. '

Note 4—Investment Secul‘ities

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, and the estimated fair value of the Corporation’s investment
securities available for sale and held to maturity are as follows:

December 31, 2007

! Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
. . “(Dolars in thousands) : o
Available for sale ' ‘ . '
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies = ‘ o o
and cOrporations . . . .......oov et iiiaiatann $98926 $ 122 § (3149 S 98,734
Obligations of states and political subdivisions .. . .. 228,125 1,261 (950) 228,436
Mortgage-backed SECUTItEs . .. .o ierinn R 516,560 2,347 (2,918) 515,989
Other securities . ... .o oo v et i i _ 85,729 139 (3,459) 82,409
_Total investment securities available for sale..... $929.340 $3.869 | $(7,641) $925,568
Held to maturity )
Obligations of other U.S. govemment agenmes : O - N
and coOrporations . . . ... ....ociii i $ 388 § 29 - § —  $§ 3,897
¢ Obligations of states and political subdivisions . . . .. : 53,479 354 (212). 53,621 .
Total investment securities held to maturity. . . ... $ 57347 § 383 $ (212) % 57,518 - -
o - December 31, 2006
oL Gross Gross . .
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated -
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Available for sale
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies o o
and COrPOFAtIONS . . . ool v oo riieeenns $122,139 © 8 — 7 $(2,183) $119,956
Obligations of states and polmcal subdmswns ....... 201,241 1,023 (621) * 201,643
Mortgage-backed securities. . ........... ..o 481,126 338 - {5,407y 476,107
Oher SECUITHES . « o v v v et e e e e et eiaieee ey " 55,999 163 (858) 55,304
Total mvcstment securities available for sale.' ...... $860,505 $1.574 $(9,069) $853,010 -
Held to maturity '
Obligations of other U. 5. govemment agencies o
and COMPOTAtIONS . . . ..y v v v rernnenanesnss $ 386 § — $ (62) § 3,794
Obligations of states and political subd1v1510ns ....... 55,023 584 (104 55,503
Total investment securities held to maturity. ....... $ 58879 § 584 $ (166) § 59,297
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Note 4—Investment Securities (Continued}

The tables below indicate the length of time individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position at December 31, 2007 and 2006: ‘

Description of
Securities

Obligations of other
U.S. government
agencies and

corporations. . ... .

Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions. . . . ..

Mortgage-backed

securities . . ......

Other securities. . ...
Totals . .........

Description of
Securities

Obligations of other
U.S. government
agencies and

corporations. . . ... "

Obligations of states’
and political

subdivisions. . .....

Mortgage-backed

securities . . .......
Other securities. ... ..
Totals ...........

December 31, 2607

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
#of Fair Unrealized #of Fair Unrealized #of Fair Unrealized
Securities __Value Losses  Securities _ Value Losses  Securities Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands)
3 $ 6964 S (M 24 $ 64,392 § (307 27 $71,3%6 $ (3149)
46 37,484 (415 82 41,769 (747 128 79,255 -(1,162)
26 58,067 (730) 77 132,269 {2,188) 103 190,336 (2,918)
20 51,552 (1,896) 8 13,062 (1,563) 28 64,614 (3,459)
é $154,067 $(3,048) 191 $251,492 5(4,8G5 286 _$405,559 $(7,853)
December 31, 2006
Less than 12 months | 12 months or longer Total
#of Fair Unrealized #of Fair Unrealized #of " Fair Unrealized
Securities  Value Losses  Securities  Value Losses Securities  Value Losses
: {Dollars in thousands)
1 § 4,025 § (39 44 $114,725  $(2,211) 45 $118,750° $(2,245)
4
66 33,542 (137D 102 49,930 (588) 168 83,472 (125)
38 143,354 (688} 94 210,434 (4,719 132 353;788 (5,407)
_8 11,452 (122) 6 19,421 (736) 14 30,873 (858)
é $192,373 $(981) 246 $394,510  $(8,254) ﬁ $586,883 $(9,235)

The unrealized losses associated with the securities portfolio, that management has the ability and intent to
hold, are not considered to be other-than temporary as of December 31, 2007 because the unrealized losses are
related to changes in interest rates and do not affect the expected cash flows of the undetlying collateral or issuer.
There were 191 individual securities in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer as of
December 31, 2007. The Corporation recognized a other-than temporary charge of $55,000 during the third quarter
of 2007 as a result of an equity holding in a financial institution which was purchased by another institution at a
lower than cost share price. In conjunction with the closing of the merger during the fourth quarter of 2007, the
Corporation exchanged its equity ho[dmg in the financial institution for cash.

Securities with a carrymg value of $756.3 million and $617.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006
respectively, were pledged to secure public funds, customer trust funds, government deposits and repurchase

agreements.
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Note 4—Investment Securities (Continued)

--- The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities, at December 31, 2007, by contractual
maturities are shown in the following tabie. Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
issuers and borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment

penalties. ‘ .
: ' . December .‘;l, 2007
- v, ' Held to Maturity Available for Sale
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
{Dollars in thausands) <
Ducinoneyearorless...................... o $ — $ — $20316 $20,225
Due after one year through five years............... — — 43,301 43278 '
Due after five years throughtenyears .............. 3,598 3,610 102,135 101,581
Due afer ten years . ............oooooiooiiinn. 53,749 53,908 216981 215466
. .. 57,347 57,518 382,733 380,550
Mortgage-backed securities. .. ....... ... L — - . —. 516,560 515989
- Equity securities . ,....... e e L — — 30047 29,029
Totals. .. .... e PR P, $57,347 §57,518 §929340 $925,568

“The components of net realized gains on sales of investment securities were as follows:

l

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in thousands) .
Grossrealized gains . . ... ...t $1,329 § 445 35812
- .Gross realized losses ........... ... T e e e : 979 (L1119  (1,018)
Net realized gain (loss) on sales of investment securities . .......... $1,132 § (674) §4,794
¥
Note 5—Loans

Major clgssiﬁcatiohs of loans are as follows:

+

December 31,

2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Real estate (including loans held for saie, ‘at cost of $1,140 and $1,857).. $ 959,716 $ 846,510

+

Commercial and industrial. .. . ..... e .. 728,293 506,149
Consumef loans ........... [ P PRUTUDU 764,860 © 682,307
Lease financing. " ......,....... e o et 2,564 7,588
TOtAlIOBNS, . . oottt e 2,455,433 2,042,554
Deferred costs, net”. . . ... e P e DU - 5390 4,801
“‘Allowance for loan losses .............oooiiaiiiiis e © o (27,328) (21,154)
Net loans (including loans held forsale) /.............. . L. $2,433,495 $2,026,201
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Note 5—Loans (Continued)

On December 31, 2007, nonaccrual loans were $21.1 million and loans 90 days or more past due and still
accruing interest were $857,000. On December 31, 2006, nonaccrual loans were $15.2 million and loans 90 days
or more past due and still accruing interest were $2.4 million, The Bank’s policy for interest income recognition
on nonaccrual loans is to recognize income under the cash basis when the loans are both current and the collateral
on the loan-is sufficient to cover the outstanding obligation to the Bank. The Bank will not recognize incomg if
these factors do not exist. During 2007, interest accrued on nonaccruing loans and not recognized as interest
income was $982,000 and interest paid on nonaccruing loans of $331,000 was recognized as interest income.
During 2006, interest accrued on nonaccruing loans and not recognized as interest income was $788,000 and
interest paid on nonaccruing loans of $191,000 was recognized as interest income. During 2005, interest accrued
on nonaccruing loans and not recognized as interest income was $310,000; and interest paid on nonaccruing loans
of $250,000 was recognized as interest income.

The balance of impaired loans was $9.8 million at December 31, 2007 compared to $3.9 million at -
December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, impaired loans with specific loss allowances were $9.8
million and $3.9 million and the related allowance for loan losses were $2.2 miltion and $678,000, respectively.
The average impaired loan balance was $7.5 million in 2007, compared to $3.2 million and $1.5 million in 2006
and 2005, respectively. The income recogmzed on impaired loans during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $31,000,
$60,000 and $33,000, respectively. Impaired loans are included in the nonaccrual ioan total.

The Bank has no concentration of loans to individual borrowers which exceeded 10% of total loans at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Bank actively monitors the risk of loan concentration.

The Bank continued to pursue new lending opportunities while seeking to maintain a portfolio that is diverse
as to industry concentration, type and geographic distribution. The Bank’s geographic lending area is primarily *
concentrated in Montgomery, Bucks, Carbon, Chester Berks, Lehigh, Monroe and Northampton counties.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, residential mortgage loans serviced for others totaled $335.8 million (of |
which $5.8 million is with recourse assumed from the East Penn Financial acquisition in 2007) and $330.6
million, respectively.

Loans to directors, executive officers and their associates are made in the ordinary course of business and on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with others. Activity of theseé loans is as follows:

.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 (1) 2006 2005
' (Dollars in thousands)
Balance, Janvary | ................. ... ... S $17,393 $22,099  $22,863
New loans ... ... e L 4,451 66,666 75230
Repayments and otherreductions .. ........... ... ... ... ... 9,801 (71,372 (75,999
Balance, December 31 ... ... e $12,043  $17,393 ° $22,099

(1) A director’s affiliation with a borfower ended during the fourth quarter of 2006 accounting for the majonty of
the decrease in activity dunng 2007,
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Note 6—AHowance for Loan Losses Lo ct

The table below summarizes the changes in the-allowance for loan losses: Lo

. . (N Year Ended December 31,
. . ] 2007 2006 2005
! Y ' : ' ‘ (Dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year. . ... ... ... ... L L. $21,154 319,865 318,455 '
Provision for loan losses .............. S e e . 10,550 4,200 3401 .
Reserve from East Penn Financial vaUISltl()n. N 3,250 - -
Loans charged off........ e e PR S (8,142) - 3,71y (3,047)
, : ‘Recoveries, ..\ ....... R 516 . 800 1,056
| Balance, end of year. .. .. .. e P . ... 827328 $21,154  $19,865
! Note 7—Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment co'nsist. of the following;
Estilimted "~ December 31,'
Useful Lives 2007 2006
: . DT " e ‘ (Doliars in thousands)
Land. . ... e e Indefinite $ 3,397 § 4,446
Buildings. ... e e 15-39 years 22,146 31,963
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .. .......0.....c.uvunn.. 3-7 years 41,357 35,958
TotalCost. . ... e 66,900 72,367
Less accumulated depreciation and AMOTHZAtON. . . ... ....... . ._(34,382) (38,582
Premises and equipment, net. ... ... e S . - $32,518 .%33,785

Deprec1at10n cxpcnse for the years ended December 31, 2{)07 2006 and 2005 was $4.0 mllllon $3.3 million and
$3.4 million, respectively.
Note B—Goodwﬂl and Other Intangibles

Goodwnll and identifiable intangibles were $1 11.2 million and $10.6 million, respectively at December 3! 2007,
and $44.0 million and $4.7 million, respectively at December 31, 2006.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment were as follows:
Community Wealth

. . ' Banking  Management . * Total
. ) . (Dollars in thousands)
Balance, January 1,2006 .. ... ... .. oo $31,552 %, — §$31,552
Additions to goodwill from acquisitions. . .................... — 12,404 12,404
Balance, December 31,2006 ... ... i 31,552 12,404 43956
Additions to goodwill from acquisitions. . . .................. - 64,874 2,325 67,199
Balance, December 31,2007 .. ... .. it . $96,426 $14,729 $111,155
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Note 8—Goodwill and Other Intangibles (Continued) v

The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization related to core deposit intangibles and other identifiable
intangibles at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are presented below:

. 4

‘ ' ‘ December 31,
’ 2007 L 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount + Amortization _ Amount Amortization "'
(Doltars in thousands)
‘Core deposit-intangibles. . .. ... e e - $8,351 $ 1,061 $1,929 - § 733
Other identifiable mtanglbles...' ........ e © 4,288 927 = 3913 - 448

[ - 4

Total e e P $12,639 $1,988 $5,842 . 81,181

Management performed its annual review of goodwill at June 30, 2007 in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ and determined that there was no impairment of goodwill and other ‘
identifiable intangible assets. For ﬁmher information related to goodwnll and mlanglble assets, see Note 2 — i
Acquisitions / Dispositions. '

The remammg wei ghted average amornzatmn period of core deposit intangibles is four years, other identifiable
intangibles is eight years and the combined intangibles is five years. The amortization of core deposit intangibles
allocated to the Community Bankmg segment was $328,000, $246 000 and $246,000 for the years ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Amortization of identifiable intangibles related to the Wealth Management
segment totaled $479,000 and $448,000 for the’ years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Corporation estimates that aggregate amortization expense for core dep051t and other identifiable intangibles will be
$1.9 million, $1.8 million, $1.6 million, $1.4 million and $1.1 million for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively.

Mortgage servicing rights of 2.7 million and $2.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively are
included on the Corporation’s balance sheet in other intangible assets and subsequently measured using the -
amortization method. The mortgage servicing rights had a fair value of $3.3 million and $3.8 million at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The Corporation’s mortgage servicing nghts are not con51dered material to its financial
statements and therefore addltlona! disclosures are not provided. -

Note 9—Deposits ’

Time deposits with balances of $!00,600 or more were $483.7 million and $302.0 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Deposits from directors and executive officers of the Corporation were approximately $2.9
million and_ $3.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2007, schcduh;d matp'rities of cér'tiﬁca_tes_ of depqsit are as follows:

\ Amount
’ T : . " {Dollars in theusands)
2008 ......... PR O L O ' $ 835496
200 . . e e e e et . 243,925
2010........... e e 02,034
2001........... e e R S ' 26,195
20012, e e RUTITIUUR . 4,854
Thereafter ..................... P U e ’ 186
Total ......... P, e e e $1,202,6%0
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Note 10—Borrowings
Federal Funds Lines of Credit with Correspondent Banks

Total federal funds lines of credit with correspondent banks at becember 31, 2007 were $195.0 million all of
which is unused. These lines of credit are available for overnight funds and the rate is based on the correspondent
bank’s quoted rate at the time of the transaction.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

As of December 31, 2007, long- term securities sold under agreements to repurchase with private entities were
$105.0 million. The maturity dates range from 2011 through 2012, with call dates ranging from 2008 to 2009. The
weighted average interest rate as of December 31, 2007 was 4.71%. Additionally, the Corporation had $101.5 million
of short-term securities sold under agreements to repurchase. As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s securities
sold under agreements to repurchase were $96.8 million, all of which were short-term.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Federal Home E.oan Bank (FHLB) advances at December 31, 2007 totaled $216.8 million, all of which were
long-term with a weighted average interest rate of 4.37%. FHLB advances at December 31, 2006 totaled $239.8
million, all of which were long-term with a weighted average interest rate of 4.32%. The advances are collateralized
by FHLB stock and certain first mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities. Advances are made pursuantto =
several different credit programs offered from time to time by the FHLB. Unused lines of credit with the'FHLB were
$363.1 million at December 31, 2007 and $181.7 million at December 31, 2006.

At December 3 1, 2007, scheduled maturities of long-term berrowings with the FHLB are as follows:

Weighted

Balance Average Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

20084 0 S e IO $ 57,000 4.73%
2009..... ... ... e P IR 40,750 4.13%
2000, . e T 14,000 4.34%
2011..... e S 30,000 4.,84%
2012, " 25,000 4.56%
Thereafter ............ .. ... e 50,000 3.78%

Total .o e $216,750 4.3™%

Trust Preferred Subordinated Debentures

As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation has five statutory trust affiliates (collectively, the Trusts). These
trusts were formed to issue mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities to investors and loan the proceeds to the
Corporation for general corporate purposes. The Trusts hold, as their sole assets, subordinated debentures of the
Corporation. The trust preferred securities represent undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the Trusts. The
Corporation owns all of the trust preferred securities of the Trusts. The Trusts qualify as variable interest entities
under FIN 46R and are not consolidated in the Corporation’s financial statements,

The trust preferred securities require quarterly distributions to the holders of the trust preferred securities at a rate
per annum equal to the interest rate on the debentures held by that trust. The Corporation has the right to defer
payment of interest on the debentures, at any time or from time to time for a period not exceeding five years, provided
that no extension period may extend beyond the stated maturity of the debentures. During any such extension period,
distributions on the trust securities will also be deferred, and the Corporation shall not pay dividends or distributions
on, or redeem, purchase or acquire any shares of its capital stock.
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Note 10—Borrowings {Continued) - . o

The trust preferred securitics must be redeemed upon the stated maturity dates of the subordinated debentures.
The Corporation may redeem the debentures, in whole but not in part, (except for Harleysville Statutory Trust 11
which may be redeemed in whole or in part) at any time within 90 days at the specified special event redemption price
following the occurrence of a capital disqualification event, an investment company event or a tax e¢vent as set forth in *
the indentures relating to the trust preferred securities-and in cach case subject to regulatory approval. For HNC
Statutory Trust I1, IIl and IV and East Penn Statutory Trust I, the Corporation also may redeem the debentures, in
whole or in part, at the stated optional redemption dates (after five years from the issuance date) and quarterly
thereafier, subject to regulatory approval if required. The optional redemption price is equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the debentures being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the debentures to the redemption date.
For Harleysville Statutory Trust I, the Corporation may redeem the debt securities, in whole or in part, at the stated
optional redemption date of February 22,2011 and semi-annually thereafter, subject to regulatory approval if
required. The redemption price on February 22, 2011 is equal to 105.10% of the principal amount, and ‘declines
annually to 100.00% on February 22, 2021 and thereafier, plus accrued and unpaid interest on the debentures to the
redemption date.

The Corporation’s obligations under the debentures and related documents, taken together, constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by the Corporation of the Trust’s obligations under the trust preferred securities.

In March 2005, the Federal Reserve Board adopted a final rule that allows the continued limited inclusion of
outstanding and prospective issuances of trust preferred securities in Tier 1 capital of bank holding compames Under
the final rule, trust preferred securities and other restricted core capital elements will be subject to stricter quantitative
limits. The Board’s final rule limits restricted core capital elements to 25% of all core capital elements, net of
goodwill, less any associated deferred tax liability. Amounts of restricted core capital elements in excess of these

* limits generally may be included in Tier 2 capital. The final rule provides a five-year transition period ending
March 31, 2009, for application of the quantitative limits. In addition, the requirement for trust preferred securities:to
include a call option has been eliminated, and standards for the junior subordinated debt underlying trust preferred
securities cligible for Tier | capital treatment have been clarified. Management has evaluated the effects of the
rule and does not anticipate a material impact on its capita! ratios upon lmplementatmn

1

The following table is a summary of the subordinated debentures as of December 31, 2007 as ongmated by the -
Corporation-and assumed from the acquisition of East Penn Financial during 2007: I

Principal
- Principal . Amountof .
Amount of Trust
) Lo Subordinated Preferred
Trust Preferred Subordinated Debentures ' Debentures. Securities

(Dollars in thousands)
Issued to Harleysville Statulory Trust | in February 2001, matures in Fcbruary 2031,

interest rate of 10.20% per annum $ 5,155 $ 5,006_ N
Issued to HNC Statutory. Trust !l in March 2004, matures in April 2034, interest rate of §
- three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 2.70% per annum . 20,619 20,600

[ssued to HNC Statutory Trust 111 in September 2005, matures in November 2035,
bearing interest at 5.67% per annum through November 2010 and thercaficr three- month

LIBOR plus 1.40% per annum 25,774 25,000
‘ Issued to HNC Statutory Trust IV in August 2007, matures in October 2037, bearing

interest at 6.35% per annum through October 2012 and thereafier three-month LIBOR

plus 1.28% per annum 23,196 22,500

Issued to East Penn Statutory Trust 1 in July 2003, matures in Scptcmbcr 2033, interest
rate of 6.80% per annum through September 2008 and thereafter at three-month LIBOR
plus 3.10% per annum , 8,248 8,000

Total ... e $82,992 $80,500
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Note 11—Income Taxes

Uncertain Tax Positions . - : ; .- ,

The Corporation adopted the provisions of FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in lncome Taxes” on January 1,
2007. Previously, the Corporation had accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting

" for Contingencies.” As required by Interpretation on 48, which clarifies SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income

Taxes,” the Corporation recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the
relevant tax authority would more’likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that hasa
greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlément with the relevant tax authority. At the
adoption date, the Corporation applied Interpretation 48 to ali tax positions for which the statute of limitations
remained open. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007, was §$1 7?,000.

A_.r‘econciliatioﬁ_ of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:, .

Balance at January 1,2007 ............. e $ 175,000

Additions based on tax positions related to prior years .......... 26,000

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year ...... 48,000: ,
Balance at December 31,2007 ........... e $ 249,000 ,

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007, includes $249,000 of unrecognized tax beneﬁts
which, if ultlmately recognized, will reduce the Corporation’s annual effectlve tax rate.

The Corporation is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various states, the majonty of
activity residing in Pennsylvania. The statue of limitations for Pennsylvania has expired on years prior to 2003: The .
expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns the Corporation and subSIdlarles

file, varies by state, and are expected to expire over the term of 2008 through 2012. . - i -,

" The Corporation’s policy for recordmb interest and penalties associated with audits is to record such items as a
component of income before income taxes. Penalties are re¢orded in other expenses, net, and interest paid or received
is recorded in interest expense or interest incomie, respectively, in the statement of income. Interest accrued was
$17,000 and $43,000 as of January st and December 3 1st, 2007, respectively. No penalties have been accrued to
date. ' . s

The components of income tax expense were as follows:
o Year Ended December 31,

) 1007 2006 2008

. (Dollars in thousands)

Current income tax expense:

Federal. ... oo, e DU L 815943 $13221  $i7,814° o~
State. .t P, i 245 162 119
Total current income tax cxpcnqe ........................ 16,188 13,383 17,933
Deferred income taX. . ... oottt . (8,916) 693 (5,530)
Total income tax expense .................. e $7,272 514,076 §12;403
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Note 11—Income Taxes (Continued)

The effective income tax rates of 21.5% for 2007, 26.3% for 2006 and 24.2% for 2005 were less than the
applicable federal income tax rate of 35% for each year The reasons for these differences follows:
. Year Ended December 31, [

2007 2006 2005
(Doellars in thousands)
Expected InCOme (aX eXPense .. ... .. ooiin e et $12,102 318,779 $18,008
Tax-exempt income net of i mtereqt disallowance ................ @70 (4,740)  (5,078)
Other ... e {123) 37 {201)
Tax benefit from sale of Cumberland Advisors, Inc.............. — — (320)
Actual income tax expense ....... e e $7,272 $14076 $12,403

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are as follows: .

2007 ' 2006
Asset Liability. Asset Liability
. (Dollars in thousands) .
Allowance forJoanlosses . ........................ $8494 § — $7404 § —
Lease assets. ....... e e ) —_ 1,666 —_ 3,692
Deferréd loan fees. . oo v v, LT — 7 2,895 —_ 2,637
Deferred compensation ........................... ‘ 2,936 — 2,796 —
Pension ......... .. ... e, 595 — —_ 102.
Stock-based compensation expense .............. ... 40 —_ 34 —
Mortgage servicingrights . ........................ — 941 — 917
Depreciation . ............ .. ... ... ... ., . — 513 — 288
Net operating loss carryforward .. .................. — — 208 —
. Unrealized loss on investment securities ............. - 1,320 —_ 2,623 —
Net unrealized gain on derivative used for cash flow ,
hedge. .. ..o 62 — — 164
Unrealized loss on pension liability ................. g — — 826 -
Purchase accounting adjustments ................... — 1,284 — '561
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback of bank properties. . . .. 5,979 — — —
Other ... — 1,857 — 989
Total deferredtaxes ©......................ccooiu., 519426  $9,156 $I3 89] $9,350

As a result of the acqmsmon of East Penn Financial during 2007, the Corporatlon recorded a net deferred tax
liability of approximately $1.3 million. For additional information related to the deferred gain on sale-leaseback of
bank properties during 2007 of $6.0 million, see item 8, Note 2, *Notes to Consolidated Fmanc1al Statements—
Acquisitions / Dispositions.”

. Note 12—Pension Plans
Defined Benefit Pension.Plan

The Corporation has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially.all employees. The
plan’s benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average compensation during any five consecutive
years within the ten-year period preceding retirement. On Qctober 31, 2007, the Corporation announced that it has
formally amended its pension plan to provide for its termination. Employees cease to accrue additional pension
benefits as of December 31, 2007, and pension benefits are not to be provided under a successor pension plan. All
retirement benefits earned'in the pension plan as of December 31, 2007, are preserved and all participants became
fully vested in their benefit. During 2008, upon receipt of the appropriate regulatory approvals for termination of the
pension plan, assets will be distributed to those participants who elect lump sumns and nonparticipating annuity
contracts will be purchased to settle the accumulated benefit obligation as of that date,
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Note 12—Pension Plans (Continued)

The Corporation recorded a one-time pre-tax charge related to the pension plan curtailment of approximately
$1.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 as detailed in the following table. The curtailment charge was recorded in
other expenses in the statement of income and impacted the Community Banking and Wealth Management segments.

Year Ended
December 31, 2007
. Before Effect of After
Assets and obligations: Curtailment Curtailment Curtailment
- {Dollars in thousands)
Vested benefit obligation . . . .. P e $ 878 $2,557 $11,343
Non—ve§ted benefits . ..oovirri 383 148 531
) Accumulated benefit obligation. .. ................. 9,169 2,705 11,874
- Effect of future compensation levels. .............0. © 3,015 - (3,015 -
Projected benefit obligation. ................ ... . $12,184 $ (310) $11,874
. L, |
Plan assets at fair value ... ... e $10,200 $ - $10,200
Unrecognized net asset at transition ................ R - (51
Unrecognized net loss (gain) subsequent to transition. . 2,252 310 . 1,942
Adjustment required to recognize minimum liability .. - 1,891 1,891
(Prepaid)/accrued pension cost ................ ... 217) 1,891 1,674
The plan’s funded status for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 follow: ;
2007 2006

. (Dollars in thousands)
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year. ............. ot » $11,586 $11,052
Ry W T o oL O R R e . 1,166 1,041
TIEETESE COSE . « o o v e et e e e e et e et et ittt ae e e e a e s " 683 654
Actual gain (I0SS) . ..ottt © 182 (199)
Benefits Paid. . ... oot e . (1,433) (962)
Benefits obligation atend of year .. ... $11,874° $11,586
Change in plan assets: : . - ‘ T
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. .. .. A - $9575  $8,584 .
Actual return on plan asset$. ... .......... i e e PRI 808" 703
Employer contribution . . . ... .. ..oiiniir e 1,250 1,250
Benefits paid. .. ... .oori {1,433) (962)
Fair value of plan assetsatend of year. ......... ... oo $10,200 $9,575
Funded status at end 0f Year. . ... ... .ouiiiiiinrrin s $(1,674 $2.,011)
. 2007, 2006
{Dollars in thousands) 3

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss (net of tax)
consist of: o ‘ K o
Net actuarial loss ............. . L e $ - 31,519

Transition asset............. N e S .- : - (44)
Total amount recognized, netoftax .................... ... e Lo $ - 51,535

Change in assumptions (plan curtailment) ' (310) -
|
|
|
|
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Note 12—Pension Plans (Continued)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $11.9 million and $8.9 million at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

Information for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess
of plan assets follows:

Year Ended -
December 31,
2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands) - u
Projected benefit obligation. . ........ ... ... ... i .. - $11,874 $11,586
Accumulated benefit obligation. ........ ... ... ... ... ... . 11,874 8,865
Fairvalueof planassets. . ........ .. ... . .. .. . 10,200 © - 9,575
' : . Year Ended
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine ‘ : ._December 31 v
pension plan obligations as of December 31, . i 2007 2006 . 2005 oo
DS COUNL T . . . L. i e 4,75% 6.008% 6.00%.
Rate of compensation increase .......... e 0.00% 4.00% 4.00%
- . \?ear Ended :
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine ' December 31,
. Pension plan net periedic benefit cost as of Décember 31, _— ) 2007 2006 2005 ) 7
. Discountrate......................, e e 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% X
_ Expectedreturnon planassets. . ........................., s 6.00% 6.00% 6.00°%. -
Rate of compensation increase .......... P e 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% o
Year Ended '
December 31, '~ -
Components of net periodic defined benefit expense ) . . 2007 2006 2005
' ' ' . (Dollars in thousands) -
Service cost. . ... ... e e . --81,166  $1,041° $1,052
“Interestcost. .. .. ... e, e e - 683 654 - 642
Expected return on planassets. .. .................. . e (600)  (551) . (524)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial losses. ., .+ ............... 76 118 92
Net periodic benefitexpense............. S P .. $1,325 51,262 $1,262

The pension plan assets were invested with a growth and income strategy with a target asset allocation of 60%
equity and 40% fixed income securities. This allocation was changed to a preservation of capital objective pursuant to
the decision to terminate the plan. The pension plan equity reduction strategy has been implemented along with a re-
allocation of fixed income securities and cash equivalents in preparation for an expected third quarter 2008 final
distribution to participants. The reduction in equities began in late August 2007 and accelerated with sales in
September 2007 1o finish out the third quarter with a 25% allocation 1o stocks.

o

During November 2007, the final sales were initiated to close out the remaining equity positions, which
represented less than 5% of the portfolio. The Fixed Income portfolio has been re-allocated with maturity - : '
considerations for final benefits to be paid on or after September 30, 2008. Cash has been reinvested into high quality
fixed income instruments and cash equivalents such as, secondary certificate of deposits, government agencies and
insured taxable municipals.
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Note 12—-Pension Plans (Continued)

The Corporation’s pension plan weighted—avei‘age asset allocations by asset category are as follows:

Percentage of
Plan Assets at

December 31,

2007 2006
Asset Category
EqQUity SEOUMITES - . ..o ottt e it e e —% 59.7%
Dbt SBCUMIES. . ov vt i ettt et e et ee e i 334% 33.1%
Cashand cash equivalents . ... 66.6%  7.2%
N e 1 R A TR 100.0% 100.0%

Supplemental Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for certain officers and key employees.
The plan provides for payment to the covered employee of an annual supplemental retirement benefit up to 50% of
their average annual compensation upon retirement, thereafter offset by the employer’s share of social security,
defined benefit pension and available employer’s 401(k) matching contribution. There is a lifetime payout in
retirement benefits with a miriimum payout of 10 years. There is a pre-retirement death benefit, payable forl0 years,
of 100% of the average annual compensation for the first year, and up to 50% of the average annual compensation for
the next 9 years. The Corporation’s liability under these agreements is being accrued over the participants’ remaining
service period. The accrued benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $5.4 miilion for both years.

In connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial in 2007, the Corporation assumed an obligation under
the East Penn Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan which provides for a fixed payment to the covered'employee
beginning at age 62 with a 15 year benefit period. The pre-retirement death benefit is the accrued benefit. The liability
for this agreement has been fully accrued. The accrued benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007 is $593,000.

Defined Comrib&_tion‘ Plan,

The Corpotation maintains a 401(k) defined contribution retirement savings plan which allows employees to
contribute a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax and/or after-tax basis in accordance with specified guidelines.
The Corporation matched 50% of pre-tax employee contributions up to a maximum of 3% for 2007, 2006 and 2005.
Contributions charged to carnings were $742,000, $628,000 and $569,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Effective January 1, 2008, in addition to the company match up to a maximum of 3%, all eligible employees will
begin receiving a company funded contribution in the 401(k) plan equal to 2% of eligible earnings.

Note 13—Stock Repurchase Program and Stock Dividend

The Corporation has a stock repurchase program that permits the repurchase of up to five percent of its
outstanding common stock. The repurchased shares will be used for.general corporate purposes. On May 12, 2005,

 the Board of Directors authorized a plan to purchase up to 1,416,712 shares (adjusted for five percent stock dividend

paid on September 15, 2006 and September 15, 2005) or 4.9%, of its outstanding common stock. As of December 31,
2007, the maximum number of shares that may yet be purchased under the plan is 731 761,

On September 15, 2006, the Corporation paid a five percent stock dividend on its common stock to shareholders
of record as of September 1, 2006. -

On September 15, 2005, the Corporation paid a five percent stock dividend on its common stock to sharcholders
of record as of September 1, 2005,

All prior period amounts in the consolidated financial statements and footnotes have been restated to reflect
these stock dividends. ' '
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Note 14—Stock-Based Compensation

The Corporation has four shareholder approved fixed stock option plans that allow the Corporation to grant
options up to an aggregate of 3,797,861 shares of common stock to key employees and directors. At December 31,
2007, 2,522,046 stock options had been granted under the stock option plans. The options have a term of ten years
when issued and typically vest over a five-year period. The ¢xercise price of each option is the market price of the
Corporation’s stock on the date of grant. Additionally, at December 31, 2007, the Corporation has 328,327 granted
stock options as a result of the Millennium Bank acquisition completed in 2004. The options have a term of ten years
and the remaining exercisable prices range from $9.32 to $13.12. Also, at December 31, 2007, the Corporation has
25,480 granted stock options as a resuit of the East Penn Bank acquisition completed in 2007. The options have a
term of ten years and are exercisable at prices ranging from $5.94 t0 $13.07.

The Corporation recognizes compensation expense for stock options in accordance with SFAS 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123(R)) adopted at January 1, 2006 under the modified prospective application
method of transition. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Corporation followed SFAS 123 and APB 25 with pro forma
disclosures of net income and earnings per share, as if the fair value-based method of accounting defined in SFAS 123
had been applied. The Corporation recognizes compensation expense for the portion of outstanding awards at January
1, 2006 for which the requisite service has not yet been rendered, based on the grant-date fair value of those awards
calculated under SFAS 123 for pro forma disclosures. For grants subject to a service condition that were awarded on
or after January 1, 2006, the Corporation utilizes the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (as used under SFAS 123)
1o estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. For granis subject to a market condition that were
awarded in 2007, the Corporation utilizes a Monte Carlo simulation to estimate the fair value and determine the
derived service period. Compensation is recognized over the derived service period with any unrecognized
compensation cost immediately recognized when the market condition is met.

During 2007, the Corporation granted stock options which were subject to a market condition. These awards vest
when the Corporation’s common stock reaches targeted average trading prices for 30 days within five years from the
grant date. Vesting cannot commence befote six months from the grant date, ‘The term and exercise price of the
options are the same as previously mentioned. The fair value and derived service period (the median period in whlch
the market condition is met) were determined using a Monte Carlo simulation with the following assumptions:
weighted average dividend yield of 4.59% based on historical data, weighted-average expected volatility of 32. 65%
based on historical data, risk-free rate of 4.54% to 5.17%, weighted average expectcd life of 6.04 years and a umfon'n
post-vesting exercise rate (mid-point of vesting and contractual term).

During 2006 and 2005, all options awarded were subject to a service condition. The fair value of these options
were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions based on historical data for grants in 2006 and 2005, respectively: weighted-average dividend
yvield of 3.52% and 3.27%; weighted-average expected volatility of 32.19% ahd 31.15%, weighted average risk-free
interest rate of 4.64% (4.42% to 5.08%) and 4.41% (3.79% to 4.57%) and a weighted-average expected life of 7.28
years and 7.15 years.

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Corporation’s stock over the expected life of the
grant. The risk-free rate for periods within the expected life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury strip rate in
effect at the time of the grant. The life of the option is based on historical factors which include the contractual term,
vesting period, exercise behavior and employee termmatlons

In accordance with SFAS 123(R), stock based compensatmn expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest and therefore has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.
The Corporation estimates forfeitures using historical data based upon the groups identified by management. Prior to
January 1, 2006, under SFAS 123, forfeitures were accounted for as they occurred. Stock-based compensation
expense for 2007 was $118,000 and $100,000 net of tax and for 2006 was $440,000 and $407,000, net of tax.
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Note 14—Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and eamings per share if the Corporation had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) to stock-based employee compensation for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (all per share information has been adjusted retroactively for the effect of stock dividends). See
Note 15, “Eamings Per Share,” for calculation of eamings per share.

Year ended
_December 31,
2008
(Doltars in
thousands,
except per share
information)

Net income _ _
Asrteported ... ........ e AU $38,828
Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
. based method for all awards, net of related tax effects . ...... (602)
PrOOrma . ....ooveo e e $38,226 ) -
Earnings per share (Basic)
CASTEPOTTEd (.. e $ 134 N
Proforma ... ... oo $.1.32
Earnings per share {Diluted) A
Asreported ... ... ... i e $ 132
Proforma ............ . i i . $ 130

The Corporation has the following shareholder approved fixed stock option plans that are maintained to advance
the development, growth and financial condition of the Corporation as described below. In connection with the '
acquisition of Millcnnium Bank in 2004, the Corporation assumed ali obligations under the Millennium Bank Stock
Compensation Program. In connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial in 2007, the Corporation assumed
all obligations under the East Penn Financial 1999 Independent Director, Stock Option Plan and the 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan. All share information has been adjusted to reflect stock dividends. For additional information on the
accounting for share-based compensation plans, see Note 1, “Significant Accounting Policies—Stock-Based
Compensation.”

1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan: This plan provides that shares of the Corporation’s stock be
issued to nonsemployee directors. During 2007, no options were granted under the plan. As of December 31, 2007, a
total of 47,098 stock options remained available for grant under the plan. At December 31, 2007, there were 261,064
options outstanding under the plan. :

East Penn Financial 1999 Independent Director Stock Option Plan Converted to Harleysville Stock Options:
In connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial in 2007, the Corporation assumed all obligations under the
East Penn Financial 1999 Independent Director Stock Option Plan. The change in control accelerated the vesting of
all outstanding stock options to 100%. Upon consun{mation of the merger, outstanding stock options were converted
according to pro-ration parameters outlined in the merger agreement. Stock options totaling 1,932 were assumed on
the effective date of the merger. A total of 1,932 stock options remain outstanding under the plan at December 31,
2007. No further stock options may be granted urnder the plan.

) 1993 Stock Incentive Plan: This plan provides that shares of the Corporation’s common stock be issued to
certain employees of the Corporation and the Bank. Awards can be made in the form of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted stock. No stock options remain available for grant under
the 1993 Stock Incentive Plan. At Decernber 31, 2007, there were 21,081 options outstanding under the plan.
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Note 14—Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

1998 Stock Incentive Plan: This plan provides that shares of the Corporation’s common stock be issued to
certain employees of the Corporation and the Bank. Awards can be made in the form of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted stock. As of December 31, 2007, a totat of 99,297 stock
options remained avaitable for grant under the plan. During 2007, no stock options were granted: At December 31,
2007, there were 767,260 options outstanding under the plan. :

2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive: This plan provides that shares of the Corporation’s common stock be issued to
certain employees and/or directors of the Corporation and the Bank. Awards can be made in the form of incentive
stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted stock. During 2007, there were
25,000 stock options granted under the plan. As of December, 31, 2007, stock options of 1,119,725 remain available
for grant, At December 31, 2007, there were 37,900 options outstanding under the plan. :

Millennium Bank Stock Compensation Program Converted 1o Harleysville Stock Options: In connection with
the acquisition of Millennium Bank in 2004, the Corporation assumed all obligations under the Millennium Bank
Stock Compensation Program. The change in control accelerated the vesting of all outstanding stock options to 100%.
Upon consummation of the merger, outstanding stock options were converted according to pro-ration parameters
outlined in the merger agreement. Stock options totaling 328,327 were assumed on the effective date of the merger, In
conjunction with the sale of Cumberland Advisors, Inc. which took place in the second quarter of 2005, 36,209 non-
qualifted performance based stock options were cancelled. A total of 714 stock options remain outstanding under the
program at December 31, 2007. No further stock options may be granted under the program.

East Penn Financial 1999 Stock Incentive Plan Converted to Harleysville Stock Options: In connection with the
acquisition of East Penn Financial in 2007, the Corporation assumed all obligations under the East Penn Financial
1999 Stock Incentive Plan. The change in control accelerated the vesting of all outstanding stock options to 100%.
Upon consummation of the merger, outstanding stock options were converted according to pro-ration parameters
outlined in the merger agreement. Stock options totaling 23,548 were assumad on the effective date of the merger. A
total of 23,548 stock options remain outstandm;= under the plan at December 31, 2007. No further stock options may
be granted under the plan. .

A summary of option activity under the Corporation’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2007 and changes
during the year then ended is presented in the following table. The number of shares and weighted-average share
information have been adjusted to reflect stock dividends. :

¢

Weighted-

' ‘ Average :

Options s - . o Remaining '
Weighted-  Contractual Aggrepate
Average Term  Intrinsic Value
Exercise (in years) (in thousands)

Shares Price

Outstanding at January 1,2007-........... e 1,157,485 $15.60

Granted . ... ... 25,000 14.49

Options assumed from East Penn Financiat acqmsmon oo '

(seenote 2) ..o 25480 - 10.14

Exercised.:.: .. e U [ (75943 929"

Forfeited (unvested) ... .. .. e . TS S : (9,052) 22,71

Cancelled (vested). . ........... ... ... ... .......... (8,471 25.20

Outstanding at December 31,2007 .................... 1,113,499 $15.74 4,60 $2,951

Exercisable at December 31,2007 . ................... 1,004,763 $15.26 4.24 $2,949 -

79




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Note 14—Stock-Based Compensation {Continued) ’ .

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were $3.73, $5.23 and $5.83, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $514,000, $4.6 million and $3.6 miilion, respectively. Intrinsic value
is measured using the fair market value price of the Corporation’s common stock less the applicable exercise price.

A sun{mary of the status of the Corporation’s nonvested shares as of December 31, 2007 is as follows:

. : Weighted-Average

Nonveste.d Shares . Shares Grant-Date Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2007 : 131,610 $6.15
. Granted ' o 25,000 3.08
. Share obligations assumed from
East Pcnn_Financial acquisition 25,480 ' 4.37 .
Vested - ' . (64,302) 5.54
Forfeited _ . - (9.052) 6.30
Nonvested at December 31, 2007‘ 108,736 - ' $5.37

As of December 31, 2007, there was a total of $376,000 of unrécognized compensation cost related to nonvested
awards under stock option plans. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.3 years.
The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $356,000,
$360,000 and $1.1 million, respectively. The tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exercises totaled
$119,000, $1.3 million, and $1.1 million for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Corporation presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the
exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in the statement of cash flows. Statement 123(R) requires the cash
flows resulting from tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for
those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. The excess tax benefit of $42,000 for 2007
and $948,000 for 2006 classified as a financing cash inflow would have been classified as an operating cash inflow if
the company had not adopted SFAS 123(R).

In addition, the Corporation maintains the Harleysville National Corporation Stock Bonus Plan to award ,
employees in recognition of exemplary service during each calendar year. The Corporation’s Board of Directors.
authorized the registration of 70,354 shares of common stock for issuance under this plan in December 1996. The
Stock Bornus Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Corporation. The committee annually
determines, in its sole discretion, the amount of shares the Corporation awards. The Corporation awarded 219 shares
during 2007. As of December 31, 2007, a total of 22,824 shares remained available for awards under the plan..
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Note 15—Earnings Per Share o

The calculations of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are presented below. All weighted

average shares, actual shares and per share information in the financial statements have been adjusted retioactively for
the effect of stock dividends and splits. See Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements for a discussion on the
calculation of earnings per share.

Year Ended December 31, .
2007 2006 p{)] '
{Dollars in thousands, except
per share informa lon)

Basic earnings per share

Net income available to common shareholders . . . . .. $ 26595 § 39415 $.A 38,828
Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . .. 29,218,671 28,946,847 28,891,412
Basic earnings pershare. . ............. ... ... .. $ 091 § 136 - § 1.34

Diluted earnings per share
Net income available to common shareholders

and assumed conversions. . .................... $ 26595 $ 39415 § 38,828
Weighted average common shares outstanding . .. ... . 29,218,671 28,946,847 28,891,412
Dilutive potential common shares(1),(2) ........... 241,227 406,281 598,804
Total diluted weighted average common,shares

outstanding .......... ... . . e i 29,459,898 29,353,128 29,490,216
Diluted earnings pershare . ...................... $ 0690 § 134§ 1.32

$)
()

Includes incremental shares from assumed conversions of stock options.

Antidilutive options have been excluded in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the options’
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock. For 2007, 2006, and 2005, there
were 475,952, 416,353 and 372,471 antidilutive options at an average prlce of $23.44, $24.50 and $25.65 per
share, respectively.

Note 16——Comprehensive Inceme and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

. The components of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Before Tax Benefit Net of
For the year ended December 31, 2007 tax amount’ - _(Expense) tax amount
(Dollars in thousands)

Net unreahzed gains on available for sale securities:

- Net unrealized holding gains arising durmg period. . ... $4,856 $(1,700) $3,156
Less reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in
MEEINCOME. ..\ttt ee et e iie it e i 1,132 (396) 736
Netunrealized gains. . .............. ... ... 3,724 {1,304) 2,420
Change in fair value of derivatives used for cash flow
hedges. ... ... . (643) 225 (418)
Reversal of FAS 158 adjustment due to defined benefit ’ .
pension plan curtailment . .......... ... ... ... ..., 2,361 {826) 1,535
Other comprehensive income, net......... PO $5,442 5(1,905)  $3,537
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Note 16—Comprehensive Income and Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

- .' - - . ,Before Tax Benefit . - Netof
. For the year ended December 31, 2006(1) B . lax amounl (Expensc) tax amount "
o ' (Dollars in thousands)
Net-unrealized gains on available for sale securities: (i .
Net unrealized holding gains arising during peried . . ........ £5,548 S(l 942y 3,606
Less reclassification adJuslmem for nct losses realized in net
income.......,. B e e e e (674) 236 (438)
Net unrealized gams ...... e 6,222 {(2,178) 4,044
Change in fair value of derivatives used for cash flow hedges . (141) 49 (92)
Amortization of unrealized loss on termination of cash flow : )
hedge. ... e . e N =) D (33 98
Olhcr comprehensive income, net ... ... .. e ’ $6,232 $(2,182) $4,050
S
o Before Tax Benefit Net of
For the year ended December 31, 2005 tax amount (Expense)  tax amount

(Dollars.in thousands)
Net unrealized losses on available for sale securities:

Net unrealized holding losses arising during period . ......... © T 8(10,783) $ 3774 © §(7,009
Less reclassification adjustmcnt for net gains realized in net e ' ;
IMCOTIIC 5 o v e s e ettt e e e e et e ta e a e 4,794 (1,678) - 3,116
Netunrealized loSSeS . . ... . oottt i i e (15,577 15,452 (10,125)
Change in fair value of derivatives used for cash flow :
hedges .. ... ... e 557 (195) 362
Unrealized loss on termination of cash flow hedge . .. ..... ... (151} 53 (98)
Othcr comprehensive loss,net. . ... , $(15,171) -§ 5310 - §(9,861)

) Al ‘December 31, 2006 the Corporanon adopled SFAS No. I58 “Employcrs Accountmg for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans™ and recognized as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (OCI), net of tax,
the riet loss and transition asset that had not been included in the net periodic benefit cost of its pension plan for $1.5 million.
However, the $1.5 million transition amount was included in OCI for 2006 rather than as an adjustment of the December 31,
2006 balance of accumulated OCI. The Corporation previously deterrmncd the error was not material and comprehensive
|nc0me reflects corrected disclosures for 2006.

The components of other accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, which is a component of shareholders’
equity were as follows:

Net U.n'realizcd Net Change in Transition
Gains (Losses) Fair Value of Net Changein Net Change Asset Related Accumulated
on Available  Derivatives Termination of  Related to to Defined Other
For Sale  Used for Cash  Cash Flow  Defined Benefit  Benefit Comprehensive
) . Securities Flow Hedges Hedpe Pension Plan_ Pension Plan__Income (Loss)
Balance, December 31, 2004 $ 1,209 $ 34 T $ - $ - $1,243
NetChange. ............ e (10,125) 362 (98) - - (9,861)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ' (8,916) 196 (98) - - (8,618)
NetChange.................onn 4,044 (92) . 98 (1,579 44 . 2,515
Balance, December 31, 2006 (4,872) 304 - C (1,579 44 {6,103)
NetChange. ................ ... 2,420 (418) B 1,579 (44) 3,537
Balance, December 31,2007 ........ $(2,452) S(114) $§ - 5 - 5 - $(2,566) .
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Note 17—Segment Information

The Corporation operates two main lines of business along with several other operating segments.
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information™ establishes standards for the
way public business enterprises report information about operating segments, Operating segments are components of
an enterprise, which are evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in deciding how to allocate and
assess resources and performance. The Corporation’s chief operating decision-maker is the President and Chief
Executive Officer. The Corporation has applied the aggregation criteria set forth in SFAS 131 for operating segments
establishing two reportable segments; Community Banking and Wealth Management, ’

The Community Banking segment provides financial services to consumers, businesses and governmental units
primarily in southeastern Penngylvania. These services include full-service banking, comprised of accepting time and
demand deposits, making secured and unsecured commercial loans, mortgages, consumer loans, and other banking
services. The treasury function income is included in the Community Banking segment, as the majority of effort of
this function is related to this segment. Primary sources of income include net interest income and service fees on
deposit accounts. Expenses include costs to manage credit and interest rate risk, personnel, and branch operational
and technical support. ‘

The Wealth Management segment includes: trust and investment management services, providing investment
management, trust and fiduciary services, estate settlement and executor services, financial planning, and retirement
plan and institutional investment services; and the Cornerstone Companies, registered investment advisors for high
net worth, privately held business owners, wealthy families and institutional clients. Major revenue component
sources include investment management and advisory fees, trust fees, estate and tax planning fees, brokerage fees,
and insurance related fees. Expenses primarily consist of personne! and support charges. Additionally, the Wealth
Management segment includes an inter-segment credit related to trust deposits which are maintained within the
Community Banking segment using a transfer pricing methodology.

The Corporation has also identified several other operating segments. These operating segments within the
Corporation’s operations do not have similar characteristics to the Community Banking or Wealth Management
segments and do not meet the quantitative thresholds requiring separate disclosure. These non-reportable segments
include HNC Reinsurance Company, HNC Financial Company, and the parent holding company and are mcluded in
the “Other” category,

Information about reportable segments and reconc:llatlon of the information to the consohdated financial
statements follows: : :

Community : ,
Banking Wealth Management All Other | Consolidated Totals
(Dollars in thousands) ' :

Year Ended December 31, 2007

"Net interest income (expense) § 84,563 $ 451 $ (2,580) $ 824
Provision for loan losses 10,550 - - 10,550
Noninterest income 23,947 18,658 733 43,338
Noninterest expense 64,751 15,744 860 81,355
Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) 33,209 3,365 2,707 33,867
Income taxes (benefir) 6,917 1,502 (1,147 ° 7,212
Net income (loss) $ 26,292 $ 1,863 $ (1,560) _§ 26,595
Assets : $3,862,378 § 25,572 § 15,051 $3,903,001
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Note 17—Segment Information (Continued)

Community .
) Banking Wealth Management All Other Consolidated Totals

Year Ended Deceth_ber 31, 2006 ) o ' (Dollars in thousands)

Net interest income (expense) = $ 84775 $ 470 $(2,072) S 83173
Provision for loan losses : ' ' 4200 - - ' 4,200
Noninterest income ' ' . 29,735 14,878 735 45,348
Nominterest expense . 56,049 13,553 1,228 - 70,830
Income (loss) before income taxes {benefit) 54,261 1,795 (2,565) 53,491
Income taxes (benefit) 14,475 717 (1,116) 14,076
Net income (loss) o - % 39,786 $ 1,078 $ (1,449) $ 39415
Assets . . $3,195,051 $ 19,475 $ 35302 . $3,249,828
Year Ended December 31, 2005 . '

Net interest income (expense) ’ . $ 87,105 $ 620 § (604) $ 87121
Provision for loan losses 3,401 - - 3,401
Noninterest income . 20,512 6,690 2,788 29,990
Noninterest expense , 55,129 7,078 272 62,479
Income before income taxes . .. 49,087 232 1 51,231
Income taxes A 11,927 81 395 12,403
Net income ’ "$ 37,160 $ 151 . $ 1,517 $ 38,828
Assets - ' : 53.084,303 $ 51 $33,005 $ 3,117,359

The accountmg policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies disclosed in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements. Consolidating ad_]ustments reflecting
certain eliminations of inter-segment revenues, cash and investment in subsidiaries are included in the “All Other”

segment.

Note 18—Lease Commitments and Cnnnngent Llabllmes

Lease Comm:tmenrs

Lease commitiments for eqmpment and bankmg locations expire intermittently over the years through 2036
Most banking location leases require the lessor to pay insurance, maintenance costs, and property taxes. In December
2007, the Corporation sold its headquarter’s property along with fourteen branch properties and entered into a sale-
leaseback agreement with the purchaser. At December 31, 2007, the remaining term of these leases was fifieen years
with options to renew for up to forty additional years. See Note 2 - Acquisitions / Dispositions for additional
infortnation. Approximate mlmmum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2007,

are as follows

.

For the year ending:

Total ... e .

Minimum
Lease
Payments
(Dollars
in thousands)

..... $6,119
........ 5,886
......................... 5,721
......................... 5,607
......................... 5,526
......................... 59,078
............. $87,937
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Note 18—Lease Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Continued) -

Total rent expense amounted to $2.9 million for 2007 and $2.4 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. .

Other

Based on consultation with the Corporation’s legal counsel, management is not aware of any litigation that
would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated. financial position of the Corporation. There are no
proceedings pending other than the ordinary routine litigation incident to the business of the Corporation. In
addition, no material proceedings are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against the
Corporation by government authorities.

Note 19—Financial (nstruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Bark is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they become
payable. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in cxcess of the
amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments
reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the
contractual or notional amounts of those instruments. The Bank uses the same stringent credit policies in-
extending these commitments as they do for recorded financial instruments and controls exposure to loss through

credit approval and monitoring procedures. These commitments often expire without being drawn upon and often” .

are secured with appropriate collateral; therefore, the total commitment amount does not necessarily represent the
actual risk of loss or future cash requirements.

The Bank offers commercial, mortgage and consumer credit products to its customers in the normal course
of business. These products represent a diversified credit portfolio and are generally issued to borrowers within
the Bank’s branch office systems in eastern Pennsylvania. The ability of the customers to repay their credits is, to
some extent, dependent upon the economy in the Bank's market areas.

The approximate contract amounts are as follows:

Total Amount
Committed at
. December 31,
Commitments . 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk: _ . .
Commitmentsto extend credit. . ......... .. it $822.995 §753,825
Standby letters of credit and financial guamntees written. .............. 23473 | 25,960

Financial instruments whose notional or contract amounts exceed the amount
of credit risk: , ) .
Interest rate SWap agreements . ... ... ... ... iiar i 58,928 59,750
Interest rate cap agreements. ... ... .. i 200,000 _
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Note 19—Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk (Continued)

* Standby letters of credit expire as follows: $20.2 miilion in one year or less, $1.7 miilion after one year
through three years, $0 afier three years through five years and $1.5 mitlion after five years.

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had cash flow hedges in the form of interest rate swaps with a notional
amount of $45.0 million that have the effect of converting the rates on money market deposit accounts to a fixed-
rate cost of funds. This strategy will cause the Bank to recognize, in a rising rate environment, a larger interest rate
spread than it otherwise would have without the swaps in effect. In addition, the Corporation had cash flow hedges
with a notional amount of $10.0 million that have the effect of converting variable debt to a fixed rate. For these
swaps, the Corporation recognized net interest income of $287,000, $442,000 and $69,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively and estimates that for 2008, $153,000 will be recognized as a
decrease in net interest income. These swaps mature in 2008. During the first quarter of 2005, the Corporation
terininated a cash flow hedge with a notional value of $25.0 million, The gross loss related to the termination of
this swap was $310,000 which was amortized through October 2006 in accordance with SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Acnvmes ” For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, the Corporation amortized into neét interest income $151,000 and $159,000, respectively relatcd to this
swap. Periodically, the Corporation niay enter into fair value hedges to limit the exposure to changes in the fair
value of loan assets. At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had fair value hedges in the form of interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of $3.9 million. These swaps mature in 2017. The Corporation recognized net
interest income of $59,000 and $7,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which
includes $55,000 for 2007 related to two terminated swaps with notional amounts totaling $3.9 million that were
terminated during 2007. At.December 31, 2007, the Corporation had swap agreements with a positive fair value
of $10,000 and with a negative fair value of $366,000. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had swap
agreements with a positive fair value of $545,000 and with a negative fair value of $21,000. There was no hedge
ineffectiveness recognized during 2007, 2006 and 2005,

During March 2007, the Corporation purchased one and three month Treasury bill interest rate cap
agreements with notionat amounts totaling $200 million to limit its exposure on variable rate now deposit
accounts, The initial premium related to these caps was $73,000 which is being amortized to interest expense
over the life of the cap based on the cap market value, The Corporation recognized amortization of $8,000 for the |,
year ended December 31, 2007 and estimates that for 2008, $46,000 wili be recognized as interest expense. At
December 31, 2007, these caps, designated as cash flow hedges, had a positive fair value of $222. The caps
mature in March 2009. During 2007, the Corporation accelerated the reclassification of an immaterial amount in
other comprehensive income to earnings as a result of variable-rate interest payments becoming probable not to
occur. The accelerated amount was a loss of $7,000 recognized in interest expense.

"The Bank also had commitments with customers to extend mortgage loans at a specified rate at December
31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 of $3.4 million and $2.3 million, respectively and commitments to sell
mortgage loans at a specified rate at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 of $2.4 million and $792,000,
respectively. The commitments are accounted for as a derivative and recorded at fair value. The Bank estimates
the fair value of these commitments by comparing the secondary market price at the reporting date to the price
specified in the contract to extend or sell the Joan initiated at the time of the loan commitment. At December 31,
2007, the Corporation had commitments with a positive fair vatue of $19,000 and negative fair value of $19,000
which was recorded as other income. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had commitments w1th a positive
fair value of $15,000 and a negative fair value of $3,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Note 19—Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk (Continued)

During April 2006, the Bank sold its existing credit card portfolio of $15.3 million. The sale agreement
stipulated that any credit card accounts delinquent over 30 days, overlimit accounts and petitioned bankruptcies
would be guaranteed by the Bank for a period of one year. Of the $15.3 million in credit card receivables sold,
$529,000 was sold with fuli recourse which was the total potential recourse exposure at the time of the sale. During
the second quarter of 2006, the Bank recorded a recourse liability of $371,000 which was the entire recourse
liability recorded. This estimate was based on our historic losses as experienced on similar credit card receivables, -
The Bank was subject to the full recourse obligations for a period of one vear. At June 30, 2007, the total potential
recourse exposure was reduced 16 $0 with the expiration of the one-year recourse period. The Corporation’s actual’
loss experience apprommated the initial reserve.

During Decembe1 2004 and January 2005, the Bank sold lease financing receivables of $10.5 million. of ‘
these leases, $1.2 million were sold with full recourse and the remaining leases were sold subject to recourse w1th
a maximum exposure of ten percent of the outstanding receivable. The total recourse exposure at the time of the
sale of the leases was $2.0 million. During the first quarter of 2005, the Bank recorded a recourse liability of .
$216,000 which was the entire recourse liability recorded. This estimate was based on our historic losses as -
experienced on similar fease financing receivables, After the first anniversary of the sale agreement, and on a
quarterly basis thereafter, upon written request by the Bank: the purchaser wiil review the portfolio performance
and may reduce the total exposure to an'amount equal to ten percent of the outstanding net book value. The Bank
will be subject to the full and partial recourse obligations until ail the lease financing receivables have been paid
or-otherwise been terminated and all equipment has been sold or disposed of. The final lease payment is due in
2010. The outstanding balance of these sold leases at December 31, 2007 was $1.0 million with a total recourse .
exposure of $198,000 and a current recourse hab:hty of $17,000. . '

' . -

Note 20—-—Regulatory Capital

To Be Well
Capitalized
. Under Prompt
For Capital Corrective
' . : + Actoal ' Adequacy Purposes Action Provision
As of December 31, 2007 - Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands) .

Total Capital (to risk w e:gh!ed msets) - ‘
Corporation . .................... ... $329.887 10.67% $247,273 8.00%  $309,091 10%
Harleysville National Bank ............. 312,880 10.16% 246,286 8.00% 307,858 10%
Tier I Capita (to risk ue:gl:red assefs): '
Corporation . . ........................ 2 302,459 9.79% 123,637 4.00% - 185455 6%
Harleysville National Bank ............. 285,452 927% 123,143 4.00% - 184,715 6%
Tier | Capital (to average assets): _
Corporation ., ..........ccovvviiuninn. 302,459 8.72% 138,795 4.00% 173,494 5%

Harleysville National Bank ............. 285452 8.29% 137,722 400% 172,153 5%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Note 20—Regulatory Capital (Continued) - : S

To Be Well
. Capitalized
' .. . ' - S Under Prompt
- - _ For Capital Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provision
As of December 31, 2006 ’ Amount " Ratio’ Amount ’ Ratio Amount Ratio
. ' : . (Dollars in thousands) . .
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets): : . . ‘ .
Corporation .. ........... oo enns oo $323622  12.58% $205,814 8.00% $257,268 —
Harleysville National Bank ... ... e - 279,513 1093% 204,520 T 8.00% 255,661 10%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets): . . :
Corporation . ..........cooiiiiieneennn, 302,368 11.75% 102,907  4.00% 154,361 —
Harleysville National Bank ...... e - 258,259 10.10% 102,264 4.00% 153, 397 6%
Tier | Capital (1o average a.ssers) S
COrporation . . ........covrreneonrannn. 302,368 9.36% 129,242 4.00% 161,553 —

Harleyswlle Nanonal Bank ............. . 258,259 8.08% 127877 ° 4.00% 1593846 5%

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the fedéral banking agencies.
Failure to megt minimurm capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material affect on the Corporation’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action,.the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regu]ators about components,
risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table) of total and Tier | capital to risk-weighted assets.
Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-
based, and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events that have occurred that
management believes have changed the Bank’s category.

The National Bankmg Laws require the approvai of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 1f the total
of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year exceed the net profits of the bank (as defined)
for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two calendar years. Under this formula, the
Bank may declare dividends in 2008 of approximately $23.6 million plus an amount equal to the net prof' its of the
Bank in 2008 up to the date of any such dividend declaration.

Banking regulations limit the amount of investments, loans, extensions of credit and advances that a
subsidiary bank can make to an affiliate at any time to 10% and in the aggregate or to a single financial
subsidiary, to 20% of the Bank’s capital stock and surplus. These regulations also require that certain covered
transactions including a loan, extension of credit or advance to an affiliate be secured by securities having a
market value in excess of the amount thereof. At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s investment in the Cornerstone
Companies (a financial subsidiary) of $19.4 million was in comphance with the limitations and not subject to
collateral requm:mems
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Note 21—Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of the
estimated fair value of an entity’s assets and liabilities considered to be financial instruments. For the
Corporation, as for most financial institutions, the majority of its assets and liabilities are considered financial
instruments as defined in SFAS 107. However, many such instruments lack an available trading market, as
characterized by a willing buyer and seller engaging in an exchange transaction. Also, it is the Corporation’s
general practice and intent to hold its financial instruments to maturity and not to engage in trading or sales
activities, except for certain loans and investments. Therefore, the Corporation had to use significant estimates
and present value calculations to prepare this disclosure,

Changes in the assumptions or methodologies used to estimate fair values may materially affect the'
estimated amounts. Also, management is concerned that there may not be reasonable comparability between
institutions due to the wide range of permitted assumptions and methodologies in the absence of active markets.
This lack of uniformity gives rise to a high degree of subjectivity i in estimating financial instrument fair values.

. Eshmated fair values have been determined by the Corporatlon using the best available data and an
estimation methodology suitable for each category of financial instruments. The estimation methodologies used
at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are outlined as follows: ‘ .

Shorr-term financial instruments

The carrying value of short-term financial instruments including cash and due from banks, federal funds
sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell, interest-bearing deposits in banks and other short-term
investments and borrowings, approximates the fair value of these instruments. These financial instruments
generally expose the Corporation io limited credit nsk and have no stated maturities or have shoni-term maturities
with interest rates that approximate market rates.

Investment securities

The estimated fair values of investment securities are based on quoted market prices, provided by
independent third parties that specialize in those investment sectors. Estimated fair values are based on quoted
market prices of comparable instruments if quoted market prices are not available.

Loans ) S

The loan portfolio, net of unearmed income, has been valued by management using a present value
discounted cash flow analysis where market prices were not available, using the Sendero Risk model. The
discount rate used in these calculations is the estimated current market rate adjusted for credit risk.

Deposits

The estimated fair values of demand deposits (i.e., interest and noninterest-bearing checking accounts,
savings and money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting
date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The fair value for certificates of deposit was calculated by management by
discounting contractual cash flows using current market rates for instruments with similar maturities, using the
Sendero Risk model. The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and payable approximates fair value.
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Note 21—Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Centinued)
Long-term borrowings and subordinated debt

. The amounts asmgned to long-term borrowings and subordmated debt were based on quoted market prices,
when available, or were based on discounted cash flow calculatlons using prevallmg market mterest rates for debt
of similar terms.

Off- balance sheet mstrumems

Y

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estlmated based on the amount of unamortized deferred
loan commitment fees. The fair value of ietters of credit is based on the amount of unearned fees plus the
estimated cost to terminate the letters of credit. Fair values of unrecognized financial instruments including
commltments to extend credn and the fair value of letters of credxt are considered immaterial.

The falr value of mtérest rate swaps are based upon the estimated amount the Corporation would receive or
pay to terminate the contracts or agreements; taking into account current interest rates and, when appropriate, the
current creditworthiness of the counterparties. At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had swap agreements with
a positive fair value of 10,000 and with a negative fair value of $366 000. At December 31, 2006, the
Corporation had swap agreements with a positive fair value of $545,000 and with a negative fair value of
$21,000. '

The carrying and fair values of certain financial instruments were as follows:

' . . L . . , - December 31,

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Investment securities ................... $ 982915 % 983,086 $ 911,889 § 912,307
Loans,net ... .. .. ciiiieriainn. 2,433,495 2,448,614 2,047,355 2,045,513
Time deposits .. ........ ..o e 1,202,690 1,195,811 852,572 849,052
Long-term borrowings and subordinated v : ' '
debt . ... . 404,777 410,038 291,298 281,246
Bank-owned life insurance . ............. 72,269 72,269 61,720 61,720
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Note 22—Parent-Company Only Financial Information

Condensed financial statements of Harleysville National Corporation follow:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2007 2006
{Dollars in thousands)
Assets ‘ Cor
Cash..................... e e e e et $ 5779 $ 11,835
Investments in sUBSIAIArICS . ... ... e e e e 410,381 1332461
Other INVeStMENIS . . .. ... i e e 2,492 1,548
Otherassets............ e e e e e 4,528 1,213
Total B850ES & o . ottt e e e e e $423,180 ° . $347,057
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity '
Subordinated debt. . .. ...l . $82992 $ 51,548
‘Other labilities . ... ..o . . 878 - 758
Total liabilities . .. .. S . e 83,870 52,306
Shareholders’ equity. ... ... ... . . e 339,310 294,751
Total liabilities and shareholders™ equity .......................... e $423.180 $347.057
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME ' b
Year Ended Decemh.err.’al,
, 2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in thousands)
Dividends from subsSidIaries. . . .. ... ot e e $48,623 . $21,779  $26,638
Intérest from subsidiaries . .. ......... ... i e ‘433 290 191
INVESIMENT INCOIMIE . . .\ttt ittt et 152 130 57
Total INCOMIE . ... o e e e e e e 49,208 22,199 26,886
Interest on subordinated debt . . ... ... ... - 4,314 ¢ 3,653 2,180
Noninterest expense . ..... ! e e 180 356 3
Total BXPEISE .. oottt i e 4494 - 4,209 2,183
Income before income tax benefit and equity in undistributed net . '
income of subsidiaries . ......... ... .. ... ... ... . .. 44,714 17,990 24,703
Incometax benefit ....... ... . . . . . (1,302) (1,206 (677
Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries .......... 46,016 19,196 25,380
Equity in undistributed net (losses) income of subsidiaries. .. ............. (19421 20,219 13,448
Nt INCOME . .. et e et e e e $26,595 $39415 §$38,828
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Note 22—Parent-Company Only Financial Information (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

o4 ) Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

Operating activities:

(Dollars in thousands)

‘Netincome ........ e e e e $26,595 $39415  §38,828
.Adjustments to reconc1le net income to nct cash provided by operating
v - activities:
Equity in undistributed net losses (mcome) of subsidiaries. ......... 19,421 (20,2199 (13,448)
Stock-based compensation expense . ............ oo, 118 440 —
Net (increase) decrease inotherassets .......................... (133) 1,846 (1,447
Net increase in other liabilities .........................oooil. 69 274 43
Other, DEL. . ..ot aans e (709 (30) (782)
Net cash provided by operatmg activities . ... 45,361 21,726 23,194
Investing activities:
Net cash paid due to acquisition ........... ..ot - (49,761 — —
Capital contributions made to the subsidiaries. . .................... — _ (15,000) —
Net cash used in investing activities ... ................... P .. (49,761)  (15,000) —
Financing activities:
Advances of long-term subordinateddebt ............ ... ... 23,196 - — 25,7174
Cashdividends ....... ... i i e (23,623 (21,779 (20,738
Repurchase of common;stock ... o i (2,196) (5,502) (9,972)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options. . ...................... 925 5,302 4,453
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation ................. 42. 948 -
Other,net............ e e (12) (15)
Net cash used in financing activities . .......... ... ..o ieiinns (1,656)  (21,043) (498)
Net (decrease) increaseincash ... il (6,056) (14,317) 22,696
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year .. ..................... 11,835 26,152 3,456
Cash and cash equivalentsatendofyear ............... ... ... ..... $5779 311,835  $26,152
I
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Harleysville National Corporatton

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harleysville National
Corporation (a Peansylvania corporation} and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our respons1b1htv is to express an opinion on these financial statements bascd
on our audits. ‘

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable’ assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluadng the overall financial statement presentation.. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the consolidated financial position’ of Harleysville National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December

31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended Décember 31, 2007 in cnnfm‘m:tv with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 12 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation has
adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement(FASB) No. 158, Ewmployers’ Acconnting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 8 7 &8, 106 and 132(R))
and FASB No. 123(R), Share Based Payments in 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
OVersight Board (United States), Hartleysville Nadonal Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our
report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

mem m

Philadelphia, Pennsylvama
March 14, 2008

' M L . r
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants onAccounting and Financial Disclosure

None . .

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

There have been no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth
quarter of 2007 that have materially affected, or reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting.

(i) Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) or ~
15(d)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that
we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and regulations and are operating in an effective manner and
that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our prmc1pal executwe
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

{il) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compllance with Federal
Laws and Regulations ' :

Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting and compliance with federal laws and regulations. Interna! controf over financial reportmg is
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the Corporation’ s principal executive and principal financial officers and
effected by the Corporation’s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca and mcludes those
policies and procedures that: :

e  Pertain to the mamtenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and falrly reflect the
transactions.and dispositions of the assets of the Cmpomtlon

s  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Corporation are being made only in accordance with autherizations of -
management and directors of the Corporation; and ‘ ' o

e  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use”
or disposition of the Corporation’s assets that could have a material effect of the financial statements. .

Because of its inherent limitations, internat control over financiat reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance w1th the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

In accordance with the SEC’s published guidance, the Corporation’s management determined that it would
exclude the operations of East Penn Financial (acquired on November 16, 2007) from the scope of its assessment
of internal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures (Continued)

total reported consolidated assets were $3.9 billion, of which East Penn Financial’s assets accounted for
approx1mately 11.6%. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s consolidated interest and non-
interest income was $237.9 million, of which East Penn Financial accounted for approxnmately 10.4 %.

Management believes that, as of December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s internal control over financial

~ reporting was effective. Management also assessed the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal controls for
compliance with federal laws and regulations as of December 31, 2007, in accordance with reporting
requirernents of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (FDICIA).
Management believes that as of December 31, 2007, the Corporation’s internal controls over compliance with .
federal laws and regulations were effective.

The Corperation’s independent registered Public Accounting Firm has issued an attestation report on the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting, This report appears herein in Item 9A, section iii. .

(tii) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Harleysville National Corporation

We have audited Harleysville National Corporation’s (a Pennsylvania Corporation) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzauons of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Harlcysvnlle National Corporation’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effecdveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control Over
Finandal Repamng Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on Hatleysville National Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

As indicated in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management’s assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of the
operations of East Penn Financial which was acquired in November 2007 and constituted approximately 11.6% of total
consolidated assets as of December 31, 2007 and approximately 10.4% of total consolidate revenues for the year then ended.
Our audit on internal control over financial reportng of Harleysville National Cotporation and subsidiaries did not include an
evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of the acquired company.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountdng Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reportdng was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed tisk, and performing such other procedures as we
‘considered necessary in the circemstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. |

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that ransactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

. expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizadons of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or dmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaternents.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poljcies or proccdurcs may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Harleysville National Corporation mamta.mcd in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December.31, 2007, based on criteria cstabhshcd in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
COS0. .

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Harleysvitle Nationat Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the related consolidated statements 'of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows fof each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Crad Vhowdww LLP 7

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 14, 2008

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART L .

item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Corporation has a Code of Ethics for directors, officers and employees of the corporation. It is intended
to promote honest and ethical conduct, full and accurate reporting, and compliance with laws as well as other -
matters,

The SEC requires disclosure concerning whether or not the Corporation has at least one “audit committee
financial expert” on the Audit Committee. During 2007, Walter R. Bateman, Il was the committee’s independent
financial expert, as defined by SEC regulations, and chaired the committee.

Additional information regarding directors, executive officers and corporate governance is included under -
the following captions in the Corporation’s proxy statement relating to its 2008 annual meetmg of shareholders
{the 2008 Proxy Statement™) and is incorporated herein by feference:

“Directors”
“Executive Officers
“Corporate Governance” . ‘ .-
“Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors”

Section 16(a) Benefictal Ownership Reportmg Compliance”

t1i1)

In addition, the Corporation makes available on wivw.smcbank.com (under “Investor Information—
Corporate Governance”) the following: 1) Audit Committee Charter, 2) Code of Ethics, 3) Whistleblower Policy,
4) Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter and'5) Compensation Committee Charter.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation included under the following captions in the 2008 Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference: . : o |

“Directors” : '
“Meetmgs and Commlttees of the Board of Directors”
“Director Compensatlon
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis”
“Compensation Committee Report”
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation”
“Executive Compensation”
“Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control”
“Executive Employment Agreements and Separations Agreements”

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Security ownership information of certain beneficial owners and management is included under the
captions, “Principal Owners” and “Beneficial Ownership by Directors, Officers and Nominees,” in the 2008
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item concerning Equity Compensation Plan information is included in Part'
II, Item 5, “Equity Compensation Plan Information™ of this Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by
reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information included in Part II, Item 8, Footnote 5 “Loans” of this Report on Form 10-K is incorporated
herein by reference.
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Information included under the captions, “Related Party Transactions,” “Corporate‘Govcmance,” and
“Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors” in the 2008 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by

reference.
) , o

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services C

Information included under the caption, “Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm,” in the 2008
Proxy Statement is incorporated herem by reference. ‘

- 1

_ PART IV 7
Item 15. Exhlblts and Fmanc:al Statement Schedules

(a) The followmg documents are ﬁled as part of this report (see Part 11, ltem 8, “Financial Statements and . ,:
Supplementary Data”):

(1} Financial Statements:
(a) Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006
(b} Consolidated Statements of Income for the years endedAD'ecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(c) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
-and 2005 . .

(d) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{e) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . 7 L
(f) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting firm

(2) Financial Statement Schedules are not applicable

(3) The exhibits fisted on the Exhibit Index at the end of this Report are filed with or incorporated as part :
of this Report (as indicated in connection with each Exhibit). R
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. o ‘ , .-

HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION

By: ‘ . /s/Paul D. Geraghty
Paul D. Geraghty ‘

Date: March 7 2008

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. .

Signa;ﬁl:e
/s/ PAUL D, GERAGIITY

Paul D. Geraghty
/s/f WALTER R. BATEMAN, 11

Walter R, Bateman; [l
/s/ LEEANN B. BERGEY

LeeAnn B. Bergey

/s/ WALTER E. DALLER, JR.

Walter E: Daller, .
/s/ HAROLD A. HERR

Harold A. Herr
/s/ THOMAS C. LEAMER

Thomas C. Leamer

/s/ STEPHANIE S. MITCHELL

Stephanie S, Mitchel!
/s/ A. ROSS MYERS

A. Ross Myers

/s/ BRENT L.. PETERS

Brent L. Peters

/s/ GEORGE S. RAPP

George S. Rapp

/s/ DEMETRA M. TAKES

Demetra M. Takes

/s! JAMES A. WIMMER: -

James A. Wimmer

Title
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)
Director ’

Director
Qhairnlan and Director
Director
Director

Director

Director

Director
Chief Financial Officer
{(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

o
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Date

‘ " » March 7, 2008

+ March 7, 2008

March 7, 2008
Mr;lrch 7,2008
.Mz;rch 7, 2008

. March 7,2008 -
’ 'iVlarch 7, 2008
March 7, 2008

" March 7, 2008
March 7, 2008
March 7, 2008

March 7, 2008




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
No. . Description of Exhibits

(2.1)  Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2005, by and among Harleysville National Bank and
Trust Company, Cornerstone Financial Consultants, Ltd., Cornerstone Advisors Asset Management,
Inc., Cornerstone Institutional Investors, Inc., Cornerstone Management Resources, Inc., John R.
Yaissle, Malcolm L. Cowen, I, and Thomas J. Scalici. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed with the
Commission on March 15, 2006. The schedules and exhibits to the Purchase Agreement are listed at
the end of the Purchase Agreement but have been omitted from the exhibit to Form 16-K. The
Registrant agrees to supplementally furnish a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(2.2)  Branch Purchase Agreement and Deposnt Assumption Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2006, by and
among First National Community Bank as Buyer and Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company
as Seller. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report filed on Form
10-Q, filed with the Commission on November 8, 2006. The attachments, schedules and exhibits to
the Branch Purchase and Deposit Assumption Agreement are listed at the end of the Branch Purchase
and Deposit Assumption Agreement but have been omitted from the exhibit to Form 10-Q. The
Registrant agrees to supplementally furnish a copy of any omitted attachment, schedule or exhibit to

- the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(2.3)  Merger Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2007, by and among Harleysville National Corporauon East
Penn Financial Corporation, East Penn Bank and HNC-EPF, LLC, as amended. (Incorporated by
reference to Annex A of the Corporation’s Registration Statement No. 333-145820 on Form S-4/A,
filed with the Commission on September 27, 2007. The schedules and exhibits to the Merger
Agreement are listed at the end of the Merger Agreement but have been omitted from the Annex to
Form S-4. The Registrant agrees to supplementally furnish a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit
to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(2.4) Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Partnership Interests, dated as of December 27, 2007, by and
among each of the applicable entities (“Buyer”) and 2007 PA HOLDINGS, LLC (“HNB”) and PA
BRANCH HOLDINGS, LLC, (“Bank Branch™) (HNB and Bank Branch are referred to collectively
as “Seller”), filed herewith. (The schedules and exhibits to the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of
Partnership Interests are listed at the end of the agreement but have been omitted from the Exhibit to
Form 10-K. The Registrant agrees to supplementally furnish a copy of any omitted schedule or
exhibit to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.)

(3.1)  Harleysville National Corporation Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Corporation’s Registration Statement No. 333-111709 on Form S-4, as
filed on January 5, 2004.)

(3.2)  Harleysville National Corporation Amended and Restated By-laws. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on August
16, 2007.)

(10.1) Harleysville National Corporation 1993 Stock Incentive Plan.** (Incorporated by refercnce to
' Exhibit 4.3 of Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 33-69784 on Form S-8, filed with the
Commission on October 1, 1993.)

(10.2)  Harleysville National Corporation Stock Bonus Plan *** (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99A of
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-17813 on Form S-8, filed with the Commission on
December 13, 1996.)

(10.3)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.* (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Registrant’s
Annual Report in Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, filed with the Commission on
March 27, 1998.)




Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibits

(10.4)

(10.5)

(10.6)

(10.7)

(10.8)

(10.9)

(10.10)

(10.11)

(10.12)

(10.13)

(10.14)

(10.15)

Walter E. Dalier, Jr.,-Chairman and former President and Chief Executive Officer’s Employment
Agreement dated October 26, 1998.* {Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 23, 1999.)

Consulting Agreement and General Release dated November 12, 2004 between Walter E. Daller, Jr.,
Harleysville National Corporation and Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company.* (Incorporated
by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Forin 8-K,, filed with the Commission on November 16,
2004.)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and Walter E. Daller, Jr.* (Incorporated by reference
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 14, 2005.)

Employment Agreement dated October 26, 1998 by and among Harleysville National Corporation,
Harleysvilie National Bank and Trust Company and Demetra M. Takes, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company.* {Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 25, 1999.)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and Demetra M. Takes, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 14, 2005.)

Harleysville National Corporation 1998 Stock Incentive Plan.** {Incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-79971 on Form S-8, filed with the Commission on June 4,
1999.)

Harleysville National Corporation 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan, as amended and
restated effective February 8, 2001.** (Incorporated by reference to Appendix “A” of Registrant’s
Definitive Proxy Statement, filed with the Commission on March 9, 2001.)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated February 23, 2004 between Michael B.
High, Executive Vice President and former Chief Financial Officer, and Harleysville Management
Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with

" the Commission on May 10, 2004.)

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2005 between Michael B. High, Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation, and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.*
(Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
November 16, 2004.) .

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and Michael B. High, Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report .
on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 14, 2005.)

Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2004 between Mikkalya Murray, former Executive Vice
President and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission on May 10, 2004.)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and Mikkalya Murray, former Executive Vice
President.* {Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Commission on March 14, 2005.) '
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Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibits

(10.16)

(10.17)

(10.18)

(10.19)

(10.20)

(10.21)

(10.22)

(10.23)

(10.24)

(10.25)‘

(10.26)

Harleysville National Corporation 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated
e¢ffective November 9, 2006.** {(Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Repon on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on November 15, 2006).

Employment Agreement dated August 23, 2004 bétween James F. McGowan, Jr., Exccutive Vice
President & Chief Credit Officer and Harleysville Management Scrvices, LLC.* (Incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on August 25, 2004.)

[ *

Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated August 23, 2004 between James F.
McGowan, Jr., Executive Vice President & Chief Credit Officer, and Harleysville Management

- Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Regtstram s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the

Commission on August 25, 2004.)
Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benetit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and

. among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and James F. McGowan, Jr., Executive Vice President

& Chief Credit Officer.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Repon on Form 8-K, filed
with the Commission on March 14, 2005.) : . :

Employment Agreement dated September 27, 2004 between John Eisele, former Executive Vice

- President & President of Millermium Wealth Management and Private Banking, and Harleysville .

Management Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Cum:m Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on September 29, 2004.) |

Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated September 27, 2004 between John Eisele,
former Executive Vice President & President of Millennium. Wealth Management and-Private Banking,

. and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current

Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 29, 2004.)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and John Eisele, former Executive Vice President &
President of Millennium Wealth Management and Private Banking.* (Incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 14, 2005.)

Separation Agreement and Mutual Release dated June 15, 2007 and effective July 19, 2007 between

- John Eisele, former Executive Vice President & President of Millennium Wealth Management and

Private Banking, Harleysville Management Services, LLC., Harleysville National Bank and Trust
Company and Harleysville National Corporation.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Cusrent
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on July 19, 2007.}

Employment Agreement effective January 1, 2005 between Gregg J. Wagner the former President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.*
(Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
November 16, 2004.)

Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefit Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and
among Harleysville Management Services, LLC and Gregg J. Wagner, the former President and Chief

. Executive Officer of the Corporation.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Reporton

Form 8- K, filed with the Commission on March 14, 2005.)

Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release dated November 29, 2006 and etfectwe
December 8, 2006 between Gregg J. Wagner and Harleysville National Corporation, Harleysville
National Bank and Trust Company and Harleysville Management Services, LLC * (Iacorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 13,
2006.)




Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibits

(10.27)

(10.28)

(10.29)

(10.30)

(10.31)

(10.32)

(10.33)

(10.34)

(10.35)

(10.36)

(1)

1)
23

Employment Agreement dated May 18, 2005, between George S. Rapp, Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to -
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on May 20, 2005.)

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust for HNC Statutory Trust Il by and among Wilmington
Trust Company, as Institutional Trustee and Delaware Trustee, Harleysville National Corporation, as
Sponsor, and the Administrators named therein, dated as of September 28, 2005. (Incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q.’A filed with the Commission on November,
9,2005.)

Indenture between Harleysville National Corporation, as Issuer, and Wilmington Trust. Company, as
Trustee, for Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities, dated as of September 28, 2005.
(Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A, filed with the
Commission on November, 9, 2005.)

Guarantee Agreement between Harleysville National Corporation and Wilmington Trust Company,
dated as of September 28, 20035. (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s, Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q/A, filed with the Commission on November, 9, 2005))

Employment Agreement effective July 12, 2006 between Lewis C. Cyr, Chief Lending Officer of the
Corporation, and Harleysville Management Services, LLC.* (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on July 12, 2006.)

Employment Agreement dated July 12, 2007 between Paul D. Geraghty, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation and Harleysville Management Services, LLC* (Incorporated by refererice to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 12, 2007.)

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust for HNC Statutory Trust IV by and among Wilmington
Trust Company, as Institutional Trustee and Delaware Trustee, Harleysville National Corporation, as
Depositor, and the Administrators named therein, dated as of August 22, 2007. (Incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission on November 8,
2007.)

Indenture between Harleysville National Corporation, as {ssuer, and Wilmington Trust Company, as
Trustee, for Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities, dated as of August 22, 2007.
(Incorporated by reference to Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission
on November 8, 2007.)

Guarantee Agreement between Harleysville National Corporation and Wilmington Trust Company,
dated as of August 22, 2007, (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
filed with the Commission on November 8, 2007.)

Employment Agreement dated November 16, 2007 between Brent L. Peters, Executive Vice President
and President of the East Penn Bank Division of Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company, and
Harleysville Management Services, LLC, filed herewith.*

Computation of Earnings per Common Share, incorporated by reference to Part II, ltem 8, Footnote 15,
“Earnings Per Share,” of this Report on Form 10-K.

Subsidiaries of Registrant
Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting firm




Exhibit '
No. . Description of Exhlblts

(31.1)  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxIey Act of 2002,
filed herewith. o .

(31.2)  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
filed herewith, :

(32.1) " Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
" Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxléy Act of 2002, furnished herewith.

‘(32.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant 10
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, fumlshed herewith. .

* Management contract or Compenéatory plan arrangement.

+*  Shareholder approved compensatory plan pursuant to which the chlstrant s Common Stock may be issued
to employees of the Corporation. :

*** Non-shareholder approved compensatory plan pursuant to which the Reg1strant s Common Stock maybe:.
issued to employees of the Corporation.




Exhibit 21

HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION

Name

SUBSIDIARIES

Harleysville National Bank and Trust Company.......................
Cornerstone Advisors Asset Management, Inc.................... .
Cornerstone Financial Consultants, Ltd.. ... ... ...........ccovo...
Cornerstone Institutional Investors, Inc.. . ............... e

HNB Auto Sales, LLC, .

HNC Insurance Agency, Inc ...t
Harleysville Management Services, LLC. .. ... e e
East Penn Mortgage Company ................iiiiiiiinnaoians
East Penn Mortgage Company LLC...................... ... ...,

* HNC Financial Company. .

HNC Reinsurance Company ....................... e e
Harleysville Statutory Trust] ....... e ce

HNC Statutory Trust L. . ..
HNC Statutory Trust I1I. . .
HNC Statutory Trust [V . ..

East Penn Statutory Trust |

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania -
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania

Delaware
Arizona
Connecticut
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
- Connecticut




!

' Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

'We have issued our report dated March 14, 2008, accompanying the consolidated financial
statements (which includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the applicadon of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards Nos. 123(R) and 158 as of December 31 2006) and our report dated March 14,
2008 accompanying management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal contlr_pl‘over financial
reporting included irt the Annuai Report of Harleysville National Corp‘o'ration,and Subsidiaries on Form
10K for the year ended December 31, 2007. We hereby consent to the .int:orporati'on by reference of said
reports in the Registradon Statements of Harleysville National Corporation on Forms S-8 (File No. 33-
69784, effective October 1, 1993, File No. 333-17813, effective December 13, 1996, File'No. 333-79971,
effective ]une 4, 1999 and File No. 333-79973, effectuve June 4, 1999, File No. 333- 116183 effective June
4, 2004, Fﬂe No 333-139579, effective December 21, 2006, File No. 333-148377, effectlve December 28,

2007).

ot Thowutbo LLP.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 14, 2008




Exhibit 31.1
"CERTIFICATION : L

I, Paul D. Geraghty, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, certify, that:

1.
2.

K
'

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Harleysville National Corporatien.

Based on my knowledge, the annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which -
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report.

- Based on my knowledge the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual *

report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatlons and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the reglstrant and’
have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
*including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared; .

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial

. reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclisions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and ' ‘

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
* case of an annual report) that'has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to matenally affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;-and - :

@

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit comrmttce of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): - L

(a) All significant déficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which'are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and ’

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the 1 reglstrant s internal control over financial reportmg

Date; March 7, 2008

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

B’”&////M/é/ o

Harleysville National Corporation’




Exhibit 31.2
"CERTIFICATION
1, George S. Rapp, Executive Vice President and .Chief Financial Officer, certify, that: ) : o
1. I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Harleysville National Corporation.

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report,

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
~ report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report. Co 3

4. -The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are resp0n51ble for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control
+ over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such dlsclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under. our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others wnhm those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared; :

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
- reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; - ' - .

(c) Ewvaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
‘ report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and ‘procedures-as of the end of
the period covered by this-report based on such evaluation; and .

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and .

. 5. 'The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our'most recent evaluation of internal
' control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): X

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonable likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) .Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
s1gmficant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

_ Date: March 7, 2008
By: '

Executive Vice President and Chief F| inancial Officer v :
Harleysville Nationat Corporation




Exhibit 32.1

HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORAT[ON
CERTIFICATION
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Harleysville National Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Paul D.
Geraghty, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as added
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

. 1. The Report fully complles with the requirements of Sectmn 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunues Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in-all material respects, the
financial condition and resulis of operations of the-Company as of and for the period covered by the

Report.

"l G

President, Chief Executive Officer and Tl
Director T
‘Harleysville National Corporation

Date: March 7, 2008 ' _ R




Exhibit 32.2

HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION
PRINCIPAL.FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO.18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Harleysville National Corporation Annual Report on Form 19-K for the period
ending December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, George 5.
Rapp, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as added Section 906 of the Sarbanes -Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or lS(d) of the Secuﬂtles Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. Tomy knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the
Report.

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Harleysville National Corporation

Date: March 7, 2008




Harleysville

NATIONAL/C ORPORATION

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 22, 2008

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HARLEYSVILLE NATIONAL CORPORATION:

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Harleysville National
Corporation will be held at 9:30 a.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, April 22, 2008, at Presidential Caterers, 2910
DeKalb Pike, Norristown, Pennsylvama 19401, for the following purposes:

1. To elect two Class B Directors: Demetra M. Takes and LeeAnn B. Bergey each for a term of 4 years;

2. To ratify the selectlon of Grant Thormnton LLP as the corporation’s 1ndependent auditors for the fiscal
" year ended December 31, 2008; and

3. To transact any other business properly brought before the Annual Meeting and at any adjournment or |

postponement of the meeting.

In accordance with the by-laws of the corporation and action of the Board of Directors, only those
shareholders of record at the close of business on March 5, 2008, will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the
Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

A copy of the corporation’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, accompanies this
Notice. Copies of the corporation’s Annual Report for the 2006 fiscal year may be obtained at no cost by
contacting Liz Chemnitz, Senior Vice President and Assistant Secretary of the corporation, Harleysville National
Corporation, 483 Main Street, P.O. Box 195, Harleysville, Pennsylvania 19438-0195, telephone (215) 256-8851.

Your vote is important regardless of the number of shares that you own. Please sign, date and return the
enclosed proxy card, or follow the instructions provided for voting via telephone or the internet. Giving your proxy
does not affect your right to vote in person if you attend the meeting and give written notice to the Secretary of the
corporation.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
,éi 4 AZ%/

' Walter E. Daller, Jr.
Chairman of the Board

March 20, 2008
Harleysville, Pennsylvania
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| Questions and Answers

What am I voting on?

o To elect 2 Class B Directors:
s  Demetra M. Takes
» LeeAnn B. Bergey

» To ratify the selection of Grant Thornton LLP as the corporation’s independent auditors
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008

How does discretionary authority apply?

If you sign your proxy card and do not make any selections, you give authority to Louis P. Sﬁinelli,
Executive Vice President, and Tracie A. Young, Senior Vice President and Chief Compliance Officer, to vote on
the proposals and any other matters that may arise at the meeting. :

Is my vote confidential?
Yes. Only the inspector, Broadridge, and certain employees have access to your card. All comments
remain confidential unless you ask that your name be disclosed.

Who is entitled to vote?

Shareholders on the record date, which is the close of business on March 5, 2008.

How many votes do I have?

Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.

How do I vote?

You may vote by completing and returning the enclosed proxy card or by voting in person at the meeting.
In addition, you may be able to vote via telephone or through the Internet, as described under Voting Methods
below. '

You have the right to vote and, if desired, to revoke your proxy at any time before the Annual Meeting;

e by giving written notice of revocation to the Secretary of Harleysville National Corporation at 483
Main Street, P.O. Box 195, Harleysville, PA 19438-0195;

e by executing a later-dated proxy and giving written notice thereof to the Secretary of the corporation;
or } _

e by voting in person after giving written notice to the Secretary of the corporation.

Should you have any questiolns,‘ please call Harleysvitle National Corporation, Shareholder Services, 800-
423-3955, ext. 62305.

Voting Methods

Voting by Proxy. You may vote by completing and returning the enclosed proxy. Your proxy will be voted in
accordance with your instructions. 1f you do not specify a choice on one of the proposals described in this proxy
statement, your proxy will be voted as recommended by the Board of Directors. :

ON YOUR PROXY CARD:

» Mark your selections

¢ Date and sign your name exactly as it appears on your card
e Mail to Broadridge, in the return envelope




Questions and Answers (continued)

Voting by Telephone or Internet. Y ou may vote via the telephone or electronically through the Internet by
following the instructions included with your proxy card.

Vating in Person. lf you attend the meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy card in person Or you may
vote by completing a ballot which will be available at the meeting.

The last vote you submit chronologically (by any means) will supersede your prior vote(s). If yol vote via
telephone or the Internet and later decide to attend the annual meeting, you may cancel your previous vote and vote
in person at the meeting.

What is the total number of HNC shares outstanding?

As of March 5, 2008, 31,353,724 shares of the corporation’s common stock were issued and outstanding.
No shares of preferred stock are outstanding. The corporation is currently authorized to issue 75,000,000 shares of ©
commen stock, par value $1.00 per share, and 8,000,000 shares of series preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share.

What constitutes a quorum?

A majority of the outstanding shares constitutes a quorum if present or represented by proxy at the Annual
Meeting. If you vote by proxy card, you will be considered part of the quorum.

How dees a shareholder communicate with the corporation's Board of Directors?

The Board of Directors does not have a formal process for shareholders to send communications to the
Board. Due to the infrequency of sharcholder communications to the Board of Directors, the Board does not
believe that a formal process is necessary. However, only written communications received by the corporation
from shareholders are shared with the full Board no later than the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

When are the shareholder proposals due for the Year 2009 Annual Meeting?

[fa shareholder wants us to include a proposal in our proxy statement for presentation at our 2009 Annual
Meeting of shareholders, the proposal must be submitted in writing by Friday, November 21, 2008, to the Secretary
of Harleysville National Corporation at 483 Main Street, P.O. Box 195, Harleysville, PA 19438-0195.

How does a shareholder nominate a director of Harleysville National Corporatibn?

Under our by-laws, nominations for director may be made only by the Board of Directors or the
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors, or by a shareholder of record entitled to vote: In order for a
sharcholder to make a nomination, the shareholder must provide a notice with information and materials required
by the by-laws to our Corporate Secretary not less than 45 days prior to the first anniversary of the record date of
the preceding year's Annual Meeting. For our Annual Meeting in the year 2009, we must receive this notice on ot
before January 20, 2009. You can obtain a copy of the full text of the by-law provision by writing to the Secretary
of Harleysville National Corporation at 483 Main Street, P.O. Box 195, Harleysville, PA 19438-0195.

Wha is responsible for the solicitation expenses?

Broadridge will assist in the distribution of proxy materials and solicitation of votes. The corporation is
responsible for expenses related to distribution of proxy materials and solicitation of votes and will reimburse
Broadridge, stockbrokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable cut-of-pocket
expenses for forwarding proxy and solicitation material to the owners of the corporation’s common stock.




Proxy Statement

This Proxy Statement is furnished as part of the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of
Harleysville National Corporation for use at the Annual Meeting of Sharcholders to be held at 9:30 a.m., prevailing
time, on Tuesday, April 22, 2008, at Presidential Caterers, 2910 DeKalb Pike, Norristown, Pennsylvania 19401.
This Proxy Statement and the form of Proxy are first being sent to Shareholders on approximately March 20, 2008.

Corporate Governance

The corporation operates within a comprehensive plan of corporate governance for the purpose of defining
responsibilities, setting high standards of professional and personal conduct and assuring compliance with such
responsibilities and standards. The corporation regularly monitors developments in the area of corporate
governance. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter is available on the Investor
Information/Corporate Governance page of our website at www.hncbank.com. :

During 2007, a majority of the members of the corporation’s Board of Directors would be considered
“independent directors” under the listing qualifications rules for companies such as Harleysville, whose shares are
traded on The NASDAQ Global Select market; namely, Walter R. Bateman, II, LeeAnn B. Bergey, Harold A. Herr,
Thomas C. Leamer, Stephanie S. Mitchell, A. Ross Myers and James A. Wimmer. Ms. Bergey is a nominee for
director at this year’s annual meeting and is independent within these standards. -

In determining the directors’ independence, the board of directors considered loan transactions between the
Bank and the directors, their family members and businesses with whom they are associated, as well asany « .
contributions made to non-profit organizations with which the directors are associated.

The table below includes a description of other categories or types of transactions, rclationships or
arrangements considered by the board (in addition to those listed above) in reaching its determination that the
directors are independent. ’

Name lndependent Other Transactions/Relationships/Arrangements

Mr. Bateman Yes . _
Ms. Bergey Yes Contributions to non-profit organizations
Mr. Herr Yes

Dr. Leamer Yes

Ms. Mitchell Yes

Mr. Myers Yes

Mr. Wimmer Yes

In each case, the board determined that none of the transactions above impaired the independence of the
director. For more information regarding related party transactions, please refer to the corporation’s disclosures on
page 35. S : . o

Code of Ethics

We have also adopted a Code of Ethics for directors, officers and employees of the corporation. It is
intended to promote honest and ethical conduct, full and accurate reporting and compliance with laws as well as
other matters. The Code of Ethics is available on the Investor Information/Corporate Governance page of our
website at www.hncbank.com.




Proposal No. 1

Election of Class B Directors

. . LY

Nominees for election this year are:

¢ Demetra M. Takes — director since 2005
e [ecAnn B. Bergey — director since 1999

Each nominee has consented to serve a 4-year term and until their successors are qualified and elected.

Directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast at the meeting. “Plurality” means that the nominees
receiving the largest number of votes'cast are elected as directors up to the maximum number of directors to be
elected at the meetmg At our meeting, the maximum number of directors to be elected is two.

The by-laws of Harleysville National Corporation provide that the Board of Directors will not have less
than 5 members or more than 25 members. The Board of Directors is divided.into 4 classes. Each class is elected
for a 4-year term. . The Board of Directors has authority to fix the number of directors in each class and the
authority to change that number at any time, No person may be ¢lected to serve as a director who is not of legal
age. No person over 72 may serve as a director. The Board of Directors has fixed the number of Board members at
L1, with 3 directors in Classes A, C and D, and 2 directors in Class B. Section 11.1 of the by-laws requires that,a
majority of the remaining members of the Board of Directors select and appoint directors to fill vacancies, even if
the number of remaining members is less than.a quorum. Each person who is appointed in this manner serves as a
director until the expiration of the term of office of the class of directors to which he or she was appointed.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of these Class B Directors. N

o
i

Principal Owners

*

Management knows of no business group or person owning more than 5% of the corporanon s total
outstanding shares of common stock as of March 5, 2008. -

.. -

Beneficial Ownership by Directors, Officers and Nummees

The following table indicates the amount and percentage of the corporation’s total outstanding shares of
common stock beneficially owned by each named executive officer, director and nominee for director and by all
directors and officers of the corporation and its subsidiaries as a group, as of March 5, 2008.

Right to Acquire
Common Stock within
- Beneficially 60 days of " Percent of
Name Owned (1) March 5, 2008 (2) : Total C © Class
Dircctors )

Walter R. Bateman, {1 (3) 3,711 19,729 23,440 L
LeeAnn B. Bergey (4) 15,098 40,047 55,145 *
Walter E, Daller, Jr. (5) 537,608 287 753 825,361 2.54 %
Paul D. Geraghty (6) - 10000 " - . - 0 10,000 o
Harold A. Herr (7) . 39ed48 , 52,613 92,261 L
Thomas C. Leamer (8) N 143 . 13,651 13,794 - F
Stephanie S. Mitchell (9) 100,733 T 13,651 114,384 o
A. Ross Myers (10) 54 -0- ' 54 Lo ’
Brent L. Peters (11) . 101,638 -0- 101,638 o
Demetra M. Takes (12) - 61,331 14,822 76,153 o
James A, Wimmer (13) Bi6,412 27,481 843,893 2.60 %




Beneficial Ownership by Directors, Officers and Nominees (continued)

_Right to Acquire
Common Stock within
. Beneficially 60 days of ‘ Percent of
Name - Owned (1) March 5, 2008 (2) Total Class
Other Named Executive Officers
George S. Rapp (14) 366 2,352 2,718 *
Michael B. High (15) 7,237 18,841 26,078 *
Lewis C. Cyr -0- 1,260 1,260 *
John W, Eisele (16) 13,500 -0- 13,500 *
All Directors and Executive Officers 1,713,341 502,254 2,215,595 6.88 % (17)

as a Group (16 persons)

*E¢ss than one percent {1%) unless otherwise indicated.

(1)
2
&)
4
(3)

(6)
(7
®)
&)

(10)
(1D

(12)
(13
(14)
{15)
(16)
(7

Includes shares for which the named person:

s has sole voting and investment power,

o has shared voting and investment power with a spouse.

Shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of vested stock options through May 4, 2008.

Class B Director whose term expires in 2008. Mr. Bateman will retire effective April 22, 2008. Ownership includes
546 shares held solely by Mr. Baternan’s spouse and are pledged as security.

Class B Director whose term expires in 2008 and nominee for Class B Director whose term will expire in 2012, 14,158
shares held solely by Ms. Bergey and 940 held jointly with her spouse.

Class D Director whose term expires in 2010. Ownership includes the following:

e 41,329 shares held solely by Mr. Daller’s spouse, and

e 73,583 vested stock options held by an Irevocable Trust for the benefit of Mr. Daller's 3 chitdren.

Class C Director whose term expires in 2009. Shares held solely by Mr. Geraghty.

Class A Director whose term expires in 201 1. Shares held solely by Mr. Herr.

Class D Director whose term expires in 2010. Shares held solely by Dr. Leamer.

Class A Director whose term expires in 2011.

Ownership includes the following:

e 16,100 shares held by Ms. Mitchell’s spouse,

e 43 410 shares held by her company, and

. 3,180 shares held by a trust for which Ms. Mitchell acts as Co-Trustée.

Class D Director whose term expires in 2010. Shares held solely by Mr. Myers.

Class C Director whose term expires in 2009.

Ownership includes the following:

s 26,374 shares held jointly by Mr. Peters and his spouse; and

e 41,814 shares held solely by Mr, Peters” spouse.

Class B Director whose term expires in 2008 and nominee for Class B Director whose term will expire in 2012,
Ownership includes 5,342 shares held solely by parent living in Ms. Takes’ home.

Class C Director whose term expires in 2009. Ownership includes the following:

e 619,696 shares held solely by Mr. Wimmer’s spouse, and

. 15,887 shares held by a trust for which Mr. Wimmer acts as Co-Trustee.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Shares held solely by Mr. Rapp.

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Shares held solely by Mr. High.

Executive Vice President and President of Millennium Wealth Management and Private Banking. Shares held solely by
Mr. Eisele at the time of his termination on June 15, 2007.

The percent of class assumes the exercise of all outstanding options issued to independent directors, employee directors,
and officers, and therefore, on a pro forma basis, 32,444,602 sharcs of common stock outstanding.




DIRECTORS

Two directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting to serve as Class B Directors each to serve for a 4-year
term expiring in the year 2012. Current Class B Director, Walter R. Bateman, I, is retiring from the board
effective April 22, 2008, The Board of Directors has appointed Michael L. Browne as a Class C Director effective
at the corporation’s Annual Reorganization Meeting on April 22, 2008. '

Principal Occupation Director of
Jor Past Five Years and Corporation
Name Age Position Held with the Corporation - Since
Class A Directors to Serve Until 2011
Harold A. Herr 60  Partner — Albert S. Herr & Sons; 1987

Real Estate Development; Director of
Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank

Stephanie S, Mitchell 59  Secretary, Director - R. C. Smith Industries, . 2002
Inc; Secretary/Treasurer, Director — Cole o
Candy & Tobacco Co., Inc.; Director of
Harleysville and Harleysville National
Bank; Member of HNB’s Western Regional
Advisory Board

Brent L. Peters 61 President, East Penn Bank Division of 2007
Harleysville National Bank; ‘
Executive Vice Presiderit, Harleysville and
Harleysville National Bank; '
Former President & Chief Executive Officer
of East Penn Financial Corporation;
Chairman, HNB’s Regional Advisory
Boards: Northern, and East Penn Bank
Division

Class B Directors to Serve Until 2008 (Nominees for Class B Director To Serve Until 2012)

Demetra M. Takes 57  President & Chief Executive Officer and 2005
Director of Harleysville National Bank;
Director of Harleysville. Served as Interim
President & Chief Executive Officer of
Harleysville from 9/2006 to 7/2007,
Member of HNB's Regional Advisory
Boards: Western, Northern, and East Penn
Bank Division

LecAnn B. Bergey 54 Chief Executive, Officer -~ BTG Holdings, 1999
: LLC; Director of Harleysville and
Harleysville National Bank




LY

Class C Directors to Serve Until 2009

Michael L. Browne 61
Paul D. Geraghty 54

James A. Wimmer . 67

Class D Directors to Servé Until 2010

Walter E. Daller, Jr. ‘, l ' 68
Thomas C. Leamer . . 66
A. Ross Myers . I 58

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director, Harleysville Mutual and
Harleysvitle Group, Inc.; Former Chair,
International Insurance Practice Group,
Reed Smith, LLP. Current directorships:
board of governors — Property Casualty
Insurers Association of America; board of

_ trustees — the American Institute for CPCU

and the Insurance Information Institute of
America; board of directors — the Insurance
Information Institute, the Property Loss
Research Bureau, the Insurance Federation
of Pennsylvania, and the World Affairs
Council of Philadelphia.

Director of Harleysville and Harleysville
National Bank effective April 22, 2008

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director of Harleysville; Director of
Harleysville National Bank.

Executive Vice President, National City
Bank

Attorney-at-Law — Philip & Wimmer;
Director of Harleysville and Harleysville

" National Bank; Member of HNB’s Northern
* Regional Advisory Board :

Chairman of Harleysville and Harleysville
National Bank; Member of HNB’s
Western Regionat & Northern Regional
Advisory Boards; Retired Chief Executive
Officer of Harleysville and Harleysville
National Bank; Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Harleysville
and Chairman of Harleysville National
Bank from 1981 to 2004

Retired President — Delaware Valley
College; Director of Harleysville and
Harleysville National Bank |

Chief Executive Officer, American,
Infrastructure; Director of Harleysville and
Harleysville National Bank

2008

2007

2000

1977

2003

2006




Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

. o Nominating/
Board Member Attended 2097 ' ‘ SO . ) Corporate
: Annual Meeting Corporate Board Aundit Compensation Executive Governance
W. R. Bateman, 11 (1) v ' o v
L. B. Bergey v v . V ' v v
W. E. Daller, Ir. ' v . v ' v
P. D. Geraghty (2) . v
H. A Herr v v . : v v v
T. C. Leamer ' o . v v - v
S. S. Mitchell v A . v v
A:. R. Myers ‘ . v . v . v '
B. L. Peters (3)
D. M. Takes v v
J. A, Wimmer S v v v v
Mectings Held in 2007 * h _ 8 : 12 5 3 7

(1) Retirement effective April 22, 2008. | ) s
(2) Appointment effective August 9, 2007.
(3) Appointment effective November 19, 2007. Board attendance commenced in January, 2008,

Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee held 12 meetings during 2007. All members of the committee are non-executive,
independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD listing standards and
Section 10A of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) and possess the required level of financial
literacy. Each is free from any relationship that would mterfere with the exercise of his or her independent
judgment.

During 2007, Walter R. Bateman, 1l was the committee's financial expert, as defined by SEC regulations, and
chaired the committee. ‘Other membeéts of the committee mclude independent directors LeeAnn B, Bergey,
Thomas C. Leamer and James A. thmer

The Audit Committee operates under a formal ¢harter that governs its duties and conduct. The Audit
Committee Charter is available on the Investor Information/Corporate Governance page of our website at
www hncbank.com. Grant Thornton LLP the corporation's registered public accounting firm, reports directly
to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Commiltee, consistent with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules adopted thereunder, meets
with management and the auditors prior to the filing of officers’ certifications with the SEC to receive
information concerning, among other things, 51gn1ﬁcant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls. t

The Audit Committec has also adopted a Whistleblower Policy to enable confidential and ANONYMOUs reporting
to the Audit Committee. The policy is also available on the Investor Information/Corporate Governance page
of our website at www.hncbank.com. .

Compensation Committee:

The Compensation Committee administers executive compensation programs, policies and practices, and acts
in an advisory role on employee compensation. All members of the committee are independent (as
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independence is currently defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD listing standards.) The members are
Harold A. Herr, Chairman, Stephanie S. Mitchell and A. Ross Myers. The committee met 5 times during 2007.
The Compensation Committee operates under a formal charter that governs its duties and conduct. The
Compensation Committee Charter is available on the Investor Information/Corporate Governance page of our
website at www.hncbank.com. :

At least annually, the Compensation Committee conducts a comprehensive review of the corporation’s
executive compensation program structure and the specific provisions for each of our highly compensated
employees, including the Named Executive Officers. It also conducts a similar review of compensation
provisions for positions on the Board of Directors.
N . , - ;
The Compensation. Committee relies upon an external consultant, Strategic Compensation Planning, Inc., for '
information about current industry practices and programming trends, and solicits performance information on
executives from the Chief Executive Officer. (The committee seeks input from other Board members on the
performance of the CEO.)
|
|

After reviewing the submissions of its consultant, the CEO and other Directors, the Compensation Committee
independently formulates its recommendations on changes to the executive and director compensation program
structures and/or the balance among the programs' elements. 1t also makes recommendations on adjustments to
individual executive's compensation, including: salary increases, annual incentive awards, longer-term
incentive awards--usually in the form of stock options or restricted stock, special benefit provisions, perquisites
and employment arrangements. These recommendations are submitted to the full Board for approval.

During the course of a year, the Compensation Committee continues to consider po'ssib,lf; changes to executive
and director compensation practices based on changing industry trends and internal corporate circumstances
and objectives. 1t may also review and approve special compensation awards and adjustments for incumbent
executives and compensation arrangements for new executives joining the organization.

Executive Committee: .

The Executive Committee is authorized to act on behalf of the Board during intervals between meetings of the
Board. The Executive Committee can respond quickly to time-sensitive business and legal matters when they
arise. Members of the Executive Committee are Walter E. Daller, Jr., Chairman, LeeAnn B. Bergey, Harold A.
Herr, Stephanie S. Mitchell and James A. Wimmer. The committee met 3 times during 2007.

¢

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee:

The principal duties of the committee are to provide continuing assistance to the Board of Directors regarding
matters relating to governance, performance, and composition of the Board. ‘To fulfill its responsibilities and
duties, the committec identifies qualified individuals to become Board members, récommends nominecs to the
Board to fill vacant Board seats, develops and recommends corporate governance guidelines to the Board. The
committee has no formal process for considering director candidates recommended by shareholders due to the
infrequency of nominations, but its policy is to give due consideration to any and all candidates.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee operates under a formal charter that governs its duties
and standards of performance. The charter appears on the Investor Information/Corporate Governance page of
our website at www hncbank.com. : :

-

Members of the committee during 2007 included Thomas C. L.eamer, Chairman, LeeAnn B. Bergey, Harold A.
Herr and James A. Wimmer, cach of whom is a non-employee director. All members of the committee are
independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ listing standards.) The
committee met 7 times during 2007. : : : : :

The members of the Board of Directors-of the corporation-also serve as-the members of the Board of

Directors of Harleysville National Bank. During 2007, the corporation held 8 regular Board meetings, the annual

11



meeting and the annual reorganization meeting. All of the directors. attended at least 75% of the meetings of the
Boards of Directors of the corporation and of the committees of which they were members.

The corporation has no specific policy requiring directors to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
However, criteria for determining the percentage of all meetings attended by each director include their attendance
at the annual meeting. With the exception of Dr. Leamer, all active members of the Board of Directors at the time,
were present at the 2007 Annual Meetmg of Sharcholders. :

Director Compensation

In 2007, each director who was not an employee of the corporation earned or was paid certain fees,
including annual retainer fees, committee and/or chairmanship fees, and meeting fees. Directors were not
compensated for committee meetings of less than 15 minutes in duration or for'committee meetings held prior to, or
immediately following, a Board meeting. In 2007, Directors of Harleysville received $404,700, in the aggregate.

L

This compensatlon included the following:

e 351,750 for each Board meeting attended

o $1,750 for Annual Meeting atiendance, A ‘
$600 for each Board committee meetmg attended except for Audit Commlttee which receives
$750, :

e an annual retainer of $16,500, and !

¢ an annual retainer of $3,000 to committee chairpersons, except for Audit Committee which
receives $4,500. -

" Directors Emeriti are generally not eligible to receive annual retainers, bonuses, stock option awards or sit
on committees of the Board. They receive half of the prevailing board fee for each Board meeting attended.

Directors who are also salaried officers of Harleysville or Harleysville subsidiaries do not receive any fees
for Board or committee meetings.

i . ¢ :

The following table provides information about the compensation of directors during 2007.

Director Compensation Table

Change in
Pension Value and o
Fees Earned or Option Nonqualified Deferred All Other
. " Paid in Cash - Awards  Compensation Earnings  Compensation Total

Name , . 5 £]1¢71¢) N V&N (8 (%)
Walter R, Bateman, IT $50,100 _ -0- $12,621 -- % 62,721 .
LecAnn B. Bergey . $32,650 -0- o - - $ 52,650
Walter E. Daller, Jr. ~ $4e, 800 i -0- ' ' - $508,843 (4) $555 643
Harold A. Herr $50,400 .- - - $ 50,400
Thomas C. Leamer $52,200 -0- - - : $ 52,200
Stephanie S. Mitchell  * $48,050 (5) < -0- . - T =~ . - § 48,050
A. Ross Myers . £38.600 -0- - ) - $ 38.600
Brent L. Peters -0- -0- - $22,769 (6) $ 22,769

James A. Wimmer 85 5,700 (N -0- R $75.205 (8) $130,905

(1) No options were awarded o Harleysvnlie non-employee directors during 2007,

(2) The aggregate number of outstanding option awards held by each non-employee director at December 31, 2007 is-as
follows: Bateman — 19,729; Bergey — 40,047; Daller — 287,753; Herr — 52,613; Leamer — 13,651; Mitchell — 13,651; and
Wimmer — 27,481. Mr. Bateman’s outstanding options will expire on April 22, 2009, 12 months following the effective
date of his retirement. All outstanding options awarded to non-employee directors, with the exception of Mr. Daller, were




-

annual grants between 1999 and 2006. All grants were made under substantially the same terms, with 100% vesting after
6 months from date of grant and expiration 10 years from date of grant. The grant prices were based on either of the
following criteria: (i) the average of the high and low prices of the corporation’s common stock on the date of grant; (ii)
the closing price of the corporation’s common stock on the date of grant; or (iii) the closing price of the corporation’s
common stock on the last trading day immediately preceding the date of grant. With the cxception of the January 3, 2006
grant, as awarded to all non-employee dircctors, Mr. Daller’s outstanding option grants were awarded pursuant to his
employment with the corporation; all are futly vested and will expire 10 years from their respective dates of grant.

(3) The sum of (i) the aggregate change in the actuarial present value of the director’s benefit under ali defined benefit and
actuarial pension plans from the pension plan measurement date used for financial statement reporting purposes with
respect to Harleysville’s audited financial statements for 2006 to the pension plan measurement date used for financial’
statement reporting purposes with respect to Harleysvitle’s audited financial statements for 2007 and (ii) above-market or
preferential earnings on non-tax-qualified deferred compensation. T

(4) Includes $107,000 consulting fees paid under terms of Mr. Daller’s consulting contract which became effective upon his
retirement as President and CEO of Harleysville and $401,843 annuat payout under Supplemental Executive Retirement
Benefit Plan, pursuant to Mr. Daller’s previous employment. ‘

(5) Includes fees paid in connection with service on the corporation’s western regional advisory board.

(6) Compensation paid to Mr. Peters in connection with his employment with Harleysville National Bank, East Penn Division,
following the merger of Harleysville and East Penn Financial Corporation.

(7) Includes fees paid in connection with service on the corporation’s northern regional advisory board.

(8) Mr. Wimmer reccived payouts under 2 separate deferred compensation plans assumed by Harleysville pursuant to the
merger and acquisition of Citizens Bank and Trust Company of Palmerton. During 2007, he received $31,326 payout
under the Citizens Bank and Trust Company of Palmerton 1983 Deferred Compensation Plan and $43,879 payout under
the Citizens Bank and Trust Company of Palmerton 1987 Deferred Compensation Plan. '

1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan, as amended

The corporation maintains a stock option plan to advance the development, growth and financial condition
of the corporation and its subsidiaries; and, to secure, retain-and motivate non-employee directors. The Plan
provides that retiring directors who are appointed to emeritus status may, during their lifetime, have the full term of
each respective option to exercise any options that are outstanding as of the date of their retirement.

During 2007, there were no shares granted under the plan; 5,765 options were exercised; and, as of
December 31, 2007, a total of 47,098 shares remained available for grant under the plan.

East Penn Financial Corporation 1999 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan Converted to
Harleysville Stock Options

In connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial Corporation in 2007, Harleysville assumed all
obligations under the East Penn Financial 1999 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. The change in control
accelerated the vesting of all outstanding stock options to 100%. At the effective time of the merger, 28,000 East
Penn Independent Directors stock options were converted into 23,548 options to purchase the cotporation’s
common stock according to proration parameters outlined in the merger agreement. As of December 31, 2007,
23,548 options remained outstanding and exercisable under the plan. No further stock options may be granted
under the plan. ‘ -

‘

Deferred Compensation Plans for the Directors of Harleysville National Corporation

The corporation maintains deferred compensation plans for its directors; the 1985 Plan’and the 1989 Plan.
In the past, certain directors elected to defer, with interest, all or part of their compensation for future distribution.
Under the terms of the plan, benefits can be paid out to the respective directors over a 10-year period. Should the
director die before age 70 or before receiving all of the benefits, the remaining benefit would be paid to his or her
beneficiary until age 70 or for ten years, whichever is greater. This plan is an unfunded plan, which is subject to
substantial risk of forfeiture, and the dircctor is not deemed vested in the plan, according to the terms of the plan.
Currently, Mssrs. Bateman and Daller participate in the plans.
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Additionally, Mr. Wimmer, as a former director of the former Citizens Bank and Trust Company of
Palmerton, PA, acquired by Harleysville on April 28, 2000, continues to accrue benefits and receive payouts under
2 separate deferred compensation plans in effect at that time, and as agreed under terms of the Agreement and Plan
of Reorganization.

Walter E. Daller, Jr. - Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Harleysville Management Services maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Walter E. Daller,
Jr., Chairman of the Board of Directors of the corporation and the bank. The plan provides for payment to the
covered employee of an annual supplemental retirement benefit equal to 70% of his final five year average
compensation, reduced by the employer's share of social security, defined benefit pension and available employer's
401(k) matching contribution. There is a lifetime payout in retirement benefits with a minimum payout of 10 years.

Walter E. Daller. Jr. - Consulting Agreement

Mr. Daller’s employment agreement ended at the time that he retiréd from active management as Chief
Executive Officer of the corporation on March 31, 2005, ‘Mr. Daller, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
corporation and the bank, entered into a Consulting Agreement and General Release with the corporation and the
bank effective April 1, 2005. Pursuant to the Consulting Agreement and under the terms of the Daller Employment
Agreement, the corporation paid Mr. Daller a lump sum equal to 1.5 times his “Agreed Compensation,” as defined
in the Daller Employment Agreement, on the date of his retirement.

Among the terms of the Consulting Agreement: (1} Mr. Daller agreed to a general release to the
corporation and the bank from any potential claims he could assert pursuant to his employment or his employment
agreement, dated Qctober 26, 1998, entered into by and among Mt. Daller, the corporation and the bank; (2) Mr.
Dalier will continue to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the corporation and the bank; (3) from April
1, 2005, through March 31, 2008, Mr. Daller will provide consulting advice to the corporation and bank; (4) the
term of the agreement will automatically extend for one additional year at the end of the initial three years and on
every anniversary of the Consulting Agreement, unless notice to terminate is given 180 days prior to renewal; (5)
Mr. Daller will receive $107,000 per year; (6) Mr. Daller will receive continuation of all life, disability, medical
insurance and other normal health and welfare benefits for a period of § years after the date of retirement; and (7)
Mr. Daller will receive dues and other expenses for membership at a country club. Upon retirement, he received an
automobile, and continues to receive office space and reimbursement of certain business expenses. The Consulting
Agreement contains a restrictive covenant precluding Mr. Daller from engaging in competitive activities in a
certain area and a provision preventing Mr. Daller from disclosing proprietary information about the corporation.

Brent L. Peters — Employment Agreement

In 2007 the corporation and Harleysville Natidnal Bank entered into an employment agreement with Brent
L. Peters, President of the East Penn Bank Division of Harleysville National Bank (“the Peters Employment
Agreement”).

The Peters Employment Agreement is for a term of 3 years, renewing automatically on the third
anniversary of the Agreement and extended for an additional one-year. Either party must provide at least 90 days
written notice prior to an annual renewal date in the event this agreement shall terminate at the end of the then
existing employment period. The agreement specifies position title and duties, compensation and benefits, .and
indemnification and termination provisions. The executive will be entitled to participate in annual and long-term
incentive plans, employee benefit plans, and receive annual vacation in accordance with the policies established by
the Board of Directors of the corporation, and receive an automobile and maintenance of such automobile. If the
executive is terminated or upon occurrence of other events following a "Change in Control,” as defined in the
agreement, he may receive up to 2.0 times his agreed compensation (annual base salary) and may continue
participation in employee benefit plans. The Peters Employment Agreement also contains a non-competition
provision and a confidentiality provision.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The followmg table provides information, as of March 5, 2008, about the corporation's executive officers.

" Years

Principal Occupation for the Past Five Years and Position

Name Age in Position Held with Harleysville and Subsidiaries
Jo Ann M. Bynon - 56 2005 — present Senior Vice President, Harleysville and
_ Harleysville National Bank
2001 — 2004 Vice President, Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank
1995 — present Corporate Secretary, Harleysville and
_ Harleysville National Bank
Lewis C. Cyr 38 2006 -~ present Executive Vice President and Chief Lendmg, Ofﬁcer
Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank
2004 — 2006 Senior Vice President, Commercial Banking Director,
Wachovia Bank
" 2003 - 2004 . Senior Vice President, Corporate Fmance Group Manager,
S Wachovia Bank
1999 - 2003 Director, Healthcare Finance Group, Wachovia Securities
Paul D. Geraghty, 54 2007 — present President and Chief Executive Officer and Director, Harleysville
19992006 Executive Vice President, National City Corporation
Michael B. High 59  -2005 - present - Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer,
Harleysvitle and Harleysville National Bank -
2004 - 2005 Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer,
Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank
1998 — 2004 Chief Operating Officer & Chief Financial Officer, Progress
" Financial Corporation
James F. McGowan, Ir.. 61 2004 - present - Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer, Harleysville
and Harleysville Nationnal Bank
2003 - 2004 . Senior Vice President and Senior Credit Officer,
: Sovereign Bank
1999 — 2003 Senior Vice President and Senior Credit Officer,
Summit Bank/Fleet
Brent L. Peters "6l 2007 — present Presidént, East Penn Bank Division of
Harleysville National Bank
Executive Vice President and Director, Harleysvﬂle and
Harleysville National Bank
2003 - 2007 President and Chief Executive Officer,
} " East Penn Financial Corporation
1991 — 2007 President and Chief Executive Officer,
' East Penn Bank
George S. Rapp 55 2006 — present - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
. . . - Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank
2005 — 2006 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer,
Harleysville and Harleysville National Bank
2004 - 2005 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Astea International
2002 - 2004 Senior Vice President, Chief Fmanc:al Officer,
Advanta Bank Corp
Demetra M. Takes 57 2000 — préscnt ' President and Chief Executive Officer,

9/26/06 - 7/23/07

2005 — present

Harleysville National Bank

Interim President and Chief Executive Officer, Harleysville
Executive Vice President and Director, Harleysville and
Harleysville National Bank
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1993 Stock Incentive Plan

The corporation maintains the 1993 Stock Incentive Plan, The plan’s purpose is to advance the
development, growth and financial condition of the corporation. The plan provides that shares of our common
stock be issued to certain employees of the corporation and banking subsidiaries.

A disinterested committee of the corporation’s Board of Directors administers the plan, Awards can be
made in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted
stock as the disinterested committee deems appropriate. No stock options remain available for grant under the 1993
Stock Incentive Plan, No options were éxercised under this plan, during 2007, There are 21,081 options
outstanding under the plan. No further stock options may be granted under the plan.

1998 Stock Incentive Plan

The corporation maintains the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. The plan’s purpose is to advance the
development, growth and financial condition of the corporation. The plan provides that shares of our common
stock be issued to certain employees of the corporation and banking subsidiaries.

A disinterested committee of the corporation’s Board of Directors administers the plan. Awards can be
made in the form of incentive steck options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted
stock as the disinterested committee deems appropriate. During 2007, no stock options were granted, a total of
64,103 stock options were exercised and 18,523 stock options were cancelled and added back to the plan for future
grants. 99,297 shares remain avaitable for grant under this plan.

2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, as am'énded

The corporation maintains the 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan. The plan’s purpose is to advance the
development, growth and financial condition of the corporation. The plan provides that shares of our common
stock be issued to certain employees and/or directors of the corporation and banking subsidiaries.

A disinterested committee of the corporation’s Board of Directors administers the plan. Awards can be
made in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights or restricted
stock as the disinterested committee deems appropriate,

During 2007, 25,000 optlons were granted under the 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan. A total of
1,119,725 stock options remain available for grant under this plan.

Millennium Bank Stock Compensation Program Converted to Harleysville Stock Options

In connection with the acquisition of Millennium Bank in 2004, Harleysville assumed all obligations under
the Millennium Bank Stock Compensation Program. The change in control accelerated the vesting of all
outstanding stock options to 100%. Upon consummation of the merger, outstanding stock options were converted
according to proration parameters outlined in the merger agreement. 328,327 stock options were assumed on the
effective date of the'merger. Since the effective date, 291,404 stock options have been exercised and 36,209 were -
cancelled. A total of 714 stock options remain outstanding and exercisable under the program. No further stock |
options may be granted under the program. -

East Penn Financial Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Plan Converted to Harleysville Stock Options
. !

In connection with the acquisition of East Penn Financial Corporation in 2007, Harleysville assumed all
obligations under the East Penn Financial 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. The change in control accelerated the vesting
of all outstanding stock options to 100%. On the effective date of the merger, 2,300 East Penn stock options were
converted into 1,932 options to acquire the corporation’s common stock according to proration parameters outlined
in the merger agreement. 1,932 options remain outstanding and exercisable under the plan. No further stock
options may be granted under the plan.
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Harleysville National Corporation Stock Bonus Plan

The corporation maintains the Harleysville National Corporation Stock Bonus Plan to recognize employees
who have:

a strong interest in the successful operation of the business;
loyalty to the corporation and banking subsidiaries; and
visible evidence of increased efficiency.

" The Stock Bonus Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the corporation. The committee
annually determines, in its sole discretion, the amount of shares the corporation awards.

The corporation awarded 219 shares on April 1, 2007, to certain employees for exemplary service
throughout 2006. As of December 31, 2007, a total of 22,824 shares remain available for awards under the plan.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Philosophy and Program Objectives

Qur compensation program balances the need for competitive pay opportunities at the executive level with
shareholders’ expectations for reasonable return on their investment. The Compensation Committee believes that
the compensation program for executives should directly support the achievement of strategic goals of the business
and, thereby, align the interests of executives with the interests of the corporation’s shareholders. The current
program is intended to provide sufficient levels of fixed income, in the forms of base salary and benefits, to attract
high caliber executive talent to the organization, It also is intended to provide competitive incentive opportunities
to encourage specific performance and to reward the successful efforts of executives.

Program Management

The Compensation Committee has primary responsibility for the design and administration of the executive
compensation program. It reviews the program throughotit the year in light of changing organizational needs and
operating conditions and changing trends in industry practice.

The Committee currently consists of three (3) directors, all of whom qualify as independent members of the
Board: Harold A. Herr, Chairperson of the Committee, Stephanie S. Mitchell and A. Ross Myers.

Role of Executive Management in the Pay Decision Process

The Compensation Commitice will regularly seek information about the performance levels of executives
from the Chief Executive Officer and other officers. The Compensation Committee will also seck
recommendations regarding performance targets and bonus awards for other executives from the Chief Executive
Officer. The Compensation Committee weighs the information provided carefully, especially the recommendations
of the Chief Executive Officer on decisions affecting subordinate executives, but ultimately makes its decisions and
formulates recommendations independently. The performance of the Chief Executive Officer is reviewed and
appraised by the Compensation Committee in the Chief Executive Officer’s absence.

Role of Compensation Consultant

In evaluating program effectiveness, the Compensation Committee chose and engaged the services of an
outside consultant, Strategic Compensation Planning, Inc. The Compensation Committee assigned the consultant
the task of reviewing survey reports on the compensation practice within the corporation’s industry group, focusing
on pay levels and practices among a selected group of community banking and diversified financial services
institutions based in the Mid-Atlantic Region and Northeast Region and having between $1.9 billion and $6.3
billion of assets and which are identified below in Benchmarking: The Basis for Defining Competitive
Compensation Levels and Practices.
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The consultant’s analysis and assessment relied heavily upon compensation program and practice -
information obtained from the target organizations’ proxy statements. The review covered all aspects of executive
compensation programming: base salary levels, annual, intermediate and long-term incentive practices, as well as
use of special benefits and perquisites and employment arrangements of the selected peer group and the
corporation.

Generally, the consultant found that the corporation’s executive compensation program structure was sound
and consistent with the practices of the selected peer group studied. Salary levels among the corporation’s
executives were in the competitive range but lagging slightly against industry practice trends. Incentive award
opportunities were also competitive when measured against the selected peer group but lagging in award
opportunities among the best performing institutions in the selected peer group.

Benchmarking: The Basis for Defining Competitive Compensation Levels and Practices
For the 2008 program planning review, the outside consultant reviewed executive compensation

information from the following institutions in Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey, New York, Ohio and
Pennsylvania:

Community Banks, Inc. National Penn Bancshares Provident Financial Services
F.N.B. Corporation Park National Corp . Sandy Spring Bancorp
Investors Bancorp, Inc. Partners Trust Financial _ Sun Bancorp, Inc. .

NBT Bancorp Provident Bankshares Corp Univest Corp of PA

The results of the consuliant’s review were submitted to the Compensation Committee for its consideration
in assessing the corporation’s program structure and practices.

Program Review and Pay Decision Process ;

Starting in the early Fall of a calendar year and usually continuing through January of the following year,
the Compensation Committee (1) receives information on current executive compensation levels from the outside
consultant (as identified above) and (2) conducts a comprehensive review of the corporation’s program structure
and provisions. During this process, the Compensation Committee determines (1) if the content and structure of the
corporation’s program is still competitive, (2) if the current provisions remain consistent with the corporation’s
overall pay philosophy, and (3) if the program continues to support achievement of business objectives. Using this
information, the Compensation Committee will examine the current compensation and benefit levels of the named
executive officers in light of their continuing or changing roles in the business, the assessments of their individual
performances, and industry practice trends. '

The Compensation Committee does not currently use a comprehensive “tally sheet” in assessing an
individual executive’s total compensation and considering increases and/or performance awards for individual
executives. It does have available, however, needed information on the named executive officers’ current pay
levels and award opportunities as well as information regarding current benefit provisions, severance commitments
and contractual arrangements. It does examine current compensation lévels and recent performance and incentive
awards earned when considering further salary adjustments and incentive awards, including equity grants. At the
conclusion of this process the Compensation Committee establishes individual and executive compensation
proposals and recommendations for the Board of Directors.

The recommendations are presented to the full Board of Directors for consideration, usually in January of
the new calendar year. As incentive awards for the year ending are calculated, the Compensation Committee works
with the Chief Executive Officer to construct executive performance plans for the next calendar year (the new fiscal
year) using the previous year’s incentive goals as the basis for the following year’s incentive goals adjusted
accordingly.
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The Compensation Committee is called upon to consider pay related decisions throughout the calendar vear
as executives are reassigned or promoted and new executives join the organization.” In these instances, the
Compensation Committee will review all aspects of the executive’s compensatlon including base salary level,
annual incentive opportunmes longer-term incentive awards participation in special benefit plans, and
employment contract provisions, if applicable.

Program Components
There are six (6) elements in the current executive compensation program:
Base Salary

Base salary opportunitics are set at the median level of industry practloe for oomparablo jobs in similar
community banking and financial service organizations. The Committee uses the median benchmarks for
comparable positions from the selected peer group, referenced under Benchmarkmg above, as the primary factor in
determining salary for individual and executive compensation. We betieve the median represents the competitive
baseline that must be paid in order to attract competent executives. Within the defined competitive range identified
as plus or minus twenty percent of the median range identified through Benohmarkmg, an exccutive’s salary level
is based 1n1t1ally on his/her qualifications for the assignment and experience in similar level and type roles.

Ongoing salary adjustments reflect the individual’s overall performance of the job agamsl orgamzation
expectations and may also reflect changes in industry practices and are determined based upon the Compensation
Committee’s experience and business judgment., The Compensation Committee recognizes that salary levels
among incumbent executives, all of whom have extensive experience in the banking industry, tend to be in the low
to middte part of the salary ranges established for their positions through Benchmarking. This practice is consistent
with the corporation’s !ong -held approach of provndmg more emphasis on performance -based variable pay in the
overall compensation “mix”. While it recognizes the need to be competitive in all aspects of executive
compensation, the Compensatlon Committee strives to maintain a more leveraged approach in structuring
compensation programs for executives: adequate fixed compensation and better than typical performance-based
variable pay opportunities.

Discretionary Bonus ,

The Compensation Committee retains the authority to recommend to the Board of Directors that named
executive officers, executives, or all employees receive a dlscreuonary bonus. The Compensation Committee bases
its recommendation upon employee performance in general as well as their individual business Judgment

Benefits ‘ _ : S . : *

Exccutives participate in the corporation’s qualified health & welfare and pension (including pension plan
and 401(k)) benefits program on the same terms and conditions as all other employees of the corporation. Health &
welfare benefit programs and pension benefit programs are expected by all employees and are the minimum of
which must be offered to attract most employees. Because benefit plans are standard throughout most industries,
the costs of providing such plans are not taken into consideration in determining the other components of executive
compensation. g |

Annual Performance Incentives . . .

The annual performance incentive award plan provides participating executives with opportunities to earn .
additional cash compensation in a given year when corporate and business unit operating results and individual '
performance contributions meet or exceed established thresholds of acceptable achievement. We believe that by
providing this incentive, we are creating long-term shareholder value.
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For the year 2007, the Compensatlon Committee approved the following target bonuses for the named
executive officers:

Named Executive Officer Target Bonus
Percent of Base Salary

Paul D. Geraghty 60

Demetra M. Takes 50

Michael B. High 45

George S. Rapp ‘ : 40

Lewis C. Cyr 50

For 2007, each executive’s annual incentive opportunity was based on attainment of a corporate
performance objective, growth in core earning. For 2007, the threshold percentage was 7% with the target being
10%. As the corporation did not meet these ohjectlves no bonus was paid under this portion of the annual
perfonnance incentive award plan

‘ The remainder of the executives® annual incentive opportunities was based on achievement of selected
goals in their respective areas of responsibility. Annual work goals, performance standards and other related
conditions for earning incentive awards are approved by the Board of Directors. If an executive did not meet the
target, the incentive was not paid.

A review of annual incentive award opportunities by the compensation consultant and the Compensation
Committee, however, revealed an inconsistency with the corporation’s strategic objective of returning to the top tier
of high performing community banks listed under Benchmarking. The Compensation Committee determined that
the current schedule of incentive award opportunities, coupled with a conservative salary practice, will not provide
executives with commensurate total annual cash compensation when they deliver top tier results for shareholders.
The Compensation Committeeis reviewing the 2008 incentive award schedule and will likely recommend
modifications to this aspect of the program during the first quarter of 2008. The Committee believes that the
reward opportunity for executives should match the performance expectations of the corporation. Top performance
warrants top level rewards.

Equity Grant Plans A

Currently, the corporation has a 1993 Stock Incentive Plan, 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, a 2004 Omnibus
Stock Incentive Plan and a Stock Bonus Plan. For more mfonnatlon on the specific details of each Equity Incentive
Plan, see Equity Compensation Plan Information. . '

The Compensation Committee recommends to the Board and the Board authorizes the awarding of stock
options and/or restricted stock to executives and certain employees. The equity grant plans are established to focus
the executive’s efforts on the strategic directions and goals of the business and to reward them for their successes in
these areas. These awards are desigried to'provide incentives for long-term positive performance by the executives
and to align their financial interests with those of our stockholders by providing the opportunity to participate in
any appreciation in the stock price of our common stock which may occur after the date of grant of stock options.

There is a service time vesting schedule associated with all options which encourages the executive to
remain with the corporation. The options, if not exercised, are forfeited upon being terminated for cause; therefore,
we do not reward an executive whose conduct has risen to the level of being terminated for cause,

Where restricted stock is granted to executives, the corporation'typically will use performance based
vesting requirements, i.e. the corporation 0r the individual must achieve certain results in order for the grant to vest,
which requirements have not yet been determined. F allure to achieve stated vested requiremients within expected
time frames will result in loss (forfeiture) of the grant.’ No restricted stock was awarded in 2007.
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Continuing studies of longer-term incentive award practices provided to the Compensation Committee by
the compensation consultant suggest that the corporation should shift its award practice. from use of time vested
stock options to performance-based restricted stock grants.. The Compensation Committee believes that the use of
restricted stock will be perceived positively by executives and will allow them to achieve tangible recognition for
achievements within their direct control. After beginning its review in 2007, the Compensation Committee is
initiating a three year performance plan, which is associated with the 2004 Omnibus Plan, for a number of
executives, including the Named Executive Officers, in early 2008. The plan provides an opportunity for
participants to earn corporation stock, but only if the executives are successful in.growing the corporation’s core
earnings and producing a Return on Equity in line with Board expectations. The combination of the increase in the
size of annual incentive opportunities and a performance-based restricted stock plan will maintain a healthy, results
based total rewards program for executives, - '

The timing of grants is not tled to the release of negative or positive material mformanon about the
corporation, Past recommendations are not made on a set or regular schedule, and the corporation does not have a
policy of making awards on a set or regular schedule or at specific times a year. The corporation has not A
established a policy regarding executive ownershlp of corporation stock and/or retention guidelines applicable to
equity awards to executives. . : :

1 . ' '
Nonquahf ed Benef ts and Perqmwtes

Some Named Executive Officers participate in a nonquahﬁed.rehremem income benefit plan that =
supplements benefits from the corporation’s qualified pension and 401(k) plans for all employees. The
supplemental plan is designed to make-up benefits lost under the qualified plans because of the Federal restrictions
on pension plans and is used to encourage longevity with executives. In some instances, the benefit is vested over
service time, but for most executives today, the benefit is contingent on active employment with the corporation at,
the time of retirement. .

Named Executive Officers are provided with a car allowance and Mr. Geraghty and Ms. Takes are
provided company vehicles. Provision of a company vehicle and for car allowance is standard in the financial
services industry as the Named Executive Officers frequently meet clients and business associates offsite.

Employment Contracts and Change of Control Agreements

In line with current banking industry norms and as most top banking executives require an employment
contract as a condition of employment; our top executives are employed under formal contracts which define their
roles in the business and the terms and conditions under which they are compensated during and afier employment
with the corparation. The Compensation Committee only awards contracts when it determines that it is desirable
for the corporation to obtain a measure of assurance as to the executive’s continued employment in light of . .
prevailing market competition and in light of past practices of the corporation with respect to similarly situated
employees.

The contracts are designed to compensate the executive if the executive is terminated without cause, is
terminated after a change of control, or terminates employment for good reason. The contracts give the executive |
the security of knowing that if he or she is terminated in one of those scenarios that the executive will receive some
form of compensation during the transition phase from working for the corporation to finding another position, [n
addition, the contracts contain a noncompetition provision, whereby the exccutive is not allowed to compete with
the corporation or solicit customers of the corporation for a specific period of time. Frequently, the time period in
which the executive receives compensation is the same time period that the noncompetition provision is in effect.

The contracts contain change of control provisions whereby the executive is compensated upon a
termination after a change of control in order to ensure that decisions regarding potential change of controls are
made in the best interests of the shareholders and that personal concerns regarding subsequent employment are
minimized. -
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Tax Gross-up Provision. Noneof the named executive officers have a tax gross-up provision.in their
respective employment contracts. In the event that severance payments exceed the deduction limits under [RS
Code Section 4999, the company may reduce the payments to the executwe by an amount necessary-to avoid the
excise tax. '

Difference in Compensation among the Named Executive Officers

The named executive officers receive base salarles commensurate with their posmons and responS|b111t1es
and with the executive’s past performance

Generally, the employment contracts entered into between the corporation and the top executives are
similar in form to each other in an effort to be consistent and fair among the top executives with the differences
among the amount of compensation being attributed to the dlfferences among the responsibilities of the posmons or
negotlatlons between the parties at the time of hire.

However, th‘e'employment contract entered into between. the corporation and the Chief Executive Officer of
the corporation is somewhat different from the others to reflect his past experience and to incorporate specific
incentives offered to him through his contract negotiations. The Chief Executive Officer received stock options
upon the signing of his agreement which will vest upon the stock price of the corporation reaching a particular price
over a period of thirty (30) consecutive days. This benefit awarded to the Chief Executive Officer will encourage
him to perform in such a manner that will benefit the shareholders as his interests are now aligned with theirs.

Furthermore, the structure of Chief Executive Officer’s payments upon a change of control differ from the
other named executive officers in that the payment is structured to give the Chief Executive Officer two times his
base salary if the change of control occurs prior to the second anniversary of his agreement and two times his base
salary plus highest bonus if the change of control occurs after the second anniversary of his agreement. The Chief
Executive Officer is in the position to most directly influence whether or not a change of control occurs. Therefore,
it was incumbent upon the Compensation Committee-to structure the arrangement such that the Chief Executive
Officer’s fears of being terminated upon a change of control were balanced with the Compensation Committee’s
desire not to give him an incentive to effectuate a change of control if it was not in the best interests of the
corporation.

The differences in the SERP payments available to the named executive officers upon retirement age vary
depending upon the executive’s monthly compensation and other negotiated terms between the parties.

While most of the differences in the employment agreements are a result of the time of hire or promotion,
the Compensation Committee is concerned that some may detract from the corporation’s goal of providing
internally equitable compensation for all of its executives. It continues to review the employment agreements and
will strive for greater consistency as current contracts reach their renewal dates and contracts are initiated with new
hires.

Recent Actions: First Quarter 2008

Base salaries were not increased in the first quarter of 2008 as is typically done, but may be'reviewed latef
in 2008 by the Compensation Committee based on the organization’s progress toward 2008 performance goals.

Status of the Program and Likely Practices Geing Forward
The structure of the corporation’s executive compensation program is expected to remain the same during
2008. There are, however, several changes and enhancements that are expected to take place during the year:

1. Rollout of the Intermediate-term Incentive Plan. In lien of stock options grants, the corporation intends to

initiate a performance-based restricted stock plan, which would be part of the 2004 Omnibus Stock
Incentive Plan, for selected key contributors, including the Named Executive Officers. Under this plan,
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each participant has an opportunity to eam shares of the corporation stock based on the corporation’s
attainment of ROE and Core Earnings Growth goals, which have yet to be determined, over the three year
period, 2008-2010. Should the corporation fail to achieve at least threshold level performance, the entire
grant will be forfeited. 1f the corporation exceeds the target goals, the named executive officer will eam
additional shares of the corporation stock. Participants will be required to hold at least 50% of the stock
earned under this plan for a period of three (3) years.

2. Increase in Annual Incentive Award Opportunities. The corporation strives for performance comparable
to the best performing institutions in the Mid-Atlantic Region, which it has identified under Benchmarking,
but its annual incentive award plan was only designed to provide median level rewards for executives. In
2008, the Compensation Committee has agreed to review the annual incentive award schedule for
executives and revise it, as appropriate, to provide rewards consistent with “best in class” performance,
which it determines by looking at the performance of executives at the best performing institutions in the
Mid-Atlantic Region and Northeast Regions and the compensation afforded to their executives.

3. Stock Ownership Guidelines. The Compensation Committee will consider adopting stock ownership
guidelines for named executives and other key contributors to the business. Although not adopted, the
Compensation Committee is currently considering requiring all employees in the positions of executive
vice presidents and above to hold at least one year’s salary in corporation stock.

The Compensation Committee will continue to monitor practice changes and trends in the financial
services and community banking industries throughout the year and will conduct a comprehensive assessment of
the corporation again in the Fall, 2008.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management, and based on such review and discussions, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
be included in the Proxy Statement.

Compensation Committee
Harold A. Herr, Chairman
Stephanie S. Mitchetl

A. Ross Myers

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During 2007, no current or former officer or employee of the corporation or of any of its banking
subsidiaries served on the Compensation Committee. In addition, none of the members of the committee had any
relationship with the corporation or any of its subsidiaries that would require disclosure under Item 404 of the -
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Regulation S-K relating to insider transactions and indebtedness of
management. ’ '
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Executive Compensation

The following table shows compensation to the current Chief Executive Officer, the prior Chief Executive

Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the other three most highly compensated executive officers who were serving
as executive officers at the end of 2007 and whose total annual compensation exceeded $100,000 in 2007, and one
additional individual, John W. Eisele, who would have been among the three other highest paid executive officers
had he been serving as an executive officer at December 31, 2007. These were our “named executive officers” for

2007.
Summary Compensation Table
Change in
Pension Value
and Non-
qualrf fed
Option/ Deferred Al
. SAR Compensation Other Total
Salary Bonus (1) Awards Earnings Compensation (8)  Compensation

Name & Principal Position - ‘Year 5 - 5. NP b3 ] S
Paul D, Geraghty 2007 $154,327 50 $21,212 (i) $0 8670 7 $176,209
Prestdent & CEO . oo ’
Demetra M. Takes 2007 $377.460 %0 $33,591(3) $170,232 85,516 $586,799
Interim President & CEQ, & 2006 $295,200 880,728 $33,404 (3) 5124986 $R8,485 $542,803
President & CEQ . '
Harleysville Nationat Bank .
George S. Rapp 2007 $187,250 80 $6,437 () $24,549 " $10,703 - $228.939
Executive Vice President & 2006 5171,192 $40,444 $7,719 (4) $17.289 $9,017 $245,661
CFO
Michael B. High 2007 $296,100 $0 539,426 (3) $133,122 $10478 $5479,126
Exccutive Vice President & 2006 $282,000 $71,381 $39,132(5) $112.495 314,608 519,616
COO ) "
Lewis C. Cyr . | 2007, - 8185400 - 80 $7,073 (6} $0 . 86,383 $198.856
Executive Vice President & ‘
CLO _
John W. Eisele 2007 $141,006 $0 -0- $0(7) §203.712 ' $349,718
Former Exccutive Vice 2006 $241,771 $73,528 -0- $42,117 $11,722 $369,138
President

Former President, Millennium
Wealth Management &
Private Banking

(H
(2)

3

“

&)

No bonuses were paid for services performed in 2007. Cash bonus eamned in 2006; paid in first quarter 2007.

Represents the value of equity compensation awarded to Mr. Geraghty in 2007, 25,000 options granted 7/23/2007, special
vesting as follows: within 5 years from date of grant, 12,500 options will vest when the corporation’s stock price equals or
exceeds $20/share for 30 consecutive trading days; and 12,500 will vest when the corporation’s stock price equals or
exceeds $22.50/share for 30 consecutive days: FAS 123(R) value = $3 08. Refer to 2007 Form 10-K, 1tem 8, footnote #14
regarding stock-based compensation.

Represents the value of equity compensation awarded to Ms. Takes prior to 2007, with service periods extending into
2007, and recognized for financial reporting purposes in each respective year: 6,945 options granted 12/30/2003, S-year
vesting, FAS 123(R) value = $7.4941; 8,269 options granted 12/30/2004, 5-year vesting, FAS 123(R) value = $6.7192;
and, 10,762 options granted 12/8/20035, 5-year vesting, FAS 123(R) value = §5.6104. Refer to 2007 Form 10-K, Item 8,
footnote #14 regarding stock-based compensation.

Represents the value of equity compensation awarded to Mr. Rapp prior to 2007, with service periods extending into 2007,
and recognized for financial reporting purposes in each respective year: 2,205 options granted 5/18/2003, 5-year vesting,
FAS 123(R) value = $5.2451; and, 3,675 options granted 12/8/2005, 5-year vesting, FAS 123(R) value = $5.6104, Refer
to 2007 Form 10-K, Item &, footnote #14 regarding stock-based compensation.

Represents the value of equity compensation awarded to Mr. High prior to 2007, with service periods extending into 2007,
and recognized for financial reporting purposes in each respective year: 11,576 options granted 2/23/2004, 5-year vesting,
FAS 123(R) value = $6.6316; 8,269 options granted 12/30/2004, 5-year vesting, FAS 123(R) value = $6.7192; and, 11,550
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options granted 12/8/2005, 5-year vesting, FAS 123(R) value = $5.6104. Refer to 2007 Form 10-K, ltem 8, footnote #14
regarding stock-based compensation.

(6) Represents the value of equity compensation awarded to Mr. Cyr prior to 2007, with service periods extending into 2007,
and recognized for financial reporting purposes in each respective yeat; 6,300 options granted 7/10/2006, 5-year vesting,
FAS 123(R) value = $5.6268. Refer to 2007 Form 10-K, Item 8, footnote #14 regarding stock-based compensation.

(7} The value of Mr. Eisele’s pension is included in the contract payout shown in footnote #8.

(8) All Other Compensation

Harleysville's Exec-u-care

Name Year Car , © Country Club 401(k) Health Contract
red Allowance (a) Membership Plan Contribution Benefit Plan(b) Payouts (c)
5 (% 3 ' %5 (3
P. Geraghty . 2007 .. s o670 $0¢l) ) - .- o -
D. Takes 2007 /a - 85,516 -- -
2006 nfa - $6,600 $1.885 -
G. Rapp 2007 $5,086 - 55,617 - -
2006 $3,881 -- $5,136 - --
M. High 2007 $4,937 - $5,541 - -
- 2006 $3,469 $4,539 36,600 - -
L. Cyr . 2007 $2,105 - 34,278 - -
1. Eisele 2007 $2,581 - $5.632 $£12,203(e) $188,296
2006 §5,122 - $6,600 - -

{a) Taxable benefit calculation of personal use of company provided vehicle or car allowance, applicable.

{b) The Exec-u-care Health Benefit Plan was discontinued in 2007.

{¢) Mr. Eiscle's payment on termination of employment pursuant to the terms of either employment and/or severance agrecements include,
salary -$127,076, and pension payout - 361,220.

(d) While Mr. Geraghty is entitled to country club membership, under terms of his employment agreement, he chooses not to accept the
provision at this time.

{(¢) The vatue of benefits paid to or on behalf of Mr. Eisele includes the value of insurance and a medical plan payment paid directly to
COBRA.

Grants of Pian-Based Awafds

The table below shows equity-based awards granted to named executive officers during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007 or during 2008 prior to the date of this Proxy Statement.

0

Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

All other Exercise or Grant date
aption awards: “base price Sair value
Grant number of ’ of of stock
securities : aption and option
Name date Underlying awards awards
aptions (5/5h)
{H}
) P. Geraghty ) 7/23/2007 : 25,000 (1) o $14.49 $77.000
D. Takes - - - -
G. Rapp - - - -
_ M. High - -- - -
L. Cyr _ - - . -
J. Eisele - - - -

(1) Mr. Geraghty’s options are subject to special vesting parameters based on the market price of Harleysville common stock,
as follows: within 5 years from date of grant, 12,500 options will vest when the corporation’s stock price equals or
exceeds $20/share for 30 consecutive trading days; and 12,500 will vest when the corporation’s stock price equals or
exceeds $22.50/share for 30 consecutive days.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

No options were exercised by named executive officers during 2007. No restricted stock, stock
appreciation rights or other equity-based awards have been granted to any named executive officers.
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Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table shows mfonnatlon about outstandmg equnty awards he!d by named executlve off' icers at
December 31, 2007. . . o

OQutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards

Number of Securities

Numbef of Securities o Underlying Unexercised Option .
' ' Underlying Unexercised Options Optians , Exercise Option
) . (# . L. t:7] . Price . . Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable 5 Date
Paul D. Geraghty T 0D 25,000 $14.49 07232017
Demetra M. Takes 5,556 (2) 1,389 $27.37 12/30/2013
4,961 (3) 3,308 $24.54 12/30/2014
_ 4305 (4) 6,457 $20.10 12/08/2015 )
George S. Rapp 882 (5) 1,323 $19.54 05/18/2015
1,470 (4) 2205 $20.10 12/08/2015
Michael B. High 6,945 (6) 4,631 $24.22 02/23/2014
4,961 (3) 3,308 2454 12/30/2014
. 4,620 (4) 6,930 $20.10 12/08/2015
Lewis C. Cyr 1,260(7) 5040 70Tt 81943 071012016

John W. Eisele -0- -0- : -0- . -

-~ r

) ]

(1) Incentive stock option granted July 23, 2007, subject to 1SO limitation under Section 422(d) of the Internal Reverive Code.
Special vesting: within 5 years from date of grant, 12,500 options will vest when the corporation’s stock price equals or
exceeds $20/share for 30 consecutive trading days; and 12,500 will vest when the corporation’s stock prlce cquals or
exceeds $22.50/share for 30 consecutive days. S

(2) Incentive stock optmn granted December 30, 2003, vesting in 3 equal annual installments on the anniversary of grant,
subject to 18O limitation under Section 422(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(3) Incentive stock option granted December 30, 2004, vesting in 5 equal annual instaliments on the anniversary of grant,
subject to [SO limitation under Section 422(d) ofthe Internal Revenue Code.

(4) Incentive-stock option granted December 8, 2005, vesting in 5 equal annual installments on the anniversary of"grant,
subject to ISO limitation under Section 422(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(5) Incentive stock option granted May 18, 2005, vesting in 5 equal annual installmenis on the anniversary of grant, subject to
1SO limitation under Section 422(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(6) Incentive stock option granted February 23, 2004, vesting in 3 equal annual mstallrnents on the anniversary of grant,
subject to ISO limitation under Section 422(d) of the Intemal Revenue Code,

(7) Incentive stock option granted July 10, 2006, vesting in 5 equal annual indtallments on the anniversary 'of grant, sub_;ect 0
limitation under Section 422(d) of the Internal Reveriue Code

26




Pension Benefits

The following table shows information about retirement payments and benefits for named executive
officers as of December 31, 2007. ‘

Pension Benefits

Present Value Paymenis
Number of Years of Accumulated During L;ast
Credited Service Benefit Fiscal Year
Name Plan Namte [ . %) (%)
Paul D. Geraghty HNC Pension Plan - 0 -0-
Supplemental Employce Retirement Plan -- . -0- -0-
Demetra M. Takes HNC Pension Plan 25 $469,672 -0- ¢
Supplementat Employee Retirement Plan -- £879,956 -0- v
George S. Rapp HNC Pension Plan 3 $ 41,838 _ -0-
Supplemental Employce Retirement Plan - -0- -0-
Michae! B. High HNC Pension Plan 4 $ 85,139 -0- 'h'
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan - $254,259 -0- P
Lewis C. Cyr HNC Pension Plan . = . -0- -0~}
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan -- -0- -0- .
John W. Eisele HNC Pensicon Plan 2 -0- $61,220
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan - -0- -0- 1

Pension Plan. The corporation is in the process of eliminating a non-contributory funded pension plan for all

employees of its subsidiarics over age 21, who have completed | year of service and who work a minimum of 1000
hours in the year. Annual benefits to eligible retired employees at age 65 or, if later, the 5™ anniversary of the first -
day of the plan year in which they began to participate in the plan, are provided according to the following formula:

The product of (A) and (B), where

(A) isthe sumof:
(i) .65% of average compensation, plus
(i) .60%, (.56% or .52% for participants whose social security retirement age is 66 or 67,
respectively) of average compensation above the covered compensation level of an individual
attaining the social security retirement age in the current plan year; and
(B) s the participant’s years of service as of his normal retirement date, but not in excess of 25 years.

Covered compensation is a 35-year average of the current and prior Social Security Taxable Wage Bases.
Average compensation is the average of the highest 5 consecutive salaries, excluding bonuses, during the last 10
years of employment. Compensation for pension purposes is limited to $225,000 (for calendar year 2006 the
compensation limit was $220,000; for calendar year 2005 the compensation limit was $210,000; for 2004 the
compensation limit was $205,000; and for 2003 the compensation limit was $200,000) as required under federal
pension law. Total contributions by Harleysville National Bank to the pension plan for the years ending December
31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were $1,250,000, $1,250,000 and $1,500,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2007,
all pension plan accruals were frozen.

Suppiemental Executive Retirement Plan. Harleysville Management Services maintains a Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan for certain officers and key employees. The plan provides for payment to the ¢overed employee of
an annual supplemental retirement benefit of up to 50% of their average annual compensation upon retirement,
offset by 50% of the employee’s social security retirement income, defined pension benefit, and projected income
from the employer’s 401(k} matching contributions. There is a lifetime payout in retirement benefits with a
minimum payout of 10 years. There is a pre-retirement death benefit, payable for 10 years, of 100% of the average
annual compensation for the first year, and up to 50% of the average annual compensation for the next 9 years.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

None of the named executive officers received any nonqualified deferred compensation during 2007.
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401(k) Plan

The corporation maintains a 401(k) plan. It is a tax-exempt profit-sharing plan, qualified under section
401(a} of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to participate on the first day of the calendar
quarter following 3 months of service, if they are 21 years of age. They may contribute a maximum {up to IRS
dollar limits) of their salary on a pre-tax basis, with a 50% employer match, up to a maximum of 3% of salary. The
plan assets, which include the corporation’s stock and other investment options, are managed by an independent
investment manager. Distributions are made upon normal retirement at age 65, early retirement at age 55 with a
minimum of 15 years of service, or upon disability, death, termination or hardshlp A panlclpant may elect
distributions in a lump sum or in installments.

Potential Payments Upon Termination Or Change In Control

Payments under each executive's contract as detailed below would be triggered by termination of
executive's employment for cause (misconduct for example), good reason, disability, death, voluntary separation
absent good reason (as in the case of retirement), involuntary termination absent cause (as in the case of poor
performance), and also in the event of a change in control. Good reason is defined as (i) the assignment of duties
and responsibilities inconsistent with executive's contracted position, (ii) a reduction in salary or benefits, or (iii) a
reassignment that requires executive to move his/her principal office more than 50 miles from the corporation's
principal office. The Compensation Committee of the Board shall confirm the reason for separation. All payments
are contingent upon the-execution of a release, and may be made by either lump sum or monthly installment, except
for pension payments which shall be made according to the executive's election under the pension plan.

'Post-termination, each executive is prohibited from competing directly or indirectly with the corporation
for a period of 1 year, or two years depending on the contract, within a non-competition area that includes all
counties in which the corporation is located, or any county contiguous to such a county, including contiguous
counties located outside of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Each executive is also prehibited from soliciting
corporation customers or employees, and from disclosing confidential or privileged information obtained in the
course of employment with the corporation. Each executive acknowledges that all work product belongs to the
corporation, and agrees to return any company property or documents obtained in the course of employment with
the corporation. Both the corporation and each executive agree to the use of arbitration as the means for resolving
contract disputes other than those concerning these restrictions and acknowledgements, which may be litigated.

The following table shows the potential payments and benefits payable to Paul D. Geraghty, the
corporation’s President and Chief Executive Officer, upon a separation of employment under terms of his
employment agreement, assuming the event giving rise to such payment occurred on December 31, 2007.

Reason for Separation

Volunitary,
Good absent Good  Changein =~  Other
Form of Compensation Death(l) Disability(2)  Cause Reason Reason Control Involuntary
Salary/Severance . $0 $172,500 %0 $375,000 $0 $750,000 $375,000
Value of Employee Benefits ' )

Medical 50 511,668 $0 $11,668 - 50 £23,336 511,668
Demal $o 51,148 f0 $1,148 50 82,296 $1,148
Life | . 50 3960 $0 . $960 _%0 £1,920 _ 8960
_ Disability %0 50 50 $444 $0 bges o .8444
Vision 30 30 f0 . 50 30 50 $0
401(k) Match $0 £3,750 5o $3,750 30 £7.500 $3,750
Pension Plan (3) $0 30 30 50 30 $0 50
SERP (4) . ' %0 50 $0 f0 50 g0 . $0

Equity (5) N , o _ ,
. Vested Stock Options _ 3o $o it $0 50 50 50
Unexercisable Stock Options $0(a) $0(a) 30 $0(b) $o(b) $2,000(c) $0(b)

v

(1} Does not include the proceeds from any employer-paid life insurance poli'cies.
(2) Disability.salary payment is 70% times base salary, offset by amounts payable under any disability plan, calculated as follows:
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70% x Good Reason amount, minus 9 months only of base salary x 60% (disability plan has a 3 month ellmmauon period). The Iong

term disability benefit is capped at $10,000 per month, so salaries over $200,000 are capped.

* {3) Present value of accumulated benefit under the corporatmn 5 pensxon plan as of December-31, 2007, payable at normal retirement, age

65. . "

(4) Under executive’s employment agreement, the corporation shall enter into a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan with executive,
++ but the agreement has not yet been executed. Subject to the terms of the anticipated plan, the executive shall not vest in any benefit for

the first five years of service, and then 20% per year for the next five years of service. Upon age 65, Mr. Geraghty will receive a

retirement benefit equal to 60% of the sum of (i) his previous year’s annual base salary and (i1} an average of the last three years’

bonuses reduced by any qualified retirement or Social Security benefits, and continuing for fifteen (15} years.
(5) ' Based on the closing price of Harleysville National Corporation common stock as of December 31; 2007, $14.57. -

a. Vesting of stock options-does not accelerate upon death of disability. The optionce or the optionee’s estate, as applicable, may
cxercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of one-year from the date of disability or death, as applicable, of
the optionee. As of December 31, 2007, Mr. Geraghty had no vested options.

b. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate for any reason, except change in control. In the case of normal retirerment, the optionee
may excreise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for.a period of 3 months from the date of retirement. As of December 31,
2007, Mr. Geraghty had no vested options. +

¢. Upon change in control, vesting accelerates-and all oulslandmg options become immediately exercisable. As of December 31, 2007,
the intrinsic value of all outswndmg options, held by Mr. Geraghty, presumed to vesl on such event was, $2 000.

In the event of a termmatlon for good reason or mvoluntary termination absent cause, severance benefits to
Mr. Geraghty equal one (1) times his then annual base salary plus continuation of basic health & welfare and
retirement benefits for a period of twelve months. Under terms of Mr. Geraghty’s employment agreement, “agreed
compensation” equals his annual base salary. Payments for disability include 70% of agreed compensation, less
amounts payable under any disability plan of the corporation, plus benefit continuation until the earliest of (i) return
to work, (ii) attainment of age 63, or (iii} death. In the event of a termination related to a change of control,
severance benefits are increased to 2.0 times his then annual base salary plus continuation-of health & welfare
benefits for a corresponding period of months. There is no provision for payment in the event of his death.

The following table shows the potential payments and benefits payable to Demetra M. Takes, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Harleyswlle National Bank, upon a separation of employment under terms
of her employment agreement, assuming the event gwmg rise to such payment occurred on December 31, 2007,

Reason for Separation .

. Voluntary,
. ‘. . . o Good absent Good  Changein | Other

Form of Compensation . Dearh(1); Disabiliy(2) Cause Reason Reason Control Involuntary
Salary/Severance(3) $0 $i26972 80 $309,960 $0  $619,920 3309,960

Value of Employee Benefits . .
Medical 50 $4,775 10 $4,775 $0 39,550 34775
Dental ] %0 £335 o - 8335 . 50 $670 8335
Life t80 . $960 50 $960 $0 $1,920 ;3560
Disability 30 : 50 30 444 . S0 5888  p444
Vision 30 $60 30 $60 " 30 $120 1 860,
401(k) Match $0 50 50 $6,750 50 $13,500 . 50
" Pension Plan (4) $234,836 $469,672  3469,672 $469,672 $469.672 $469,672 $468,672
SERP (5) $346,717(a) 50 50 §141,396(b) $0(c) $141.396(d) $0

Equity (6) , b
Vested Stock Options $0 $0 30 50 $0 $0 50
Unexercisable Stock Options $0(a) $0(a) 30 $0(b) $0(b) $0(c) $0(b)

(1) Does not include the proceeds from any employer-paid life insurance policies.
{2) Disability salary payment is 70% times Agreed Compensation, offsct by amounts payable under any disability plan, calculated as
follows: 70% x Good Reason amount, minus 9 months only of base salary x 60% {disability plan has a 3 month elimination period).
The long term disability benefit is capped at $10,000 per month, so salaries over $200,000 are capped. .
: (3} Salary/Severance for Ms. Takes does not include the stipend she received during the period she served as lntenm Chief Executive,
Officer of the corporation,
(4) Present value of accumulated benefit under the corporation’s pension plan as of December 31, 2007, payable at normal retirement, age
65.
(5) Under the corporation’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, the executive is enmled to monthly benefits as follows:
a, Death before retirement; Represents annualized first year benefit. The benefit is paid monthly to survivors in the amount of .
$28,893 per month for the first 12 months following executive’s death; then $14:446 monthly from month 13 until the date that
would have been the executive's 659 birthday, but not less than 120 months,
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b. Good Reasen: Represents annualized benefit. The benefit is paid monthly as follows: At age 65, the executive receives the
" deferred vested benefit amounting to $11,783 per month for life, but not less than 120 menths,

c. Retirement: Not eligible at this time. Monthly retirement benefit is equal to 50% times 1/60™ of Ms, Takes” total annual -
compensation (including salary, overtime and bonus) from the company for her last 5-consecutive full calendar years of employment
immediately preceding her retirement at or after age 65, less '2 of her monthly social security benefit, less the monthly income from
the company's defined benefit pension plan, and less the projected monthly retirement income derived from the company’s matching
contributions to her 401(k). If she dies before receiving a minimum of 120 monthly retirement payments, the remaining payments

- will be pald to her beneficiary. ‘

d. Change in control — Represents annualized benefit, Ms, Takes would be entitled to a deferred vested retirement benefit amountmg
to $11,783 per month for life, but not less than 120 months, This benefit is payable when Ms, Takes reaches age 65 and calculated
on compensation eamned only while employed by the company. No benefits are payable if Ms. Takes voluntarily terminates her
employment without Good Reason. W oo

(6) Based on the closing price of Harleysville National Corporation common stock as of. December 31, 2007, $14. 57 .

a.  Vesting of stock options does not accelerate upon death or disability. The optionee or the optionee’s estate, as applicable, may
exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of one-year from the date of disability or death, as applicable, of
the optionee. As of December 31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Ms. Takes was zero since

. the exercise price was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.

b.  Vesting of stock options does not accelerate for any reason, except change in control. In the case of normal retirement, the
optionee may exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of 3 months from the date of retirement. As of
December 31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Ms. Takes was-zero since the exercise pnce
was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.

.¢. Upon change in control, vesting accelerates and all outstandirig options become xmmedlately exercisable. However, as of
December 31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Ms. Takes was zero since the exercise pnce
was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007::

In the event of a termination for good reason or involuntary termination absent cause, severance benefits to
Ms. Takes equal one (1) times annual agreed compensation {“agreed compensation for Ms, Takes equals the
highest annual base salary under terms of her employment agreement”) plus continuation of basic health & welfare
and retirement benefits for a period of twelve months. Payments for disability include 70% of agreed
compensation, less amounts payable under any disability plan of the corporation, plus benefit continuation until the
earliest of (i) return to work, (ii) attainment of age 65, or-(iii) death. In the event of a termination related to a
change of control, severance benefits are increased to 2.0 times.annual agreed compensation plus continuation of
health & welfare benefits for a correspondmg penod of months, There is no provision for payment in the event of
her death.

The following table shows the potential payments and benefits payable to George 8. Rapp, Executive Vice
Président and Chief Financial Officer, upon a separation of employment under terms of his employinent agreement,
assuming the event-giving rise to such payment occurred on December 31, 2007.

" Reason for Separation

. Voluntary,
. Good “‘absent Good = Change in Other
Form of Compensation Death(l)  Disability(2)  Cause . Reason "« Reason Control - Involuntary
Salary/Severance 0 7 $46,817 $0  $187,250 - $0 $374,500 $187,250
Value of Employee Benefits ‘ : ' ) :
Medical $0  $11,551 $0 $11,551 $0 $23,102 $11,551
B Dental $0 $706 $0 $706 . $0 $1,412 “$706
Life $0 $719 $o0 - $719 $0 $1,438 $719
Disability 80 $0 $o . $444 $0 - © 5838 $444
Vision $0 3126 S0 5126 %0 %2352 $126
] 401(k) Match S0 50 30 1) 30 S0 80
Pension Plan (3) $20,919 $41,838 341,838 $41,838 $41,838 $41,838 541,838
SERP (4) : $0 6 s - S0 0 $0 %0
Equity (5) _ ) '
Vested Stock Options $0 0 . 50 $0 %0 B $0
Unexercisable Stock Options 30(a) $0(a) $0 00y - $0(b) $0(c) ()

(1) Does not include the proceeds from any employer-paid life insurance policies.

(2) Disability salary payment is 70% times Agreed Compensation, offset by amounts payable under any disability plan, calculated as
follows: 70% x Good Reason amount, minus 9 months only of base salary x 60% (disability plan has a 3 month elimination period).
The long term disability benefit is capped at $10.000 per month, so salaries over $200,000 are capped.
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{3) Present value of accumulated benefit under the corporauon s pension plan as of December 31, 2007, payable at normal retirement, age

6.

(4) Currently not appllcablc to Mr. Rapp. - . '
{5} Based on the closing price of Harlcysville National Corporahon common stock as of December 31, 2007, $14.57.
a. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate upon death or disability. The optionee or the optionee’s estate, as applicable, may
exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of one-year from the date of disability or death, as applicable, of
the optionee. As of December 31, 2007, intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. Rapp was zero since the
exercise price was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.
b. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate for any reason, except change in control. In the case of normat retitement, the optionee
may exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of 3 months from the date of retirement. As of December 31,
2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. Rapp was zero since the exercise price was greater than
the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007,
c. Upon change in control, vesting accelerates and all outstanding options become immediately exercisable. However, as of December
31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. Rapp was zero since the exercise price was greater
than the markct price of the corporation’s common smc,k as of December 31, 2007. .

1

In the event of a termination for good reason or involuntary termination absent cause, severance benefits to
Mr. Rapp equal | 'timés annual agreed compensation (“agreed compensation for Mr. Rapp equals the h1ghest annual
base salary under terms of his employment agreement”) plus continuation of basic heaith & welfare benefits for a
period of twelve months. Payments for disability include 70% of agreed compensation, less amounts payable under
any disability plan of the corporation, plus benefit,continuation until the earliest of (i) return to work, (ii) attainment
of age 65, or (iii) death; one year is illustrated. There is no provision for payment in the event of his death. In the
event of a termination related to a change of control, severance benefits are increased to 2 times annual agreed
compensation plus continuation of health & welfare benefits for a corresponding period of months.

The followmg table shows the potential payments and beneﬁts payable to Michael B. High, Executive
Vice President and Chief Operatmg Officer, upon a separation of employment under terms of his employment

agreement, assuming the event giving rise-to such payment occurred on December 31, 2007.

Reason for Separation

Voluntary,
Good absent Good Change in Other.
Form of Compensation Death(l) Disability(2)' Cause Reason ' Reason Contro! Involantary
Salary/Severance $74,025 $167,237 $0 $367,481 $0 $1,098,768 $367,f4'81
Value of Employee Benefits )
‘Medical $0 $14,768 80 '$14,768 , $0 $44,304 $14,768
Dental 30 : 30 $0 $o $0 $0 5§50
Life $0 $960 s0 $960 $0 52,880 3960
Disability S0 $0 $0 - $444 - $0 51,332 $444
Vision $0 $0 %0 $0 $0 30 " $0
401(k) Match 50 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 'S0
Pension Plan (3) $42,570 $85,139  $85,139 $85,139 £85,139 $85,139 854139
SERP (4) $262,696(a) $0 - 50 50 30(b) $98,776(c) 30(d)
Equity (5) . ;
Vested Stock Options $0 10 $0 50 $0 $0 %0
Unexercisable Stock Options $0(a) $0(a) $0 $0(b) $0(b) $0(c) 50(b)

(1) Daes not include the proceeds from any employer-paid life insurance policies.

(2) Disability salary payment is 70% times Agreed Compensation, offset by amounts payable under any disability plan, calculated as
follows: 70% x Good Reason amount, minus 9 months only of base salary x 60% (disability plan has a 3 month elimination period). .
‘The long term disability benefit is capped at $10,000 per month, so salaries over $200,000 are capped.

{3) Present value of accumulated bcneﬁt under the corporation’s pension plan as of December 31, 2007, payable at normal retirement, age

63.

(4) Under the corporation’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, the executive is entitled to monthly benefits as follows:

a. Death before retirement: Represents annualized first year benefit. The benefit is paid monthly to survivors:in the amount of
321,891 per month for the first 12 months following executive’s death; ther $7,662 momhly from month 13 until the date that .
‘would have been the exccutive's 65% birthday, but not less than 120 months. :

b. Retirement: Benefit is contingent upon completion of 5 years of employment. Monthly retirement benefit is equal to 35% times
1/60™ of Mr. High’s tota! annual compensation (including salary, overtime and bonus) frém the company for his last 5 consecutive
full calendar years of employment immediately preceding his retirement at or afier age 63, less V2 of his monthly social security(
benefit, less the monthly income from the company’s defined benefit pension plan, and less the projected monthly retirement
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income derived from the company’s matching contributions to his 401(k). If he dies before receiving a2 minimum of 120 monthly
retirement payments, the remaining payments will be paid to his beneficiary.

c. Change in control - Represents annualized benefit. Mr. High would be entitled to a deferred vested monthly retirement benefit
amounting to $8,231 per month for life, but not less than 120 months. This benefit is payable when Mr. High reaches agc 65 and
calculated on compensation earned only while employed by the company. '

d. Other Involuntary -- If Mr. High’s employment is terminated after 5 years of employment but prior to age 65, he would be enmled to
a retirement benefit at an accrued rate of 3.5% of his average monthly compensation per years of service.

(5) Based on the closing price of Harleysville National Corporation common stock as of December 31, 2007, $14.57.

a. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate upon death or disability. The optionee or the optionee's estatc, as applicable, may
exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of one-year from the date of disability or death, as applicable, of
the optionee. As of December 31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. High was zero since
the exercise price was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.

- b. Vesting of stock opiions does not accelerate for any reason, except change in control. In the case of normal retirement, the optionee
may exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of 3-months from the date of retirement. As of December 31,
2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. High was zero since the exercise pnce was greater than
the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.

¢. Upon change in control, vesting accelerates and all outstanding options become immediately exercisable. However, as of December
31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. High was zero since the exercise price was greater
than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007.

. 1 vl

In the evént of a termination-for good reason or mvoluntary termmation absent cause, severance benefits to
Mr. High equals 1 time annual agreed compensation (“agreed compensation for Mr, High equals the highest annual
base salary under terms of his employment agreement plus the highest annual incentive bonus paid to Mr. High
during the previous two years”) plus continuation of basic health & welfare benefits for a period of twelve months.
Payments for disability include 70% of agreed compensatior, léss amounts payable under any disability plan of the
corporanon plus benefit continuation until the earliest of (i) return to work, (ii) attainment of age 65, or (iii) death;
one year is illustrated. In the event of his death, Mr. High's base salary will be paid through the end of the
Employmient Period. In the event of a termination related to a change of control, severance benefits are increased to
2.99 times annual agreed compensatlon plus continuation of health & welfare benefits for a correspondmg period of

months.

v
" N '

The following table shows the potential payments and benefits payable to Lewis C. Cyr, Executive Vice
President and Chief Lendmg Ofﬁcer upon a separation of employment under terms of his employment agreemem
assuming the event giving rise to such payment beeurred on December 31, 2007.

Reason for Separation

. Voluntary,
. Good absent Good Change in Other
Form of Compensation . Death(l}  Disability(2) Cause Reason . Reason Control Involuntary
Salary/Severance $0 $63,850 S0 $210,400 $0  $420,800 $210,400
Value of Employee Benefits — ce . _ . v . e
Medical 30 $14,768 ) 30 $14,768 . $0 $29,536 - 514,768
Dentat 50 $1,148 30 $1,148 -t $2,296 $1,i48
_ Life %0 $308 S0 3808 50 31,616 £808
. Disability $0 . S0 $0 $444 $0 $888 s444
Vision _ %0 $207 S0 $207 50 $414 8207
401(k) Match $0 S0 SC 50 30 $0 %o
Pension Plan (3) $0 30 50 50 50 $0 . 80
SERP (4) ) $0 $0 50 $0 : 30 fo $0
Equity (5) ) : _ : _
Vested Stock Options 0 - - 30 . %0 s . $0 50 50
Unexercisable Stock Options $0(a)- - 30(a) $0 $0(b) : $0(b) $0(c) $0(b)

(1) Does not include the proceeds from any cmployer-paid life insurance pol:cnes '

(2) Disability salary payment is 70% times Agreed Compensation, offset by amounts payable under any disability plan calculated as
follows: 70% x Good Reason amount, minus 9 months only of base salary x 60% (disability plan has a 3 mopth elimination period).
The long term disability benefit is capped at $10,000 per month, so salaries over $200,000 are capped.

(3} Present value of accumulated benefit undcr the corporation’s pension plan as of December 31, 2007, payable at normal retlremem age
65. .

“ Currcmly not appllcablc to Mr. Cyr.

(5} Based on the closing price of Harleysville National Corporation commen stock as of December 31, 2007, $14.57.
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a. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate upon death or disability. The dptionee or the optionee’s estate, as applicable, may
exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of one-year from the date of disability or death, as applicable, of
the optionee. As of December 31, 2007, the intrinsic value of atl outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. Cyr was zero since the
exercise price was greater than the market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007,

b. Vesting of stock options does not accelerate for any reason, except change in control. In the case of normal retirement, the optionee
may exercise the vested portion of any outstanding awards for a period of 3 months from the date of retirement. As of December 31,
2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr, Cyr was zero s'mce the exercise price was greater than the
market price of the corporation’s common stock as of December 31, 2007,

¢. Upon change in control, vesting accelerates and all outstanding options bccome immediately exercisable. However, as of Deccmber
31, 2007, the intrinsic value of all outstanding exercisable options held by Mr. ‘Cyr was zero since the exerc:se price was greater than
the market price of the corporatlon s common stock as of December 31, 2007, .

In the event of a termination for good reason or involuntary termination ahsent cauise, severance benefits to
Mr. Cyr equal 1 times annual agreed compensation (“agreed compensation for Mr. Cyr equals the highest annual
base salary under terms of his employment agreement plus the highest annual incentive bonus paid to Mr. Cyr
during the previous two years”) plus continuation of basic health & welfare benefits for a period of twelve months.
Payments for disability include 70% of agreed compensation, less amounts payable under any disability plan of the
corporation, plus benefit continuation until the earliest of (i) return to work, (ii} attainment of age 65, or (iii} death;
one year is illustrated. There is no provision for payment in the event of his death. In the event of a termination ‘
related to a change of control, severance benefits are increased to 2 times annual agreed compensation plus
continuation of health & welfare benefits for a corresponding period of months:

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Paul D. Geraghty

In 2007, the corporation and Harleysville National Bank entered into an employment agréemént with Paul
D. Geraghty, President and Chief Executive Officer, Harleysvﬂle National Corporation (the “Geraghty
Employment Agreement”). -

The Geraghty Employment Agreement is for a term of 2 years, renewing automatlcally on the first ,
anniversary of the Agreement and extended for an additional one-year, such that the employment penod shall end
two (2) years from each renewal date. Either party must provide at least 90 days written notice prior to an annual
renewal date in the event this agreement shall terminate at the end of the then existing employment period. The |
agreement specifies position title and duties, compensation and benefits, and indemnification and termination
provisions. The executive will be entitled to participate in annual and long-term incentive plans, employee benefit
plans, and a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, receive annual vacation in accordance with the policies
established by the Board of Directors of the corporation, and receive an automobile and maintenance of such
automobile. The Geraghty Employment Agreement will automatically terminate upon the executive’s disability, as
defined in the agreement, and he will receive employee benefits and an amount no greater than 70% of his
compensation less amounts payable under any disability plan until he (1) returns to work, (2) reaches 65, or (3)
dies. If the executive is terminated or upon occurrence of other evenis following a "Change in Control," as defined
in the agreement, he may receive up to 2.0 times his agreed compensation and may continue participation in
employee benefit plans. The Geraghty Employment Agreement also contains a non-competition provision and a
confidentiality provision. , .

Demetra M. Takes

In 1998, the corporation and Harleysville National Bank entered into an employment agreement with
Demetra M. Takes, Executive Vice President, Harleysville and President and Chief Executive Officer, Harleysville
National Bank (the “Takes Employment Agreement™). o .

The Takes Employment Agreement is for a term of 3 years, renewing automatically at the end of the three-
year period for an additional one-year term. The employment agreement renews automatically at the end of each
one-year extension. The employment agreement is in the renewal period. Either party must provide at least 180
days wrltten notlce prlor to an annual renewal daté in the event this agreement shall terminate at the end of the then
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existing employment period. The agreement specifies position title and duties, compensation and benefits, and
indemnification and termination provisions. The executive wiil be entitled to participate in annual and long-term
incentive plans and employee benefit plans, receive annual vacation in accordance with the policies established by
the Board of Directors of the corporation, and receive an automobile and maintenance of such automobile. The
Takes Employment Agreement will automatically terminate upon the executive’s disability, as defined in the
agreement, and she will receive employee benefits and an amount no greater than 70% of her compensation less
amounts payable under any disability plan until she (1) returns to work, (2) reaches 65, or (3) dies. [f the executive
is terminated or upon occurrence of other events following a "Change in Control," as defined in the agreement, she
may receive up to 2.0 times her agreed compensation and may continue participation in employee benefit plans.
The Takes Employment Agreement also contains a non-competition provision and a confidentiality provision.

Lewis C. Cyr and George S. Rapp

Effective June 2006, Harleysville Management Services, LLC, entered into an employment agreement with
Lewis C. Cyr upon his employment as Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the bank and the -
corporation, ; :

Harleysville Management Services, LLC, also entered into an employment agreement with George S.
Rapp, effective May 20035 and amended December 15, 2006, pursuant to his employment as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the bank and the corporation.

Each agreement is for'a term of 2 years, renewing automatically at the end of the two-year period for an
additional one-year term. The employment agreements renew automatically at the end of each one-year extension.
Either party must provide at least 60 days (90 days in the Rapp Agreement) written notice prior to an annual
renewal date in the event this agreement shall terminate at the end of the then existing employment period. The
agreement specifies position title and duties, compensation and benefits, and indemnification and termination
provisions. The executives will be entitled to participate in annual and long-term incentive plans and employee
benefit ptans and to receive annual vacation in accordance with the policies established by the Board of Directors of
Harleysville. Each executive also receives an automobile allowance, under their respective agreements. According
to their agreements, each executive’s employment will automatically terminate upon the executive’s disability, as
defined in the agreement, and he will receive employee benefits and an amount no greater than 70% of his
compensation less amounts payable under any disability plan until he (1) returns to work, (2) reaches 65, or (3)
dies. If either executive is terminated or upon occurrence of other events following a "Change in Control," as
defined in the agreement, he may receive up to 2.0 times his agreed compensation and may continue participation
in employee bengfit plans. The agreements also contain a non-competition provision and a confidentiality
provision.

Michael B. High"

~ Effective April 1, 2005, Harleysville Management Services, LLC, entered into an employment agréement
with Michael B. High, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the corporation and Harleysville
National Bank that is (the “High Employment Agreement”).

The High Employment Agreement is for a term of 3 years and will automatically extend for one additional
year at the end of the first three years and on every anniversary of the High Employment Agreement, unless notice
to terminate is given 90 days prior to renewal. The executive is entitled to participate in annual and long-term
incentive plans and employee benefit plans, receive 4 weeks of vacation cach year, and receive a car allowance.
The High Employment Agreement will automatically terminate for "Cause," as defined in the agreement, and all
rights under the agreement will terminate. The High Employment Agreement will automatically terminate if the
executive terminates the agreement for "Good Reason," as defined in the agreement, or is terminated by the
corporation without cause and the executive will receive (1) the greater of the compensation he would receive for
the remainder of the agreement’s term or one year’s compensation and (2) participation in the corporation’s benefit
plans for twelve months. The High Employment Agreement will automatically terminate upon the executive’s
disability, as defined in the agreement, and he will receive employee benefits and an amount no greater than 70% of
his compensation less amounts payable under any disability plan until he (1) returns to work, (2) reaches 65, or (3)
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dies.: The.High Employment Agreement will automatically terminate upon the-death of the executive-and any .
compensation remaining for.the term of the agreement will be paid to the executive’s survivors.. The High
Employment Agreement will automatically terminate upon voluntary termination of the agreement by the executive
absent "Good Cause," as defined in the agreement. 1f the executive is terminated or upon occurrence of other .
events following a "Change in Control,” as defined in the agreement, the executive may receive up to 2.99 times his
agreed compensation and will continue participation in employee benefit plans. The High Employment Agreement
contains restrictive covenants precluding the executive from engaging in competitive activities in a certain area and
provisions preventing the executive from disclosing proprietary information about the corporation.

EXECUTIVE SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

John Elsele

Effecnve June 15, 2007 Harleysville Management Services, LLC, entered into a separallon agreement with
John W. Eisele who until thiat date'served as Executive Vice President of the corporation and Harleysville National
Bank, and President, Millennium Wealth Management and Private Banking, a division of Harleysville National
Bank (the "Eisele Separation Agreement”). The Eisele Separation Agreement acknowiedged the termination of
executive’s Employment Agreement that was dated September 27, 2004 and employment, and his resignation from
any officer or director position he had he]d with the corporation or Harleysw]lc National Bank.

- The matenal terms of the Eisele Separatlon Agreement are summanzed as follows: . .
* Mr. Eisele received as his severance package $21,891 per month for 12 months, minus all appropriate
withholdings and/or deductions.

s . 12 months benefit-continuation, or the value of benefits that cannot be eon,tinucd in the group plan, up
. to a total of $24,222, ,

e Mr. Eisele agreed to release the corporatlon and its affiliates and all olher releasees as ldenuﬁed in the
Agreement from all claims and rights including but not limited to those arising from or based upon his
employment, the termination of his employment, the termination of his employment agreement and any
related statute or law. o - . .

o The corporatlon agreed to 1ndemn1fy Mr. Eisele from any legal process in any actions or suits arlsmg
out of his service as a.director, officer or employee of the corporation subject to certain limitations.

. Mr. Eisele agreed not to disclose any confidential information of the corporation and return any
confidential documents and information to the corporation.

e Mr. Eisele agreed to not compete with the corporatlon in any county in which HNC or any of its
.subsidiaries does business, or any county contiguous to such a county, including contiguous counties
located outside of Pennsylvania for one-year following the termination of his employment Mr. Eisele
also agreed to not contact, solicit or induce any customer, referral source or employee of the ‘
corporation to become a customer, referral source or employee of anyone other than the corporation for
a p'erioq of one year.

g X P . . P |

Related Party Transactions

Certain directors and officers of the corporation, their immediate family members and companies with
which they are associated, are customérs of the corporation’s banking subsidiary, Harleysville National Bank.
During 2007, these individuals, family members and companies had banking transactions with Harleysville
National Bank in the ordinary course of business. Similar transactions are expected to occur in the future. All
loans and loan commitments involved in such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business under
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-substantially the same terms, including interest rates, collateral, and repayment terms, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with other persons. In the opinion of the corporation’s management, these
transactions do not involve more than the normal risk of collection, nor do they present other unfavorable features,
Each of these transactions was made in compliance with applicable law, including Section 13(k) of the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 and Federal Board Regulation O. As of December 31, 2007, loans 10 executive ofﬁcers
directors, and their affiliates represented 3.81% of total shareholders” equity in the corporation, .

Harleysville Natianal Bank has established written policy and procedures for the review, approval and/or
ratification of all related party transactions. These transactions are reported to and reviewed by Risk Management
and approved and/or ratified by the independent members of the Board of Directors.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission require that the corporation disclose late filings of
reports of stock ownership (and changes in stock ownership) by its directors and executive officers. To the best of
the corporation’s knowledge, there were no delinquent Section 16(a) filings during 2007.

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“Committee”) oversees the corporation’s financial reporting process on behalf of
the Board of Directors. In that connection, the Committee, along with the Board of Directors, has formally adopted
an audit committee charter setting forth its responsibilities. In addition, appropriate policies have been established
to further strengthen disclosure procedures required under Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process including
the systems of internal control. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Committee reviewed the audited
financial statements in the Annual Report with management including a discussion of the quality, not just the
acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures
in the financial statements

. .

The Committee reviewed with the independent auditors, who are responsible for expressing an opinion on
the conformity of those audited financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles, their judgments
as to the quality, not just the acceptability, of the corporation’s accounting principles and such other matters as are
required to be discussed with the Committee under generally accepted auditing standards. In addition, the
Committee has discussed with the independent auditors the auditors’ independence from management and the
corporation including the matters in the written disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board and
considered the compatibility of non-audit services with the auditors’ independence.

The Committee discussed with the corporation’s internal and independent auditors the overall scope and
plans for their respective audits. The Committee meets with the internal and independent auditors, with and
without management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of the corporation’s
internal controls and the overall quality of the corporation’s financial reporting. During fiscal year 2007, the
Committee held 12 meetings which inclided 4 conference calls to review earnings prior to their public release.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Committee recommended tc; the Board of
Directors (and the Board has approved) that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission,

Audit Committee

Walter R. Bateman I, Chalrman
LeeAnn B. Bergey

Thomas C. Leamer

James A. Wimmer
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Grant Thornton LLP, Certified Public Accountants, a registered public accounting firm, of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, served as Harleysville National Corporation’s independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for
the 2007 fiscal year. Grant Thomnton LLP assisted the corporation and its subsidiaries with:

» preparation of federal and state tax returns, and
e assistance in connection with regulatory matters,

charging the banking subsidiaries for such service at its customary hourly billing rates. Aggregate fees billed to
Harleysville National Corporation and subsidiaries by the independent accountants for services rendered during the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Types of Fees 2007 o X 2006
Audit Fees: (1) $452,841 $350,259
Audit Related Fees: (2) § 51,488 $ 37,756
Tax Fees: (3) V $184,640 ] ‘ $144.415
All Other Fees: (4) . ' -0- ‘ -

TOTAL © $688,969 $532,430

(1) Audit fees consisted of audit work performed in the preparation of financial statements, Sarbanes-Oxley Sec. 404
centification work, as well as work generally only the independent registered public accounting firm can reasonably be
expected to provide, such as statutory audit and registration statements.

(2) Audit related fees consisted principally of audits of employee benefit plans and assistance with matters related to the 2007
Securities and Exchange Commission comment letter. :

(3) Tax fees consisted principaily of assistance with matters related to tax compliance.and reporting. .

{4) No other fees in 2006.

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the
independent certified public accountants. These services may include audit services, audit related services, tax
services, and other services. The Audit Committee has adopted a policy for the pre-approval of services provided
by the independent certified public accountants. Under the policy, pre-approval is generally provided for up to onc
year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of particular services on a case-by-case
basis. The Audit Committee approved all services provided by Grant Thornton, during 2007 and 2006.

Proposal No. 2

Ratification of Selection of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee has approved and appointed Grant Thorton LLP, Certified Public Accountants, a
registered public accounting firm, as the corporation’s auditors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008,
subject to shareholder ratification. The Board of Directors of Harleysville National Corporation has ratified this
appointment. Grant Thornton has advised the corporation that none of its members has any financial interests in '
Harleysville National Corporation.

Representatives of Grant Thornton will be present at the annual meeting, They will be given the
opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to do so, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions
after the meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends that the sharcholders vote FOR ratification of the selection of Grant
Thornton LLP as the corporation’s auditors for the fiscal year ended, December 31, 2008,
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Electronic Distribution

© You may choose to receive future distributions of Harleysville’s material (quarterly reports, proxy
statements, annual reports, etc.) via e-mail.- Please follow vour broker instructions to receive Harleysville’s
material electronically or you may go to www.hncbank.com, select Investor Information and click on “E-Mail
Notification” from the list at the top of the page. After appropriately completing and submitting the form, you will
be notified each time new information is released and becomes available on this website. You will be able to view
the documents by clicking on “Documents™ and following instructions, as prompted. If you need help with this,
please call us at (215) 256-8851 and ask for Shareholder Services.

Annual Report

A copy of the corporation’s annual report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 accompanies this
proxy statement. We furnish the annual report for your information only. We have not incorporated the annual
report, or any part of the annual report, in this proxy statement.

Legal Proceedings

In the opinion of the management of the corporation, there are no proceedings pending to which the
corporation is a party or to which its property is subject, which, if determined adversely to the corporation, would
be material in relation to the corporation’s undivided profits or financial condition. There are no proceedings
pending other than routine litigation incident to the business of the corporation and its banking subsidiaries. In
addition, no material proceedings are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against the
corporation by government authorities.

Householding

We have adopted a procedure approved by the SEC called “householding.” Under this procedure, multiple
shareholders who share the same last name and address and do not participate in electronic delivery will receive
only one copy of the proxy materials, unless they notify us that they wish to continue receiving multiple copies.
We have undertaken houscholding to reduce our printing costs and postage fees.

If you wish to continue to receive multiple copies of the proxy materials at the same address, additional
copies will be provided promptly to you upon request. You may request multiple copies by notifying us in writing
or by telephone at:

Harleysville National Corporation

ATTN: Sharcholder Services

483 Main Street

P.O. Box 195

Harleysville, PA 19438-0195

Telephone (215) 256-8851 or toll-free @ 800-423-3955

You may opt-out of householding at any time prior to thirty days before the mailing of proxy materials in March of
each year by notifying us at the address above,

If you share an address with another sharcholder and currently are receiving multiple copies of the proxy
materials, you may request householding by notifving us at the above-referenced address or telephong number.

Discretionary Voting Authority

In connection with Harleysville’s 2009 annual meeting and pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-4 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, if the shareholder’s notice is not received by Harleysvilie on or before February
4, 2009, the Corporation (through management proxy holders) may exercise discretionary voting authority when
the proposal is raised at the annual meeting without any reference to the matter in the proxy statement.




Additional Information

Any shareholder may obtain a copy of Harleysville National Corporation’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, including the financial statements and the schedules thereto,
required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, without charge, by submitting a written request
to Liz Chemnitz, Senior Vice President and Assistant Secretary of the corporation, Harleysville National
Corporation, 483 Main Street, P.O. Box 195, Harleysville, Pennsylvania 19438-0195, telephone 800-423-3955.
You may also view these documents on our website at www.hncbank.com, select Investor Information, and then
click on “Documents/Filings.”

Other Matters

The Board of Directors does not know of any matters to be presented for consideration other than the
matters described in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders, but, if any matters are properly
presented, persons named in the accompanying proxy intend to vote on such matters in accordance with their best
judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
A A M/

Walter E. Daller, Jr.
Chairman of the Board

Date: March 20, 2008
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Core COMPETENCIES

Wealth Management

* Financial Planning

* Investment Management

* Trust and Fiduciary Services

* Executive Management and
Compensation Consulting

¢ Insurance and Annuities

* Estate Settlement and
Executor Services

* Retirement Planning and
Employee Benefit Services

¢ Institutional Investuments
¢ Custom Credit Solutions

* Business and Estate Planning

Commercial Banking
* Business Deposit Services

* Small Business and
Commercial Loans

® Cash Management

* Real Estate Lending and
Construction Mortgages

¢ Government Banking Solutions

* Equipment Leasing

Retail Banking

* Checking Accounts
* Savings Accounts

e CDs, CDARS®

* Personal Loans (Morigages,
Personal and Home Loquity Lines of Credit,

fnstallment Loans, Education Loans)
s Credit Cards and Check Cards
¢ Investment Management Services
® [nsurance

e Convenience Services

I
HINC S e opaiations beilding contivieo the coniiadt cation vf
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Corporate Information

Copies of the Corporation’s Annual Report to the
Sccurities
available,

and Exchange Commission (Form 10-K) are
without charge to sharcholders online at
www.hncbank.com. Copies may also be requested in
writing, Direct correspondence to: Liz Chemnitz, Senior
Vice President and Assistant Corporate Secretary, Manager,
483 Main Swreet, PO, Box 195,
PA 19438, For informaton on our linancial

Shareholder Services,
Harleysville,
services solutions  visit  Harleysville Nadonal Bank at
www.harleysvillebank.com or call 1-888-HNB-2100, or East
Penn Bank atwww.eastpennbank.com or call 1-888-462-2100,
You may also contact Millennium Wealth Management
and Private  Banking at
or call 1-888-611-7400 or Cornerstone Companies at

www.millenniumwealth.com

www.cornerstone-companies.com or 1-804-553-3232,

Annual Meeting

The 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders of Harleysville
National Corporation will be held at Presidential Caterers,
Norristown, PA, on Tuesday, April 22, 2008, at 9:30 a.mn.

NASDAQ Market Makers

As of December 31, 2007, the following firms made a market
in the Corporation’s comnmmon stock: UBS Securities LLC
(UBSS), Morgan Stanley & Co, Inc. (MSCO), Goldmin
Sachs & Co. (GSCO), Lehman Brothers, Inc. (LLEHM), Ferris,
Baker Waus, Inc. (FBWA}, and Boenning & Scattergood,
Inc. (BOSC).

Stock Listing

Harleysville National Corporation commaon stock is traded
under the symbol HNBC, The stock is commonly quoted
on the NASDAQ Global Select Market®. At the close of
businesson December 31, 2007, therewere 4,172 sharchaolders
of record.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Corporation has a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan. Interesied sharcholders can obtain more
information or register for this service by contacting
Stock  Transfer & Trust The
American Stock Transfer dividend reinvestment number
is 1-800-278-43563. It is different from their shareholder

1-800-937-5449.

IcEast Penn Bank

A Division of Harleysville National Bank

American Company.

services number,

i!Harle sville

NATIONAL BANK

Dividend Direct Deposit

Sharcholders not participatingin the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan may opt to have their dividends deposited directly into
their checking or savings accountat any financial institution
participating in the Auwomated Clearing House (ACH)
system. contact American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company.

To register,

Auditors
Grant Thornton LLF, Two Commerce Square, 2001 Market
St., Suite 3100, Philadelphia, PA 19108, 215-561-4200

Registrar/Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 53 Maiden
Lane, New York, NY 10038, 1-800-957-5449

Harleysville National Corporation

Board of Directors

Waher E. Daller, Jr., Chairman; Walter R. Bateman, 1L
LeeAnn B, Bergey; Paul D. Geraghty*; Harold A, Herr;
Thomas C. Leamer; Stephanie 5. Mitchell; A. Ross Myers;
Brent L. Peters**; Demectra M. Takes; James A, Wimmer;
William M. Yocum#*#®

*As of 7/23/07 **As of 11/16/07 ***Director Emeritus

Executive Officers as of December 31, 2007

Walter E. Daller, Jr., Chairman, Harleysville National Corparation
and Heteysville National Bank

Paul D. Geraghty, resident and Chigf Fxecutive Officer,
Hurlevsmlle Nattonal Corporation

Demetra M, Takes, Execulive Vice President,

Harlevsvitle National Corporation; Prestdent and Chief Executive Qfficer,
Harlevsoille National Bank

Michael B. High, Fxecutive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, Harleysville National Corporation and Harleysotlle National Bank

George S. Rapp, CPd, Lxecutive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, Harleyseille Naitonal Corporativn and Harlepsville National Bank

Brent L. Peters, Executive Vice President,

Harleysoille Natwnal Corporation and Harleysuille Natwonal Bank and
President of the Fast Penn Bank Diviston of Harlevsuille Nattonal Bank
Lewis C. Cyr, Executive Vice Piestdent and Chief Lending Officer,
Harleysuille National Corporation and Harlevsoille National Bank
James F. McGowan, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit
Officer, Harleysville National Corporation and Harleysville National Bank

‘!WHH MANAGEMENT& FRIVATE BANKING
A Diviciea uf Narlepreiile Natlwmg] famt

‘!A SUBSIDIARY OF HARLEYSVILLE MATIONAL BANK

Harleysville National Corporation « NASDAQ: HNBC
483 Main Street, PO Box 195, Harleysville, PA 19438 « www.hinchank.com ¢ 1-800-423-3955




